MATCO FOODS LIMITED

B-1/A, S..T.E., Phase 1, Super Highway
Industrial Area, Karachi-75340.

Tel: +92 21 36411661-3

Cell: +92 300 8610851

Fax: +92 21 36881443

Email: contact@matcofoods.com

June 5, 2025

The General Manager

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
Stock Exchange Building

Stock Exchange Road

Karachi

Subject: NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Dear Sir,

Enclosed please find a copy of the Notice of Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members of Matco
Foods Limited to be held on Friday. June 27, 2025, at 11:00 a.m. for circulation amongst the TRE certificate
holders. The said notice has been published in newspapers Daily Pakistan Today and Roznama Dunya on
June 3. 2025.

Yours sincerely.

Muhammad Noman Ansari
Company Secretary

Encl: Notice of EOGM

Copy to:-

The Director / HOD

Surveillance, Supervision and Enforcement Department
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan

NIC Building, 63 Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area

[slamabad

FAILAK

Visit us at: www.matcofoods.com, www.falakrice.com B A s M A T I R I c E
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED

NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that pursuant to the Order of the Honourable High Court of Sindh at Karachi dated June
3, 2025, passed in Civil Miscellaneous Application No. 3231 of 2025, in Petition bearing J. C. M. No. 21 of 2025,
an Extraordinary General Meeting (“EOGM”) of Matco Foods Limited (the “Company”) shall be held at, and
conducted from, the Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan, Seminar Room, ICMA Pakistan
Building ST-18/C, ICMAP Avenue, Block 6, Gulshan-e-lgbal, Karachi 75300, on Friday, June 27, 2025, at 11:00
a.m., including through video link facility, to transact the following business:

A. Special Business

Pursuant to the Order of the High Court of Sindh at Karachi dated June 3, 2025, passed in Civil Miscellaneous
Application No. 3231 of 2025, in Petition bearing J. C. M. No. 21 of 2025, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass,
with or without modification, the following resolution for the corporate restructuring / reorganization of the
Company, involving, inter alia, the bifurcation / separation of the Company into two segments / undertakings
i.e. the Corn Starch Undertaking and the Retained Undertaking, and the merger, by way of amalgamation, of the
Corn Starch Undertaking with and into the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Matco Corn Products
(Private) Limited, along with all ancillary matters thereto, in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement dated
May 23, 2025, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on May 23, 2025.

The proposed resolution to be passed by the requisite majority of members of the Company under Sections 279
and 282 of the Companies Act, 2017 is as under:

“RESOLVED THAT the Scheme of Arrangement dated May 23, 2025, prepared under the provisions
of Sections 279 to 283 and 285(8) of the Companies Act, 2017, for the corporate restructuring /
reorganization of Matco Foods Limited, involving, inter alia, the bifurcation / separation of Matco
Foods Limited into two segments / undertakings (i.e. the Corn Starch Undertaking and the Retained
Undertaking), and the merger, by way of amalgamation, of the Corn Starch Undertaking with and
into Matco Corn Products (Private) Limited, along with all ancillary matters thereto, placed before
the meeting for consideration and approval, be and is hereby approved and adopted, along with
any modifications / amendments required, or conditions imposed by the High Court of Sindh at
Karachi, subject to sanction by the High Court of Sindh at Karachi, in terms of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017.”

B. Other Business
To transact any other business that may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair.
(a) Copies of the (i) Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 concerning
the Special Business; and (ii) Statement under Section 281 of the Companies Act, 2017, along with the (b) the
QR code and web link to access, view and download copies of the (i) Scheme of Arrangement; (ii) Letter dated
May 16, 2025, issued by Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman; and (iii) Special purpose financial statements of the
Company audited for the period ended December 31, 2024, are being circulated to the members along with
this notice of the EOGM.

By the Order of the Board

Muhammad Noman Ansari
Company Secretary

Karachi: June 5, 2025
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Notes:

1. The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from June 20, 2025 to June 27, 2025 (both
days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the Company’s share registrar, namely CDC
Share Registrar Services Limited, situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi— 74400, by the close of business on June 19, 2025 will be treated in time for the determination
of entitlement of members to attend and vote at the EOGM.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend, speak and vote at the EOGM may appoint another
member as his / her proxy to attend, speak and vote in place of the member. Proxies, in order to be
effective, must be received at the Company’s registered office, situated at B-1/A, S.I.T.E. Phase 1, Super
Highway Industrial Area, Karachi, at least 48 hours before the time of holding the EOGM and no account
shall be taken of any part of the day that is not a working day. A member shall not be entitled to appoint
more than one proxy. Form of proxy can be downloaded from the Company’s website:
https://matcofoods.com.

3. Any Individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at the EOGM, must bring his / her
original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to prove identity, and in case of proxy, a copy of
shareholder’s attested CNIC must be attached with the proxy form. Representatives of corporate
members should bring the usual documents required for such purpose (and as detailed below).

CDC Account Holders will also be required to follow the under mentioned guidelines, as laid down in
Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

For Attending the EOGM

3.1 In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person, whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC
Regulations, shall authenticate identity by showing his / her original CNIC or original passport
at the time of attending the EOGM.

3.2 Members registered on CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, I. D. Numbers and
account numbers in CDS.

3.3 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of the EOGM (unless it has
been provided earlier).

For Appointing Proxies

3.4 In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC

Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

3.5 The proxy form shall be witnessed by the person whose name, address and CNIC number shall
be mentioned on the form.

3.6 Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

3.7 The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the EOGM.
3.8 The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the EOGM.
3.9 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with

specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy
form to the Company.
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5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Participation through Video Conference Facility

If the Company receives a demand (at least 2 days before the date of the EOGM) from members holding
an aggregate of at least 10% shareholding residing in any other city, to participate in the EOGM through
video link, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city (subject to availability thereof
in such city).

In this regard please send a duly signed request as per the following format at the registered address
of the Company, at least 2 days before holding of the EOGM.

I/We, of , being a member of Matco Foods
Limited, holder of ordinary share(s) as per registered Folio / CDC Account No
, hereby opt for video conference facility at

Signature of member
Virtual Participation in the EOGM Proceedings

In order to maximize the member’s participation, the Company is convening this EOGM via video link
in addition to holding a physical meeting with the members.

In order to attend the EOGM through electronic facility, members are requested to register themselves
with the Company Secretariat by providing the requisite details at least 48 hours before the time of the
EOGM (i.e. by 11 a.m. on June 25, 2025) through e-mail to be sent at corporate@matcofoods.com.

Members are advised to provide the following particulars, along with the scanned copy of their CNIC
and that of their proxies, if so appointed. Moreover, in the case of a corporate member, the scanned
copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors / Power of Attorney with a specimen signature of the
nominee must also be provided.

Folio No. / CDC

Name of Member* | CNIC/NTN No. Cell No. Email address

Account No.

* Where applicable, please also give the above particulars of the proxy-holder or nominee of the
member.

The details of the electronic facility (video link and the login credentials) will only be sent to the
interested members (whose email containing all the required and correct particulars are timely
received) at their provided e-mail addresses. Accordingly, the members will be able to participate in
EOGM proceedings through their smartphones or computer devices. In addition to the above, the
members can also provide their comments and / or suggestions in connection with the agenda items
of the EOGM by using the aforesaid means.

The login facility will be opened at 30 minutes before on June 27, 2025, enabling the participants to join
the proceedings after identification and verification process before joining the meeting, which will start
at 11:00 a.m. sharp.

Postal Ballot / E-Voting

Members are hereby notified that pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, read
with Sections 143-144 of the Companies Act, 2017, and SRO 2192(1)/2022 dated December 5, 2022,
members will be allowed to exercise their right to vote for the special business in accordance with the
conditions mentioned therein. The following options are being provided to members for voting:
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6.1

6.2

E-Voting Procedure

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with those members of the
Company who have their valid CNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail addresses available in
the register of members of the Company by the close of business on June 20, 2025.

The web address, login details and password will be communicated to members via email. The
security codes will be communicated to members through SMS and email from web portal of
the e-voting service provider.

Identity of the members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated
through electronic signature or authentication for login.

E-voting lines will start from June 23, 2025, 9:00 a.m. and shall close on June 25, 2025 at 5:00
p.m. Members can cast their votes any time during this period. Once the vote on a resolution
is cast by a member, he / she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Postal Ballot

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Members may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot. Ballot paper shall also be
available for download from the website of the Company at https://matcofoods.com/ or
members may use the same as annexed to this Notice and published in newspapers.

Members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper, along with copy of CNIC should
reach the Chairman of the meeting through post at the Company’s registered address
(Attention of the Company Secretary) OR through the registered email address of the member
at corporate@matcofoods.com with subject of ‘Voting in EOGM’ by June 26, 2025 before 5:00
p.m. The signature on the ballot paper shall match with the signature on the CNIC. A postal
ballot received after this time / date shall not be considered for voting.

Please note that in case of any dispute in voting including the casting of more than one vote,
the Chairman of the meeting shall be the deciding authority.

Statutory Code of Conduct at EOGM: Members are requested to observe the conduct referred to in
sub-regulation 2 of Regulation 55 of the Companies Regulations, 2024 while attending the EOGM.

Provision of Information by Members

To comply with various statutory requirements, and to avoid any non-compliance of law or any
inconvenience in future, all members are hereby advised to coordinate / update their records with their
respective Participant / CDC Investor Account Services / the Company’s Share Registrar in connection
with the following:

- Submission of copies of their valid / updated CNIC / NTN Certificate / Zakat Declaration (Exemption)
Form / Tax Exemption Certificate.

- Provision of relevant details including valid bank account details / IBAN in order to enable the
Company to pay any unclaimed / future cash dividends, if any.

- In case of a joint account, provision of shareholding proportions between principal shareholder
and joint holder(s).

- Convert their physical shares into scrip less form, which will also facilitate the members having
physical shares in many ways, including safe custody, efficient trading and convenience in other
corporate actions.

- Provision of mandatory registration details in terms of Section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017 and
other applicable laws, including mobile number / landline number and email address (if available).



MATCO FOODS LIMITED

10

11

- Promptly notify any change in mailing address, email address and mobile number by writing to the
office of the Company’s Share Registrar.

No gifts will be distributed at the EOGM.

Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company; Statement under Section
134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 in respect of the material facts of the special business; Statement
under Section 281 of the Companies Act, 2017; Scheme of Arrangement dated May 23, 2024; Letter
dated May 16, 2025, issued by Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman; annual audited financial statements of
the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024; special purpose financial statements of the Company
audited for the period ended December 31, 2024, and any other information relevant to the special
business in respect of the Company shall be available upon request, and for inspection, by any person
entitled to attend the EOGM from the registered office of the Company, located at B-1/A, S.I.T.E. Phase
1, Super Highway Industrial Area, Karachi, free of cost during normal office hours, from the date of this
notice till the conclusion of the EOGM. The said information shall also be placed for inspection of
members of the Company during the EOGM. Furthermore, a member shall be entitled to receive (at
their registered address) copies of the Scheme of Arrangement, Letter dated May 16, 2025 and the
special purpose audited financial statements of the Company, free of cost, upon a request being made
to the Company on the standard request form, which is available at Company’s website
https://matcofoods.com/.

The notice of the EOGM along with the statements, the Scheme of Arrangement, the latest annual
audited financial statements, and the special purpose audited financial statements of the Company
have also been placed on the website of the Company.

QR Code Web link
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The Company Secretary MATCO FOODS LIMITED
Matco Foods Limited

B-1/A, SI.T.E., Phase 1

Super Highway Industrial Area

Karachi
PROXY FORM
I/we, s/o0 / d/o of
being a member of MATCO FOODS LIMITED and holder of
number of shares as per Share Register Folio No.
and/or CDC Participant ID No. hereby appoint
of , 0r failing him/her to act as my/our proxy and to vote

for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company to be
held on the 27" day of June 2025, including via video-conferencing facility, and at any adjournment thereof.

Please affix
Signed this day of June 2025. Revenue
Stamp of Rs. 5/-

Witness 1 Witness 2

Signature Signature

Name Name

CNIC No. CNIC No.

Address Address
Notes:

1. The proxy must be a member of the company.

2. The signature must tally with the specimen signature/s registered with the Company.

{75

I a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member
with the cmupaul}-‘. all sheh instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

4. Ifa proxy is granted by a member who has deposited his/her shares into Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited, the proxy must be accompanied by the participant’s ID number and account/sub-account number along
with attested photocopies of Computerized National Tdentity Card (CNIC) or the Passport of the beneficial

owner. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual documents required for such purposes.

less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting,

6. Incase of corporate & entity, the Board of directors resolution/power of attorney with specimen signatures shall
be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company through email (as
mentioned in the notes to the Notice of the EOGM.

5. The instrument of Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not
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POSTAL BALLOT PAPER
Ballot paper for voting through post for the Special Business at the scheduled Extraordinary General Meeting to be on Friday, June 27, 2025,
at 11:00 a.m. at Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan, Seminar Room, ICMA Pakistan Building ST-18/C, ICMAP Avenue,
Block 6, Gulshan-e-Igbal, Karachi 75300. Website: www.matcofoods.com.
Folio/CDS Account Number

Name of Shareholder/Proxy Holder

Registered Address

Number of Shares Held

CNIC/Passport No. (in case of foreigner) (copy to be attached)

Additional information and enclosures (in case of representative of body corporate,
corporation, and Federal Government)

Name of Authorized Signatory

CNIC/Passport No. (in case of foreigner) of Authorized Signatory (copy to be attached)

Agenda Item # A

The proposed resolution to be passed by the requisite majority of members of the Company under Sections 279 and 282 of the Companies
Act, 2017 is as under:

“RESOLVED THAT the Scheme of Arrangement dated May 23, 2025, prepared under the provisions of Sections 279 to 283 and 285(8) of
the Companies Act, 2017, for the corporate restructuring / reorganization of Matco Foods Limited, involving, inter alia, the bifurcation /
separation of Matco Foods Limited into two segments / undertakings (i.e. the Corn Starch Undertaking and the Retained Undertaking),
and the merger, by way of amalgamation, of the Corn Starch Undertaking with and into Matco Corn Products (Private) Limited, along
with all ancillary matters thereto, placed before the meeting for consideration and approval, be and is hereby approved and adopted, along
with any modifications / amendments required, or conditions imposed by the High Court of Sindh at Karachi, subject to sanction by the
High Court of Sindh at Karachi, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017.”
Instructions For Poll

1. Please indicate your vote by ticking (V) the relevant box.

2. In case, if both the boxes are marked as (v'), your poll shall be treated as “Rejected”.

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the above resolution through ballot by conveying my/our assent or dissent to the resolution
by placing a tick (v') mark in the appropriate box below:

I/We assent to the Resolution (FOR) I/We dissent to the Resolution
Resolution (AGAINST)

Agenda Item # A

NOTES:

1. Dully filled ballot paper should be sent to the Chairman (Attention of the Company Secretary), B-1/A, S.L.T.E. Phase 1, Super Highway
Industrial Area, Karachi 75340, or email at corporate@matcofoods.com.

2. Acopy of CNIC / Passport (in case of a foreigner) should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.

3. Ballot paper should reach the Chairman within business hours by or before June 26, 2025, one day before the Extraordinary General
Meeting. Any postal ballot received after this date / time, will not be considered for voting.
The signature on the ballot paper should match with the signature on the CNIC.

5. Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, or over-written poll paper will be rejected.

6.  In case of a representative of a body corporate, corporation, or Federal Government, the Ballot Paper Form must be accompanied by a
copy of the CNIC of an authorized person, an attested copy of the Board Resolution/Power of Attorney/Authorization Letter, etc., in
accordance with Section(s) 138 or 139 of the Companies Act, 2017 as applicable. In the case of foreign body corporate etc., all documents
must be attested by the Counsel General of Pakistan having jurisdiction over the member.

7. Ballot paper form has also been placed on the website of the Company at: www.matcofoods.com. Members may download the ballot
paper from the website or use an original/photocopy published in newspapers.

Shareholder / Proxy holder Signature/Authorized Signatory

(In case of corporate entity, please affix company stamp) Date:
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Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 concerning the Special Business to be
transacted at the Extraordinary General Meeting of Matco Foods Limited

The Board of Directors of Matco Foods Limited (the “Company”), vide resolutions passed through circulation on
May 23, 2025, has resolved to enter into an arrangement with its wholly owned subsidiary, Matco Corn Products
(Private) Limited (“MCPPL”), which shall be carried out, and effectuated, in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement
between the companies and their respective members, dated May 23, 2025 (the “Scheme of Arrangement”)
under Sections 279 to 283 and 285(8) of the Companies Act, 2017.

Capitalized terms, unless defined herein, shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Scheme of
Arrangement.

Subject to the sanction of the High Court of Sindh at Karachi, under the Scheme of Arrangement, a corporate
restructuring / reorganization of the Company shall be carried out, in terms of which, inter alia, the business /
undertaking of the Company shall be demerged / bifurcated into two segments / undertakings i.e. the Corn
Starch Undertaking and the Retained Undertaking. Simultaneously, the Corn Starch Undertaking shall be
merged, by way of amalgamation, with and into MCPPL, by transfer to and vesting in MCPPL the specific assets,
rights, liabilities, benefits, powers, contracts, authorizations, bank accounts, authorizations, obligations, dues
etc. comprising the Corn Starch Undertaking (as detailed in the Scheme of Arrangement) (the “Proposed
Arrangement”), with effect from the start of business at 00:00 hours on July 1, 2025, or at such other date stated
by the Court (the “Effective Date”). Furthermore, the Retained Undertaking shall be retained by the Company.

The Proposed Arrangement detailed above, along with all ancillary and related matters thereto, shall be effective
by way of the Scheme of Arrangement, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 279 to 283 and 285(8) of
the Companies Act, 2017. The Scheme of Arrangement has been filed with the High Court of Sindh at Karachi
vide Petition bearing J. C. M. No. 21 of 2025. Furthermore, in accordance with the directions of the High Court
of Sindh, notice of the said petition has been provided to the registrar, Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan.

A copy of the Scheme of Arrangement is available for inspection to any person entitled to attend the
Extraordinary General Meeting, at the registered office of the Company, situated at B-1/A, S.I.T.E. Phase 1, Super
Highway Industrial Area, Karachi, free of cost during normal office hours. Copies of the same may also be obtained
upon request by such persons from the registered office of the Company free of cost during normal office hours,
or upon a request being made to the Company on the standard request form available on the Company’s website.
Furthermore, the QR Code and web link to access, view and download the Scheme of Arrangement have been
provided in the notice of the meeting circulated to the members of the Company.

The indicative assets, rights, liabilities, obligations etc. comprising the Corn Starch Undertaking and the Retained
Undertaking are based on the audited special purpose financial statements of the Company for the half year ended
December 31, 2024, which shall be updated for actuals (per line item) as on the Effective Date in accordance with
the Scheme of Arrangement.

The objects and benefits of the Proposed Arrangement are also provided in detail in the Scheme of Arrangement.
It may be noted that MCPPL is currently a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company; consequently, the Proposed
Arrangement constitutes a corporate reorganization of group companies.

As part of the corporate reorganization, and in consideration of the Proposed Arrangement, MCPPL shall allot
and issue an aggregate of 121,513,981 (One Hundred Twenty One Million Five Hundred Thirteen Thousand Nine
Hundred Eighty One) ordinary shares, having face value of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each, to the Company,
credited as fully paid up, at par, as detailed in the Scheme of Arrangement. The same has been approved by the
Board of Directors of the respective companies based on the (i) audited special purpose financial statements of
the Company for the half year ended December 31, 2024 (including the determination / break-up of the Corn
Starch Undertaking); and (ii) calculations stated in the letter dated May 16, 2025, issued by Grant Thornton
Anjum Rahman, under the net asset value approach. The said letter has been adopted by the Board of Directors
of the respective companies.
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The directors of the Company are interested in the Scheme of Arrangement to the extent of their respective
directorships (including common directorships) and (direct and indirect) shareholdings in the Company and / or
MCPPL (to the extent applicable). The effect of the Scheme of Arrangement on the interests of these directors
does not differ from its effect on the like interests of other members, except as stated herein or under the
Scheme of Arrangement.

The directors of the Company shall continue as the directors after the arrangement (subject to their ceasing to
be directors prior to the completion of the Proposed Arrangement).

In view of the above, the Board of Directors of the Company have approved and recommended the Scheme of
Arrangement, along with the arrangements stipulated thereunder which have been described above.

Statement under Section 281 of the Companies Act, 2017 concerning the Special Business

The statement setting forth the terms of the Scheme of Arrangement and explanation of its effects, including
the interests of the directors of the Company and the effect of those interests and other ancillary information
may be obtained upon request by any person entitled to attend the Extraordinary General Meeting from the
registered office of the Company situated at B-1/A, S.I.T.E. Phase 1, Super Highway Industrial Area, Karachi, free
of cost during normal office hours.

The aforesaid statement is also enclosed along with the notice of the Extraordinary General Meeting.
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STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 281(1)(A) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017, ACCOMPANYING THE NOTICES TO
THE MEMBERS AND SECURED CREDITORS OF MATCO FOODS LIMITED

Pursuant to the Order dated June 3, 2025, passed by the Honourable High Court of Sindh at Karachi in Civil
Miscellaneous Application No. 3231 of 2025, in Petition bearing J. C. M. No. 21 of 2025, under Sections 279 to
283 and 285(8) of the Companies Act, 2017, the Court has directed, inter alia, that separate meetings of the
members and secured creditors of Matco Foods Limited (the “Company”) be convened for seeking approval
with respect to the Scheme of Arrangement dated May 23, 2025 (the “Scheme of Arrangement”), pertaining to
the corporate restructuring / reorganization of the Company, involving, inter alia, the bifurcation / separation
of the Company into two segments / undertakings i.e. the Corn Starch Undertaking and the Retained
Undertaking, and the merger, by way of amalgamation, of the Corn Starch Undertaking with and into the
Company’s wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Matco Corn Products (Private) Limited (“MCPPL”), by transfer to and
vesting in MCPPL the specific assets, rights, liabilities, benefits, powers, contracts, authorizations, bank accounts,
authorizations, obligations, dues etc. comprising the Corn Starch Undertaking (the “Proposed Arrangement”),
along with all ancillary matters thereto, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on May 23, 2025.

Capitalized terms, unless defined herein, shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Scheme of
Arrangement.

For persons entitled to attend the respective meetings, a copy of the Scheme of Arrangement (along with its
annexures) may be obtained from the registered office of the Company, situated at B-1/A, S.I.T.E. Phase 1, Super
Highway Industrial Area, Karachi, free of cost during normal business hours, or upon a request being made to
the Company on the standard request form available on the Company’s website. Furthermore, the QR Code and
web link to access, view and download the Scheme of Arrangement have been / shall be provided in the notices of
the respective meetings circulated / to be circulated to the members and secured creditors of the Company.

The notices issued and published to the members of the Company are for the purpose of convening a meeting
of the members of the Company, as directed by the Court, for the purpose of passing, inter alia, the following
resolution for obtaining approval in respect of the Scheme of Arrangement and the Proposed Arrangement
contemplated thereunder, along with ancillary matters:

“RESOLVED THAT the Scheme of Arrangement dated May 23, 2025, prepared under the provisions
of Sections 279 to 283 and 285(8) of the Companies Act, 2017, for the corporate restructuring /
reorganization of Matco Foods Limited, involving, inter alia, the bifurcation / separation of Matco
Foods Limited into two segments / undertakings (i.e. the Corn Starch Undertaking and the Retained
Undertaking), and the merger, by way of amalgamation, of the Corn Starch Undertaking with and
into Matco Corn Products (Private) Limited, along with all ancillary matters thereto, placed before
the meeting for consideration and approval, be and is hereby approved and adopted, along with
any modifications / amendments required, or conditions imposed by the High Court of Sindh at
Karachi, subject to sanction by the High Court of Sindh at Karachi, in terms of the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017.”

As required under Section 279(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, the above resolution is required to be passed at
the meeting of the members convened pursuant to the Order of the Court, by a majority representing three-
fourths in value of the issued shares held by the members of the Company, present in person or by proxy, and
voting at the Extraordinary General Meeting. The sanctioning of the Scheme of Arrangement and the making of
other appropriate orders in connection therewith will be considered by the Court after the Scheme of
Arrangement is approved as aforesaid.

In the manner prayed in terms of the application filed with the Court, Mr. Faizan Ali Ghori, or in his absence, any
other director of the Company, shall chair the meeting of the members. Furthermore, the Court has directed the
Chairman to submit the report with respect to the meeting with the Court.

The notices issued / to be issued to the secured creditors of the Company are for the purpose of convening a
meeting of the secured creditors of the Company, as directed by the Court, for the purpose of obtaining their
approval in respect of the Scheme of Arrangement and the Proposed Arrangement contemplated thereunder.
With respect to the secured creditors of the Company, under Section 279(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, the
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Scheme of Arrangement is required to be approved by three-fourths of the creditors (in value) present and
voting at the meeting of the secured creditors (through their authorized representatives).

In the manner prayed in terms of the application filed with the Court, Mr. Ali Asghar or, in his absence, Mr.
Danish Ahmed, shall chair the meeting of the secured creditors. Furthermore, the Court has directed the
Chairman to submit the report with respect to the meeting with the Court.

The Scheme of Arrangement is subject to the sanction of the Court and may be sanctioned in its present form
or with any modification thereof or addition thereto as the Court may approve and the Scheme, with such
modification or addition if any, is also subject to any conditions which the Court may impose. The respective
Boards of Directors of the Company and MCPPL have the power (in the manner specified under the Scheme of
Arrangement) to consent on behalf of all concerned to any modifications of, or additions to, the Scheme of
Arrangement, or to any conditions which the Court may think fit to impose.

The Scheme of Arrangement has been filed with the High Court of Sindh at Karachi vide Petition bearing J. C. M.
No. 21 of 2025. Furthermore, in accordance with the directions of the High Court, notice of the said petition has
been provided to the registrar, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Companies involved in the Scheme of Arrangement
Matco Foods Limited

The Company is a public company, the shares of which are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. It was
incorporated as Matco Rice Processing (Private) Limited, a private company limited by shares, on April 14, 1990.
Subsequently, its name was changed to Matco Foods (Private) Limited on March 30, 2015. Finally, the status of
the Company changed from a private company to a public company with effect from July 25, 2017.

The Company has an authorized share capital of PKR 2,000,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Two Billion), divided into
200,000,000 (Two Hundred Million) ordinary shares of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each, out of which 122,400,698
(One Hundred Twenty Two Million Four Hundred Thousand Six Hundred Ninety Eight) ordinary shares have been
issued, fully subscribed to and paid up.

The principal activity of the Company is to carry out the business of processing and export of rice, rice glucose,
rice protein and pink salt, masala and kheer, as well as corn starch.

Matco Corn Products (Private) Limited

MCPPL is a private company limited by shares. It has an authorized share capital of PKR 1,500,000,000/- (Pak
Rupees One Billion Five Hundred Million), divided into 150,000,000 (One Hundred Fifty Million) ordinary shares
of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each, out of which 10,000 (Ten Thousand) ordinary shares have been issued, fully
subscribed to and paid up. Currently, MCPPL is the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (including through
its nominees).

The principal line of business of MCPPL is to, inter alia, produce, store, and process corn and other agricultural
products to create value-added products for human nutrition ingredients, animal nutrition ingredients and
general industrial purposes. MCPPL has not commenced operations to date, and has been incorporated for the
purposes of the Proposed Arrangement.

Brief of the Scheme of Arrangement
Summary and Objective
The principal object of the Scheme of Arrangement is, inter alia, to effect the Proposed Arrangement, as further
detailed in the Scheme of Arrangement, with effect from the start of business at 00:00 hours on July 1, 2025 or
at such other date stated by the Court (the “Effective Date”), by transfer to and vesting in MCPPL the specific
assets, rights, liabilities, benefits, powers, contracts, authorizations, bank accounts, authorizations, obligations,

dues etc. comprising the Corn Starch Undertaking (as detailed in the Scheme of Arrangement) with effect from
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the Effective Date, without any further act or deed or documents being required to be executed, registered or
filed in respect of such transfer, vesting, and / or assumption, in the manner stipulated under the Scheme of
Arrangement. The Retained Undertaking shall remain with the Company.

Accordingly, subject to the sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement by the Court, as of the Effective Date and
thereafter, until the Corn Starch Undertaking is actually transferred to and vested in MCPPL, and all mandatory
regulatory or third party related formalities, if any, required to be separately completed are fulfilled / completed,
in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement, the business of the Company, to the extent of the Corn Starch
Undertaking, will be deemed to have been carried for and on account and for the benefit of MCPPL.

The indicative assets, rights, liabilities, obligations etc. comprising the Corn Starch Undertaking and the Retained
Undertaking, as detailed in the pro forma split balance sheet (attached as Annexure A to the Scheme of
Arrangement), are based on the audited special purpose financial statements of the Company for the half year ended
December 31, 2024, which shall be updated for actuals (per line item) as on the Effective Date in accordance with
the Scheme of Arrangement.

Benefits

The respective directors of the Company and MCPPL have considered it prudent and beneficial to carry out the
Proposed Arrangement for the reasons and benefits stipulated in the Scheme of Arrangement. Among other
benefits as are also elaborated in detail in the Scheme of Arrangement, the Proposed Arrangement is expected
to result in facilitation of the objectives of long term growth and expansion for each of the companies as the
separation of business segments will also allow the Company and MCPPL to direct their efforts towards the
applicable segments, thus providing greater stability and allowing the respective companies to thrive in growing
markets which will benefit the companies and, consequently, the shareholders. Since the Company’s corn starch
division is distinct from the rest of the Company’s operations and business, the same can be managed, developed
and operated independently and efficiently. Furthermore, each company shall benefit from a greater
distribution of risk of carrying out business, since any loss, damage, market variation and / or other potential
risks arising out of any adverse and uncertain operating environment with respect to one business segment will
not necessarily undermine or have a detrimental impact on the other, alongside being able to using the facilities
and managements available to the companies more effectively, including enhancing quality assurance,
optimization of asset utilization, focussed marketing and sales activities, improving financial planning and long-
term strategic goals, and benefiting from greater cost savings and investment potential.

Consideration

As part of the corporate reorganization, and in consideration of the Proposed Arrangement, MCPPL shall allot
and issue an aggregate of 121,513,981 (One Hundred Twenty One Million Five Hundred Thirteen Thousand Nine
Hundred Eighty One) ordinary shares, having face value of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each, to the Company,
credited as fully paid up, at par, as detailed in the Scheme of Arrangement. The same has been approved by the
Board of Directors of the respective companies based on the (i) audited special purpose financial statements of
the Company for the half year ended December 31, 2024 (including the determination / break-up of the Corn
Starch Undertaking); and (ii) calculations stated in the letter dated May 16, 2025, issued by Grant Thornton
Anjum Rahman, under the net asset value approach. The said letter has been adopted by the Board of Directors
of the respective companies.

General

Allinformation / particulars with respect to the Proposed Arrangement and matters in respect thereof, including
all ancillary matters thereto, are provided in detail in the Scheme of Arrangement, including details of the
companies, the objects and benefits of the entire arrangement, consideration related matters, books of

accounts, treatment of employees and arrangements with respect to the secured creditors of the Company.

As a consequence of the Proposed Arrangement, both companies shall continue to exist as independent entities
without either company being wound up, in the manner prescribed under the Scheme of Arrangement.
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Summary of Operating and Financial Performance of the Company
(previous 5 years and current year up to the last half year)

Statement of

Financial
Position

Property, Plant 11 060363361  11,419,860,903  7,741,823327  6569,614,069  4,907,931,000  4,938,035,706

& Equipment

:'Sizz;"f'use 429,529,702 239,635,175 243,532,862 235,566,923 171,532,871 159,940,356
Other Non- 76,291,257 75,291,257 82,786,587 79,497,189 71,904,991 68,160,785
Current Assets

Current Assets 18,870,578,460  15,804,287,662  12,978,763,862  10,196,123,844  8701,828176  8,670,146,539
Total Assets 30,436,762,780  27,539,074,997  21,046,906,638  17,080,802,025  13,853,197,038  3,836,283,386

zzi:fyh("de“ 10,225,371,614  9,987,621,860  7,484,145951  7,058,380,142  6,651,118485  6,768,047,701
Eg;i‘“ct‘i‘;e”t 2,537,929,044  2,628,706,315  2,245977,168  2,009,748,012 842,009,080 725,378,333
Current

Liabilities 17,673,462,122 14,922,746,822 11,316,783,519 8,012,673,871 6,360,069,473 6,342,857,352

Total
Shareholders'
Equity &
Liabilities

30,436,762,780  27,539,074,997  21,046,906,638  17,080,802,025  13,853,197,038  13,836,283,386

Statement of

Comprehensive

Income

Net Sales 12,936,528,132 27,695,667,805 19,985,401,101 12,375,920,766 10,556,620,789 11,289,961,893
Gross Profit 1,758,596,367 3,171,022,003 2,453,255,548 1,319,816,985 647,193,023 1,015,989,929
Operating Profit 1,122,463,369 1,898,802,347 1,533,570,178 734,076,453 151,507,596 537,599,696

Profit Before

S 303,747,308 (68,314,773) 763,805,022 531,147,111 19,553,475 238,508,671
S;Z?t Eriing 238,300,020 (262,465,876) 555,618,021 422,415,968 (60,866,709) 151,928,178

The latest annual audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 are available
on its website, which contains the summarized operating and financial performance as well as details about
company specific risk factors.

Furthermore, the QR Code and web link to access, view and download the special purpose financial statements
of the Company audited for the half year ended December 31, 2024 have also been / shall be provided in the

notices of the respective meetings circulated / to be circulated to the members and secured creditors of the
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Company. The same are available for inspection to any person entitled to attend the respective meetings, at the
registered office of the Company, free of cost during normal office hours. Copies of the same may also be
obtained upon request by such persons from the registered office of the Company, free of cost during normal
office hours, or upon a request being made to the Company by such persons on the standard request form
available on the Company’s website.

Potential Risk Factors with respect to the Amalgamation

The Board of Directors of the Company do not foresee potential risks arising as a result of the Proposed
Arrangement itself, and are of the view that the same is likely to enhance shareholder value as well as future
returns for the members.

Information pertaining to the Creditors of the Company

In accordance with the provisions of the Scheme of Arrangement, as of the Effective Date, all the liabilities and
obligations of the Company, to the extent relevant to the Corn Starch Undertaking, including the liabilities and
obligations towards the secured creditors of the Company with respect to the Corn Starch Undertaking (as
identified in the Scheme of Arrangement), shall immediately, and without any further act or deed, be assumed
by and become the liabilities and obligations of MCPPL, which shall pay, undertake, satisfy, discharge and
perform, when due, all such liabilities and obligations. The obligations and liabilities with respect to the Retained
Undertaking shall continue to vest with the Company.

Furthermore, the Scheme of Arrangement details the arrangements going forward with respect to the charges
/ encumbrances existing in favour of the Company’s secured creditors over the assets comprising the Corn Starch
Undertaking and the Retained Undertaking, including the continuing nature of the security. Approval by the
members of the Company to the Scheme of Arrangement shall constitute approval for all matters thereunder,
including by way of special resolution for the provision / continuity of security in the manner contemplated in
Article 6.3(iv) of the Scheme of Arrangement.

Material Interests of Directors (if any)

The respective directors of the Company and MCPPL are interested in the Scheme of Arrangement to the extent
of their respective directorships (including common directorships) and (direct and / or indirect) shareholdings in
the said companies (to the extent applicable). The effect of the Scheme of Arrangement on the interests of these
directors does not differ from its effect on the like interests of other members, except as stated herein or under
the Scheme of Arrangement.

Furthermore, subject to the sanction of the Scheme of Arrangement, the respective directors of the Company
and MCPPL are expected to continue as the directors of the respective companies, subject to compliance with
the applicable laws.

Muhammad Noman Ansari
Company Secretary
MATCO FOODS LIMITED

Karachi
Dated: June 5, 2025
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SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

UNDER SECTIONS 279 TO 283 AND 285(8) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

INVOLVING

MATCO FOODS LIMITED
AND ITS MEMBERS

AND

MATCO CORN PRODUCTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
AND ITS MEMBERS

FOR

The separation / de-merger of certain assets, liabilities, obligations and undertakings from
Matco Foods Limited and the merger / amalgamation of the same with and into Matco
Corn Products (Private) Limited, involving, inter alia, a corporate restructuring of the said
group companies and their members, along with all ancillary matters.




SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
UNDER SECTIONS 279 TO 283 AND 285(8) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
BETWEEN

MATCO FOODS LIMITED, a public company limited by shares and listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited, incorporated and existing under the laws of Pakistan and having its registered office
at B-1/A, S.I.T.E. Phase 1, Super Highway Industrial Area, Karachi (hereinafter referred to as “Matco”,
which expression shall mean and include, where the context so requires or admits, its successors-in-
interest and permitted assigns);

AND

MATCO CORN PRODUCTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED, a private company limited by shares, incorporated and
existing under the laws of Pakistan and having its registered office at Plot No. 8-C (3rd and 4th Floors),
Shahbaz Lane No. 2, Phase VI, D.H.A,, Karachi (hereinafter referred to as “MCPPL”, which expression
shall mean and include, where the context so requires or admits, its successors-in-interest and
permitted assigns);

AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE MEMBERS.
RECITALS
WHEREAS by this Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”), it is, inter alia, proposed that:

1. The undertaking, comprising the Assets, Liabilities and Obligations, of Matco shall be spilt into
2 (two) separate segments i.e. the Corn Starch Undertaking and the Retained Undertaking.

2, The segment, comprising all the Assets, Liabilities and Obligations, pertaining to the Corn
Starch Undertaking shall be carved out and, as at the Effective Date, stand merged with,
transferred to, vested in, and be assumed by MCPPL,

3. As consideration for the above, it is proposed that MCPPL Shares shall be issued to Matco in
accordance with this Scheme.

4, Upon the merger and transfer of the Corn Starch Undertaking to MCPPL in the manner
prescribed under this Scheme, Matco shall continue to own and operate the Retained
Undertaking, while the Corn Starch Undertaking shall vest in MCPPL, and both the companies
shall continue to exist as independent companies without either company being wound up.

5. This Scheme, if approved through a resolution by the requisite majority of the respective
members of Matco and MCPPL, along with the requisite majority of creditors (as may be
applicable), and sanctioned by the Court by an order passed in this respect, is to be binding
on Matco and MCPPL along with all the members, creditors, employees, Customers,
contracting parties, governments, tax and regulatory / statutory authorities, bodies and
departments of, or with respect to, Matco and MCPPL (as applicable) respectively.

2



BENEFITS OF THIS SCHEME

Arrangement Between Matco, MCPPL and their Respective Members

The Amalgamation shall allow Matco and MCPPL (being the holding company and the wholly
owned subsidiary company respectively) to effectuate the arrangement envisaged by the
parties, including the companies and their respective members, through the provisions of
sections 279 to 283 and 285(8) of the Act, in a seamless and tax efficient manner.

Separation of Businesses of Matco being Distinct in Nature

The corn starch business division / segment of Matco, which commenced in 2021, is entirely
distinct from the rest of Matco’s business and operations, comprising processing and export of
rice, rice glucose, rice protein, pink salt, masala and kheer; in fact, the assets related to the corn
starch segment are located in a different facility and serve a distinct business line that does not
overlap with the core rice operations of Matco, including from an operational perspective,
Furthermore, the corn starch division also follows an independent business plan and separate
strategies from the rest of Matco’s operations.

Since each of the business undertakings / segments of Matco are different from one another,
it is prudent and beneficial to separate these segments so that the same can be managed,
operated and developed independently and effectively. Furthermore, by separating the
business segments (pursuant to the Amalgamation), the individual companies shall have
unique identities and a more focussed business and customer base.

Objectives of Long Term Growth and Expansion

Separation of the Corn Starch Undertaking from Matco, and merger of the same with and into
MCPPL, will allow the management of MCPPL to focus on the business segment intended to be
carried out by it, resulting in better performance of the same. The management of MCPPL shall
be able to apply their skills and experience towards the long term growth of MCPPL and even
potentially expand the business, which will ultimately benefit the stakeholders of Matco. The
separation of the business segments will also allow Matco and MCPPL to direct their efforts
towards the applicable segments, thus providing greater stability and allowing the respective
companies to thrive in growing markets which will benefit the shareholders and the companies.

Distribution of Risk

The separation of the Corn Starch Undertaking from Matco, and the amalgamation of the same
with and into MCPPL, shall distribute the risk of carrying on business. Subsequent to the
Amalgamation, loss, damage, market variation and / or other potential risks arising out of any
adverse and uncertain operating environment with respect to one business segment will not
necessarily undermine or have a detrimental impact on the other. This shall provide greater
stability to each company and protection to the shareholders of Matco.




Specialization

The Amalgamation would allow each of Matco and MCPPL to focus on, and specialize in, their
respective businesses / segments, using the facilities and managements available to the
companies more effectively, including enhancing quality assurance, optimization of asset
utilization, focussed marketing and sales activities, improving financial planning and long-term
strategic goals, potentially making them leading market suppliers, which is expected result in
greater revenue.

At the same time, since Matco will continue to be the holding company of MCPPL (as a
consequence of this Scheme), it will still be in a position to oversee, supervise and control the
business and operations of MCPPL (to the extent applicable), while the management of MCPPL
shall operate the businesses on a regular basis. This structure would result in the businesses
being managed and carried out in a more effective and efficient manner, thus benefitting
Matco's shareholders.

Preferable for Investors

Business strategies involving the specialization of fields, particularly where the business
segments have potential and / or are large enough to diversify and expand within the field, are
also more attractive to investors which may potentially result in more equity and growth for
the respective companies (and ultimately benefit Matco and its shareholders). This will benefit
the shareholders of Matco, including in the event that investors are introduced to invest in the
shares of MCPPL (including through sale of the same).

Cost Savings

The Amalgamation would enable Matco and MCPPL, and their shareholders, to save costs
under the applicable laws while effectuating the envisaged arrangements.



NOW THEREFORE, this Scheme is presented as follows:

L1,

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

In this Scheme, including in the recitals and benefits above, unless the subject or context
otherwise requires, the following expressions shall bear the meanings specified against them
below:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2017;
“Amalgamation” shall have the same meaning as prescribed thereto in Article 2.1;

“Annexure A” is the annexure attached hereta which contains the pro forma split balance
sheet of Matco, indicative as at the Determination Date, illustrating / detailing the break-ups
of the Corn Starch Undertaking and Retained Undertaking, inclusive of certain notes, which is
to be updated as on the Effective Date in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme;

“Annexure B” is the annexure attached hereto which lists the current members of the Board
of Directors of Matco;

“Annexure C” is the annexure attached hereto which lists the current members of the Board
of Directors of MCPPL;

“Annexure D” is the annexure attached hereto which lists the current Corn Starch
Undertaking Employees;

“Annexure E” is the annexure attached hereto containing the Letter;

“Assets” mean assets, properties and rights of every description and kind (whether present
or future, actual or contingent, tangible or intangible) and includes properties held on trust
and benefit of securities obtained from Customers, benefits, interests, powers, rights,
authorities, privileges, contracts, Government consents, Government subsidies, tax refunds /
credits, tax protections, remissions and exemptions (including holding period of such assets
and liabilities along with all the rights attached and accrued thereto including, but not limited
to, equity-based tax credits for unexpired periods), sanctions and authorizations, including all
registrations, licences, certifications, approvals, Claims, no objection certificates / letters,
permits, categories, exemptions, quotas, entitlements, sanctions, empowerments,
dispensations, charters, immunities, grants, prerogatives, permissions and benefits relating to
the business / company, all trademarks, patents, copyrights, intellectual property rights
(whether registered or not), licences, liberties, secret processes, know-how, good-will, data
and confidential information belonging / pertaining to a company. Without in any way limiting
or prejudicing the generality of the foregoing, it is hereby clarified that the term ‘Assets’ shall
include: (i) all properties, immovable and movable, real, corporeal or incorporeal, in
possession or reversion, present or contingent of whatsoever nature and wheresoever
situated belonging to a company, as well as equity, stocks, debentures, bonds, rights under
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futures, options, derivative contracts, commodities etc. (and all rights, titles, interests and
easements associated therewith); (ii) all inventory, stock-in trade, raw materials, ingredients,
packaging, consignments from shipments, consumable stores, plant, machinery, equipment,
furniture and fixtures, work-in-progress, computer hardware and software, software
applications and licences, motor vehicles, office and laboratory equipment and supplies,
appliances and accessories, spare parts and tools; (iii) all Claims, choses-in-action,
instruments, decretal amounts, bank and other accounts, cash balances, goodwill, revaluation
surplus, reserve funds, revenue halances, investments, interest / profit / dividends accrued on
investments, loans, advances, guarantees, deposits, prepayments, receivables, book debts,
trade debts and all other rights and interest in and arising out of such property in the
ownership, possession, power or control of a company, whether legal or beneficial, whether
within or out of Pakistan; (iv) all books of accounts, registers, records, information, data,
documents of title, reports, policies, surveys, research, advertising or other promotional
material, and all other documents of whatever nature relating thereto, in every form; (v) all
benefits and rights under Contracts, including rights under or relating to Contracts; (vi) all the
utility connections, equipment, installations and facilities for telecommunications, electricity,
gas, water, sewerage and other installations, owned by, or leased or licensed to, a company
(including related deposits); (vii) the Contingent Claims, tax credits / carry forward losses and
proceeds realized from the Liquidation of the Contingent Claims; (viii) unadjusted tax
receivables / losses and tax refunds; (ix) sales tax carry forward balance and sales tax refunds;
(x) any subsidy receivable claims; and (xi) registrations, approvals, certifications and licences
with / from any and all regulatory authorities and bodies, the Federal Board of Revenue,
Provincial Boards of Revenue, including in respect of income tax, sales tax, excise duty and
otherwise;

“CDC” means the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited;

“CDS” means the Central Depository System (an electronic book entry system for the
recording and transfer of securities, established under the Central Depositories Act, 1997 and
maintained by the CDC);

“Claim” means claim, counter-claim, demand or cause of action and includes a Contingent
Claim;

“Contingent Claims” means any potential Claim that a company may have against any person
prior to the Effective Date which may not be disclosed or reflected as part of its Assets on its
books or records;

“Contracts” means any contracts, agreements, deeds, instruments, insurance policies, letters
or undertakings of every description, creating any obligations enforceable against the parties
thereto, including any finance agreements;

“Corn Starch Undertaking” means all the Assets, Liabilities and Obligations of Matco, which
are to be demerged from Matco and merged with and into MCPPL, as more specifically
ascertained in terms of the pro forma indicative split balance sheet of Matco, appearing in
Annexure A (along with all related and incidental Assets, Liabilities and Obligations in respect
thereof), which shall be updated as on the Effective Date in accordance with the provisions of
this Scheme;




“Corn Starch Undertaking Employees” means all the employees of Matco who are employed
wholly or principally for the purposes of the business segment pertaining to the Corn Starch
Undertaking immediately prior to the date of sanction of this Scheme, or the Effective Date,
whichever is later, the current list of which is stipulated in Annexure D;

“Court” means the High Court of Sindh at Karachi, or any other Court / authority for the time
being having jurisdiction under the Act in connection with the arrangements under this
Scheme (including the Amalgamation);

“Customer” means any person having entered into a transaction, arrangement or other
dealing with a company;

“Determination Date” means the close of business at 23:59 hours on December 31, 2024;
“Effective Date” shall have the same meaning as prescribed thereto in Article 3.1;

“existing” means existing, outstanding or in force immediately prior to the Effective Date
(unless stated otherwise);

“Letter” means the letter dated May 16, 2025, issued by Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman to
the respective Board of Directors of Matco and MCPPL, attached hereto as Annexure E,
pertaining to the Amalgamation and ancillary matters thereto, including the issuance of the
MCPPL Shares;

“Liabilities and Obligations” includes all borrowings, liabilities, duties, commitments and
obligations of every description (whether present or future, actual or contingent) arising out
of any Contract, law or otherwise whatsoever, and all Securities, and the term “Liabilities”
and “Obligations” are used interchangeably and / or in conjunction with each other;

“Liquidation” means the release, compromise, satisfaction, settlement or reduction to
judgment of any Claim by a competent court of law;

“Matco” shall have the meaning as prescribed in the Preamble above;

“MCPPL” shall have the meaning as prescribed in the Preamble above;

“MCPPL Shares” means the ordinary shares, having face value of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten)
each, in the share capital of MCPPL;

“Retained Undertaking” means all the Assets, Liabilities and QObligations of Matco, excluding
the Corn Starch Undertaking, which shall be retained by Matco (as also identifiable in terms
of the pro forma split balance sheet of Matco appearing in Annexure A (along with all related
and incidental Assets, Liabilities and Obligations in respect thereof), which shall be updated
as on the Effective Date in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme);

“Scheme” means this Scheme of Arrangement, in its present form with any modifications
thereof or additions thereto, approved or with any conditions imposed by the Court; and



3.2

2.1

“Security” or “Securities” means interest, right or title in and to any and all mortgages,
encumbrances or charges (whether legal or equitable), debenture, bill of exchange,
promissory note, guarantee, lien, pledge (whether actual or constructive), hypothecation,
assignment by way of security, right of set-off, undertaking or other means of securing
payment or discharge of any Liabilities and Obligations.

In this Scheme, unless specified otherwise:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(wvil)

(viii)

(ix)

the headings in this Scheme are for convenience only and shall not affect the
construction or interpretation thereof;

a reference to any legislation or legislative provision includes any statutory
modification of, or re-enactment of, or legislative provision substituted for, and any
subordinate legislation under that legislation or legislative provision;

a reference to any agreement or document is to that agreement or document and,
where applicable, any of its provisions, as amended, novated, restated or replaced
from time to time;

a reference to an Article or Annexure is to an article or annexure of or to this Scheme;

words denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;

a reference to a person includes a company, firm, trust, authority or government and
vice versa;

a reference to any person includes that person’s executors, administrators,
successors, legal heirs, and permitted assigns;

“including” and “include” shall be deemed to mean “including, without limitation”
and “include, without limitation”; and

the word “hereof”, “herein”, “hereto” and "hereunder” and words of similar import

when used, with the required linguistic and / or grammatical derivation, in this
Scheme refer to this Scheme as a whole and not to any particular provision thereof.

ARTICLE 2

OBIJECTS OF THE SCHEME

The principal object of this Scheme is to separate / demerge the Corn Starch Undertaking from
Matco and amalgamate the same with and into MCPPL, by transferring to, merging with and
vesting in MCPPL the whole of the Corn Starch Undertaking, including all Assets, Liabilities and
Obligations of the Corn Starch Undertaking, as of the Effective Date (the “Amalgamation”),
against the allotment and issue of MCPPL Shares to Matco, in accordance with the provisions
of this Scheme.



2.2,

2.3,

3.

3.2.

8.3

4.1.

It is hereby clarified that although all of the above steps will take place on the same date
(unless otherwise detailed in this Scheme), the same shall be deemed to be effective as of the
Effective Date.

The Retained Undertaking shall not be transferred to or vest in MCPPL as a consequence of
the Amalgamation / Scheme, and the same shall remain part of Matco after the
Amalgamation.

ARTICLE 3
EFFECTIVE DATE

This Scheme shall become operative and bind Matco and MCPPL as soon as an order is passed
by the Court under Sections 279 / 282 of the Act, sanctioning this Scheme and making the
necessary provisions under Section 282 of the Act (along with other enabling provisions under
the applicable laws). When this Scheme becomes operative upon its sanction, the
Amalgamation (along with all other matters), in accordance with this Scheme, will be treated
as having effect from the start of business at 00:00 hours on July 1, 2025, or such other date
as may be stated by the Court (hereinafter referred to as the “Effective Date”). Each company
shall file a certified copy of the order passed by the Court with the Registrar of Companies,
Karachi in accordance with Section 279 of the Act.

Accordingly, as of the Effective Date and thereafter, until the Corn Starch Undertaking
(including the Assets, Liabilities and Obligations thereof) is actually physically transferred to
and vested in MCPPL, and all mandatory regulatory or third party related formalities, if any,
required to be separately completed are fulfilled / completed, in terms of this Scheme, the
business of Matco, to the extent of the Corn Starch Undertaking, will be deemed to have been
carried for and on account and for the benefit of MCPPL.

All income, profits, gains and losses accruing or arising to, or incurred by, Matco (including any
taxes paid or deducted or withheld), with respect to the Corn Starch Undertaking, from the
Effective Date shall be treated as the income, profits, gains or losses (including any taxes paid
or deducted or withheld), as the case may be, of MCPPL. Furthermore, the reserves, including
un-appropriated profits and revaluation surplus of Matco, up to and immediately preceding
the Effective Date, if any, to the extent allocated for the Corn Starch Undertaking, shall
constitute and be treated as reserves / losses of a corresponding nature in MCPPL, and shall
be accounted for on that basis in the books of account of MCPPL.

ARTICLE 4

CAPITAL

The authorized share capital of Matco is PKR 2,000,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Two Billion), divided
into 200,000,000 (Two Hundred Million) ordinary shares of PKR 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each,
out of which 122,400,698 (One Hundred Twenty Two Million Four Hundred Thousand Six
Hundred Ninety Eight) ordinary shares have been issued, fully subscribed to and paid up.



4.2.

4.3.

5.1,

5.2.

23!

5.4.

6.1.

The authorized share capital of MCPPL is PKR 1,500,000,000/- (Pak Rupees One Billion Five
Hundred Million), divided into 150,000,000 (One Hundred Fifty Million) ordinary shares of PKR
10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each, out of which 10,000 (Ten Thousand) ordinary shares have been
issued, fully subscribed to and paid up.

It is hereby clarified that consequent upon this Scheme becoming effective, the authorized
share capital of Matco and MCPPL shall remain unchanged.

ARTICLE S
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The current directors of Matco are listed in Annexure B.
The current directors of MCPPL are listed in Annexure C.

The respective directors of Matco and MCPPL are expected to continue as the directors of the
respective companies after the Amalgamation / sanction of this Scheme, subject to compliance
with the applicable laws and / or their ceasing to be directors in the meantime due to any
reason(s) and appointments being made to the vacancies thus created and / or fresh elections
being held prior to the sanction of this Scheme in compliance with applicable laws.

All the respective directors of Matco and MCPPL have interest in the Amalgamation to the
extent of their respective directorships and (direct and / or indirect) sharehaoldings in the said
companies (to the extent applicable). The effect of this Scheme on the interest of these
directors does not differ from the respective interests of the members of each of Matco and
MCPPL, except to the extent stipulated in this Scheme, if any. MCPPL is currently a wholly
owned subsidiary of Matco i.e. all the shares of MCPPL are beneficially wholly owned by Matco
(including through its nominees).

ARTICLE 6
AMALGAMATION
General Description
(i) Subject to the sanction of this Scheme, and as of the Effective Date, the entire Corn

Starch Undertaking shall be demerged / separated from Matco, as a going concern
(without discontinuation) for the purpose of all laws, standards and conventions, and
be amalgamated with, stand transferred to and vest in MCPPL upon the terms and
conditions set forth in this Scheme without any further act, deed, matter or thing,
process or procedure.

(ii) MCPPL shall be able to carry out all the business with respect to the Corn Starch
Undertaking and shall be entitled to all the rights and the benefits thereof.

(iii) The Retained Undertaking shall be retained by Matco.
10



6.2.

6.3.

(iv)

In consideration of the Amalgamation, MCPPL shall allot and issue MCPPL Shares to
Matco in accordance with Article 9.

Transfer of the Assets

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

As of the Effective Date, all the Assets comprised in the Corn Starch Undertaking, shall
immediately, without any conveyance or transfer, and without any further act or
deed, be vested in and become the undertaking and Assets of MCPPL, which shall
have, hold and enjoy the same in its own right as fully as the same were possessed,
held and enjoyed by Matco prior to the Amalgamation.

The vesting / transfer of the Assets comprising the Corn Starch Undertaking shall be
subject to all Securities subsisting thereon (if any), including in the manner prescribed
under this Scheme.

It is clarified that any licences, permits, quotas, rights, permissions, certifications,
concessions, privileges, sanctions, approvals, registrations, empowerments,
dispensations, charters, immunities, grants, exceptions, entitlements etc. in relation
to the business or undertaking of Matco, which are, or may be, applicable to the Corn
Starch Undertaking and the Retained Undertaking (and the operations and business
pertaining thereto), the benefit of which Matco may be eligible and which are
subsisting or having effect immediately prior to the Effective Date, shall, from the
Effective Date, continue to vest in Matco for the joint benefit, use and entitlement of
Matco and MCPPL. The benefits, rights and entitlements with respect to the same
(including the applicability thereof) shall be shared by Matco and MCPPL without any
further act or deed till such time that the same expire, and are renewed or separately
procured by the respective companies.

As part of this Scheme, since the Corn Starch Undertaking (which shall vest in MCPPL)
shall be treated as operating on a continuing basis, MCPPL shall be entitled to use the
past performance history of Matco as MCPPL’s past performance (i.e. the same shall
he deemed to be MCPPL's past performance history as well as that of Matco, as
though the same was jointly carried out by Matco and MCPPL) to, inter alia, enable
MCPPL to apply for any Export Refinance Facility, Long Term Financing Facility, bond
facilities, etc. as may be permitted.

Transfer of Liabilities and Obligations

(i)

(i)

As of the Effective Date, all the Liabilities and Obligations, to the extent relevant to
the Corn Starch Undertaking, including the Liabilities and Obligations towards the
secured creditors of Matco with respect to the Corn Starch Undertaking (as identified
in this Scheme), shall immediately, and without any further act or deed, be assumed
by and beceme the Liabilities and Obligations of MCPPL, which shall pay, undertake,
satisfy, discharge and perform, when due, all such Liabilities and Obligations.

It is clarified that the Corn Starch Undertaking comprises a portion of Matco’s long-

term secured financing, lease liabilities and short-term secured borrowing, as

identified in Annexure A (and which shall be updated as on the Effective Date in
11



6.4,

6.5.

accordance with the provisions of this Scheme). Such financing arrangements
(including all related Liabilities and Obligations) shall be demerged from Matco, and
shall stand transferred to, vested in and assumed by MCPPL as part of the
Amalgamation. Consequently, MCPPL shall be the obligor towards the relevant
secured creditors with respect to such financing arrangements (i.e. the Liabilities and
Obligations of Matco towards such secured creditors, to the extent of such financing
arrangements, shall vest with MCPPL).

(iii) Having said that, the Securities over the Assets comprising the Corn Starch
Undertaking in favour of any secured creditors of Matco, if any, shall subsist, in the
manner detailed in Article 6.12(iv), and continue to secure the relevant facilities
availed by Matco (i.e. as they did prior to the sanction of this Scheme, and subject to
the release / vacation thereof), as well as the relevant facilities of Matco that stand
transferred to and vested in MCPPL (as part of the Corn Starch Undertaking) pursuant
to this Scheme, including as third-party security. Approval to this Scheme by the
members of MCPPL shall constitute requisite approval {by way of special resolution)
under the applicable laws, including under Section 199 of the Act, for provision of such
security in favour of the secured creditors of Matco on a continuing basis (till the same
are released).

(iv) Furthermore, the Securities over the Assets comprising the Retained Undertaking in
favour of the secured creditors of Matco, if any, shall subsist and continue to secure
the relevant facilities availed by Matco (i.e. as they did prior to the sanction of this
Scheme, and subject to the release / vacation thereof), as well as the relevant facilities
of Matco that stand transferred to and vested in MCPPL (as part of the Corn Starch
Undertaking) pursuant to this Scheme, including as third-party security, in the manner
detailed in this Scheme. Approval to this Scheme by the members of Matco shall
constitute requisite approval (by way of special resolution) under the applicable laws,
including under Section 199 of the Act, for provision of such security in favour of the
secured creditors of MCPPL on a continuing basis (till the same are released).

MCPPL’s Right to Execute Deeds

Deeds, assignments or similar instruments to evidence the aforesaid transfer of Assets and /
or assumption of Obligations and Liabilities with respect to the Corn Starch Undertaking may,
if required, at any time be executed by officers and / ar directors of MCPPL authorized in this
regard.

References to Assets and Liabilities and Obligations

Any reference in this Scheme to Assets or Liabilities and Obligations comprised in the Corn
Starch Undertaking is a reference to Assets or Liabilities and Obligations comprised in the Corn
Starch Undertaking (and as determined in terms of this Scheme) to which Matco is for the
time being entitled or subject to (whether beneficially or in any fiduciary capacity)
immediately preceding the Effective Date, wherever such Assets or Obligations and Liabilities
are situated or arise, and whether or not capable of being transferred or assigned to or by
Matco under any applicable law or instrument.

12



6.6.

6.7,

6.8.

6.9.

Assets held in Trust, etc.

Any Asset comprised in the Corn Starch Undertaking which immediately before the Effective
Date was held by Matco as trustee or custodian in the form of any trust deed, settlement,
covenant, agreement or will or as executor of the will, or administrator of the estate of a
deceased person or as judicial trustee appointed by order of any court, or in any other
fiduciary capacity, shall, as of the Effective Date, be held by MCPPL in the same capacity upon
the trusts, subject to the powers, provisions and Liabilities applicable thereto.

Contracts

Every Contract to which Matco is a party, which pertains to the Corn Starch Undertaking, shall
have effect as of the Effective Date as if:

(1 MCPPL had been a party thereto instead of Matco; and

(ii) For any reference (however worded and whether express orimplied) to Matco therein
shall stand substituted, as respects anything to be done as of the Effective Date, to a
reference to MCPPL.

Bank Accounts

The accounts maintained by Matco, which pertain to the Corn Starch Undertaking , with any
bank or financial institution, as detailed below (and / or as otherwise identified by Matco),
shall, as of the date of sanction of this Scheme, but with effect from the Effective Date,
become account(s) between MCPPL and such bank or financial institution, subject to the same
conditions and incidents as therefore; provided that nothing herein shall affect any right of
MCPPL to vary the conditions or incidents subject to which any account is kept:

Name of Bank

MCB Bank
Limited

Meezan Bank
Limited

Branch

Account Title

FIEDMC Branch Sahianwala,
Br. Code 1893

Matco Foods
Limited

Account No. |

PK94 MUCB 0911
9916 8100 2043

Chak Jhumra Branch, Br.
Code 1260

Matco Foods
Limited

PKO8 MEZN 0012
6001 0683 5150

MCB Bank
Limited

Circular Road Corp. Branch,
Br. Code 0326

Habib Bank
Limited

Matco Foods
Limited

PK66 MUCB 0530
1301 5100 0385

Chak Jhumra Branch, Br.
Code 0672

Matco Foods
Limited

PK23 HABB 0006
72790118 1903

Instructions

Any existing instruction, order, direction, mandate, power of attorney, authority, undertaking
or consent given to Matco in writing (pertaining to the Corn Starch Undertaking) shall have
effect, as of the Effective Date, as if given to MCPPL.

13




6.10.

6.11.

6.12.

Negotiable Instruments

Any negotiable instrument or arder for payment of money drawn on or given to, or accepted
orendorsed by, Matco, or payable at any place of business of Matco, whether so drawn, given,
accepted or endorsed before, as of the Effective Date, with respect to matters comprising the
Corn Starch Undertaking, shall have the same effect as of the Effective Date, as if it had been
drawn on, or given to, or accepted or endorsed by MCPPL, or were payable at the place of
business of MCPPL.

Custody of Documents

The custody of any document, record or goods held by Matco as bailee and duly recorded in
their books that pass to Matco under any Contract of bailment relating to any such document,
record or goods, which pertain to the Corn Starch Undertaking, shall, on the Effective Date,
become rights and obligations of MCPPL.

Securities:

(i) Any Security held immediately before the Effective Date by Matco or by a nominee or
agent of or trustee for Matco, as security for the payment or discharge of any liability
and obligation of a Customer, with respect to the Corn Starch Undertaking, shall, as
of the Effective Date, be held by MCPPL, or, as the case may require, by that nominee,
agent or trustee for MCPPL and be available to MCPPL (whether for its own benefit
or, as the case may be, for the benefit of any other person) as security for the payment
or discharge of that liability and obligation.

(ii) In relation to any Security vested in MCPPL in accordance with provisions of this
Scheme and any Liabilities and Obligations thereby secured, MCPPL shall be entitled
to the rights and priorities to which Matco would have been entitled if they had
continued to hold the Security.

(iii) Any Security referred to in the foregoing provisions of this paragraph which extends
to future advances or liabilities (pertaining to the Corn Starch Undertaking) shall, as
of the Effective Date, be available to MCPPL (whether for its own benefit or as the
case may be, for the benefit of any other person) as security for the payment or
discharge of future advances and future liabilities to the same extent and in the same
manner in all respects as future advances by or liabilities to, Matco or, as the case may
be, MCPPL were secured thereby immediately before that time (to the extent
applicable to the Corn Starch Undertaking).

(iv) All Securities of any nature (whether legal or equitable) granted / created by Matco,
over the Assets comprising the Corn Starch Undertaking, in favour of its secured
creditors (including where the same have been (or shall, pursuant to this Scheme be)
provided as third party security), if any, will continue to remain operative and
effective as Securities in favour of such secured creditors (including to secure the
financing arrangements vested in MCPPL pursuant to this Scheme) in the manner
detailed below, unless the same have been vacated / released prior to the sanction of
this Scheme. In this respect, upon the Amalgamation (and the sanction of this
Scheme):

14



6.13.

6.14.

(a) the pari passu Security holders of Matco, having Securities over the present
and future Assets of Matco (excluding land and building), or any part or class
thereof, forming part of the Corn Starch Undertaking, shall rank pari passu
with the pari passu Security holders of MCPPL (if any), having Securities over
the same (class of) present and future Assets (excluding land and building) of
MCPPL;

(b) the ranking Security holders of Matco, having ranking charges / Securities
over the present and future Assets of Matco (excluding land and building), or
any part or class thereof, forming part of the Corn Starch Undertaking, shall
continue to be treated as ranking charges / Securities over the combined
Assets (or same class thereof) of MCPPL. The ranking of such charges /
Securities (including the ranking of Securities created by MCPPL in favour of
its creditors, if any) shall be determined based on the date on which the same
were registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan,
irrespective of which company had created the same;

(c) any first exclusive charge or Security interest, including by way of pledge,
granted to a creditor of Matco, by Matco, over specific assets of Matco
forming part of the Corn Starch Undertaking, will continue to remain and
retain its priority over such specific Assets forming part of the Corn Starch
Undertaking (which stand merged with and into MCPPL), notwithstanding the
time of creation and registration of any other charge / Security; and

(d) any mortgage over an immovable property of Matco forming part of the Corn
Starch Undertaking (if any), granted in favour of a creditor of Matco, shall
continue to remain as is (i.e. over such immovable property which stands
transferred to and vested in MCPPL, as part of the Corn Starch Undertaking,
upon the Amalgamation),

Legal Proceedings

Where by virtue of this Scheme any right, Claim or Liability of Matco pertaining to the Corn
Starch Undertaking, becomes a right, Claim or Liability of MCPPL as of the Effective Date,
MCPPL shall have the same rights, claims, powers and remedies (and in particular the same
rights, Claims and powers as to taking or resisting legal proceedings or making or resisting
applications to any authority) for ascertaining, perfecting or enforcing that right, Claim or
Liability as if it had at all times been a right, Claim or Liability of MCPPL, and any legal
proceedings or application to any authority existing or pending immediately before the
Effective Date by or against Matco with respect to the Corn Starch Undertaking may be
continued by or against MCPPL.

Judgments

Any judgment or award obtained by or against Matco with respect to the Corn Starch
Undertaking and not fully satisfied before the Effective Date shall at that time, to the extent
to which it is enforceable by or against Matco with respect to the Corn Starch Undertaking,
become enforceable by or against MCPPL.
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6.15.

6.16.

6.17.

7.1,

2.

8.1.

8.2.

Evidence

All books and other documents which would, before the Effective Date, have been evidenced
in respect of any matter, for or against Matco with respect to the Corn Starch Undertaking,
shall be admissible in evidence in respect of the same matter for or against MCPPL.

Authorizations

Any authorizations / powers of attorney granted by Matco to any persons (and particularly
the Corn Starch Undertaking Employees) with respect to matters pertaining to the Corn Starch
Undertaking shall continue to subsist subsequent to the Amalgamation and shall be deemed
to be authorizations / powers of attorney granted by MCPPL to such persons, until or unless
otherwise revoked or modified by MCPPL.

Clarification

The provisions contained in Articles 6.2 to 6.16 above are without prejudice to the generality
of any other provisions in this Scheme, but subject to any specific provision in this Scheme
which expressly has the contrary effect.

ARTICLE 7
CERTAIN OBLIGATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS

Upon the Amalgamation, MCPPL shall take all necessary and expedient steps to properly and
efficiently manage the entire business pertaining to the Corn Starch Undertaking and affairs
thereof, and shall operate and promote its entire business and affairs in the normal course.

Upon the sanction of this Scheme, but with effect from the Effective Date, MCPPL shall
undertake, pay, satisfy, discharge, perform and fulfil the Liabilities and Obligations, Contracts,
engagements and commitments whatsoever of Matco with respect to the Corn Starch
Undertaking.

ARTICLE 8
THE SCHEME’S EFFECT

The provisions of this Scheme shall be effective and binding by operation of law and shall
become effective in terms of Article 3.

The execution and / or sanction of this Scheme, and the implementation of the Amalgamation,
shall not: (i) constitute any assignment, transfer, devolution, conveyance, alienation, parting
with possession, or other disposition under any law for the time being in force; (ii) give rise to
any forfeiture; (iii) invalidate or discharge any Contract or Security (except to the extent
stipulated in this Scheme); (iv) give rise to any right of first refusal or pre-emptive right that
any person may have in respect of any investment made by such person in Matco and / or
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8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

9%

8.2

MCPPL; and / or {v) constitute a contractual transfer, but instead a vesting by operation of
law.

Without prejudice to the Amalgamation being effective on the Effective Date, in the event any
further acts, deeds, matters or things, process or procedures are required to be fulfilled /
completed by any regulatory authority or third party for the physical and practical
commencement of the business of Matco, to the extent of the Corn Starch Undertaking, as a
going concern by MCPPL, the same shall be treated as actions and deeds in pursuance, and
for the purposes, of implementing this Scheme, and not as separate transactions of transfer
or otherwise between Matco and MCPPL.

Upon the sanction of this Scheme, and with effect from the Effective Date, the terms of this
Scheme shall be binding on Matco and MCPPL, and also on all the respective shareholders /
members of Matco and MCPPL, the Customers of each of Matco and MCPPL, the creditors of
the companies and on any other person having any right or liability in relation to either of
them.

On the date of sanction of this Scheme, and with effect from the Effective Date, this Scheme
will override the constitution / constitutive documents of the respective companies, to the
extent of any inconsistency.

ARTICLE 9
CONSIDERATION FOR THE AMALGAMATION AND RELATED MATTERS

As consideration for the Amalgamation, MCPPL shall allot and issue an aggregate of
121,513,981 (One Hundred Twenty One Million Five Hundred Thirteen Thousand Nine
Hundred Eighty One) MCPPL Shares to Matco, credited as fully paid up, at par, as approved
by the Board of Directors of each of Matco and MCPPL, based on the (i) audited special
purpose financial statements of Matco for the half year ended December 31, 2024 (including
the determination / break-up of the Corn Starch Undertaking); and (ii) calculations as stated
in the Letter, under the net asset value approach. The Letter has been adopted by the
respective Board of Directors of each of Matco and MCPPL.

The allotment of the MCPPL Shares (in accordance with the provisions of this Article 8) shall
be made by MCPPL within 45 (forty five) days from the date of sanction of this Scheme. The
share certificates for such shares shall be made ready for delivery as soon as practicable
thereafter and notices of their readiness for their delivery shall be given to Matco in the
manner provided in the Articles of Association of MCPPL. Share certificates not collected
within the time specified in any such notice shall be sent by post in prepaid envelopes
addressed to Matco at its registered address. MCPPL shall not be responsible for loss of the
share certificates in such transmission. Alternatively, in the event that the MCPPL Shares are
or have been inducted in book entry form through the CDS, book entries relating to the MCPPL
Shares to be issued in terms of this Article 9 shall be credited into the CDC account / sub-
account of Matco. Such allotment / issuance shall be carried out in accordance with the rules
and regulations of the CDC.
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9.3.

9.4.

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

1.3,

The MCPPL Shares, allotted and issued to Matco in accordance with the provisions of this
Scheme, shall, in all respects, rank pori possu with the ordinary shares of MCPPL and shall be
entitled to all dividends declared by MCPPL after the date of sanction of this Scheme.

The MCPPL Shares, to be issued by MCPPL in accordance with this Article 9, shall be recorded
in the books of account of MCPPL at par value. As a consequence of the Amalgamation, where
required, including to balance and adjust the books of MCPPL (and / or factor in any
differential amount) as of the Effective Date, the shareholders’ equity of MCPPL shall stand
adjusted, as per the applicable legal and accounting framework, to take into account the
carrying values of the net assets comprised in the Corn Starch Undertaking which shall vest in
MCPPL pursuant to this Scheme.

ARTICLE 10
DETERMINATION / ILLUSTRATION OF THE UNDERTAKINGS

The Assets, Liabilities, and Obligations comprising the Corn Starch Undertaking and Retained
Undertaking have been determined by the Board of Directors of Matco, and are based on the
audited special purpose financial statements of Matco for the half year ended December 31,
2024.

A pro forma split balance sheet, indicative as at the Determination Date, has been prepared
by Matco, attached hereto as Annexure A, which illustrates / details the break-ups of the Corn
Starch Undertaking and Retained Undertaking, inclusive of certain notes.

The numbers / details / balances appearing in the pro forma split balance sheet of Matco,
including the break-ups of the Corn Starch Undertaking and Retained Undertaking, shall be
updated for actuals (per line item) as on the Effective Date (subject to the sanction of this
Scheme). For the purposes of the same, a split / segment wise balance sheet shall be prepared
by Matco with respect to the Assets, Liabilities and Obligations of Matco comprising each of
the Corn Starch Undertaking and Retained Undertaking, as reflected in the books of accounts
of Matco (maintained in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme) existing immediately
prior to the Effective Date. For the purposes of the same, from the Determination Date,
transactions / arrangements allocated / attributed to, or forming part of, an undertaking of
Matco shall be recorded accordingly, and attributed / allocated to that respective undertaking
as on the Effective Date.

ARTICLE 11
BOOKS OF ACCOUNT
On and from the Determination Date, Matco shall maintain separate books and accounts with
respect to the Corn Starch Undertaking and Retained Undertaking (along with the books of

accounts pertaining to Matco as a whole). The same shall be based on the separation of
Assets, Liabilities and Obligations determined in accordance with this Scheme.
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11.2,

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

13.1.

It is clarified that any Assets acquired / disposed subsequent to the Effective Date, including
by way of trading, which are for the purposes of, or attributable to, the Corn Starch
Undertaking, and are recorded in such manner in the separate books and accounts being
maintained, shall form part of the Corn Starch Undertaking irrespective of the fact that the
same are routed through Matco.

ARTICLE 12
EMPLOYEES

On and from the sanction of this Scheme, but with effect from the Effective Date (or from the
Effective Date if the same occurs after the date of sanction of this Scheme), all full time officers
and employees (including workmen) of Matco, comprising the Corn Starch Undertaking
Employees existing on the Effective Date, shall become the employees of MCPPL (in lieu of
their employment with Matco) at the same level of remuneration and under similar terms and
conditions of service which they were receiving or, as the case may be, by which they were
governed immediately before the Effective Date, including those relating to entitlements and
benefits arising upon termination of services, on the basis of continuation of service (which
shall be taken into account for the purposes of all benefits to which such Corn Starch
Undertaking Employees may be eligible, including for the purpose of payment of any
retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other terminal benefits), except where the
employment of any such person(s) is terminated (including pursuant to resignation or
otherwise) prior to the sanction of this Scheme / Effective Date (whichever is later).

Matco's employees receive the benefit of a gratuity arrangement (based on terms and
conditions of employment), which is unfunded in nature, and is provided for in the accounts
of Matco. It is clarified that the determination of the Corn Starch Undertaking (vis-a-vis the
Retained Undertaking) has factored in proportionate amounts of the gratuity arrangement (as
at the Determination Date) relating to the Corn Starch Undertaking Employees {(and which
shall also stand vested in MCPPL).

Notwithstanding the list / details of the persons stipulated in Annexure D, subseguent to the
sanction of this Scheme or the Effective Date, whichever is later, the Board of Directors of
Matco shall finalize the list of the Corn Starch Undertaking Employees, and communicate the
same to MCPPL, which shall be final. Accordingly, the quantum of the proportionate amounts
of the gratuity arrangement allocated between the Corn Starch Undertaking and the Retained
Undertaking shall also stand updated as part of the exercise under Article 10.3.

ARTICLE 13
GENERAL
Modifications by the Court
This Scheme shall be subject to such modification of conditions, as the Court may deem

expedient to impose. The Board of Directors of Matco and MCPPL respectively may consent
to any modifications or additions to this Scheme or to any conditions which the Court may
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13.2.

13.3.

13.4,

13.5

think fit. In case of any difficulty in implementation of any aspect of this Scheme, clarifications,
directions and / or approvals may be obtained from the Court. Notwithstanding the above, in
the event that the terms of this Scheme are not approved by the members and / or creditors
of Matco and / or MCPPL (as applicable) in its entirety and / or this Scheme, as approved by
the respective companies, is modified by the Court, the Board of Directors of Matco and / or
MCPPL shall be entitled to withdraw this Scheme (whether or not approval from the members
and creditors of the respective companies has been obtained).

Severability

If any provision of this Scheme is found to be unlawful and unenforceable by a competent
court of law, then to the fullest extent possible, ail of the remaining provisions of this Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect.

Annexure

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Annexures to this Scheme
shall be subject to modification / revision (to the extent permitted under this Scheme and /
or to rectify any errors) so as to accurately and validly reflect the position existing as of the
Effective Date and all provisions contained herein shall be interpreted and construed
accordingly.

Costs and expenses

All costs, charges and expenses in respect of the preparation of this Scheme and carrying the
same into effect, till the sanction thereof, shall be borne by Matco. Subsequent to the sanction
of this Scheme, costs, charges and expenses shall be borne by the respective companies in
accordance with the applicable laws, or as otherwise agreed between the companies.

Implementation of this Scheme

The respective Board of Directors of Matco and MCPPL, to the extent applicable, are hereby
authorized and empowered to take all necessary steps and execute all documents, as they
may consider necessary, expedient or appropriate, to give effect to the provisions of this
Scheme and for the implementation hereof, including to delegate any powers from time to
time.
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Karachi.

Dated: M&% 9\.'_7) , 2025.

Q-

For and on behalf of
MATCO FOODS LIMITED

Mubommad Nleman Aot

Name:

7 o
Seuwier Maragen Aeceunh % e

Designation:

( Of,

For and on behalf of
MATCO CORN PRODUCTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

' ¢
Mudieemmod Neman Anar

Name:

L D P
_Qe{,-.,‘;-ﬂ' /] 7417\5‘,.5, Pz’f,;}e,gwfa, { Isinowsce -

Designation:
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“Annexure A"

“Annexure B”

“Annexure C"”

“Annexure D"

“Annexure E”

LIST OF ANNEXURES

Pro forma split balance sheet of Matco, indicative as at the Determination Date,
illustrating / detailing the break-ups of the Corn Starch Undertaking and the
Retained Undertaking, inclusive of certain notes, which is to be updated as on the
Effective Date in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme.

List of current members of Board of Directors of Matco.

List of current members of Board of Directors of MCPPL.

List of the current Corn Starch Undertaking Employees.

Letter dated May 16, 2025, issued by Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman.
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ANNEXURE A

PRO FORMA SPLIT BALANCE SHEET OF MATCO FOODS LIMITED
AS AT THE DETERMINATION DATE

Matco Foods Corn Starch Retained a
Limited Undertaking Undertaking
Note Rs.

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Praperty, plant and cquipment 1 11,060,363,361 2,629,064,441 8,431,298,920
Right-ol-use assets 2 429,529,702 174,131,232 255,308,470
Long-term deposits 20,708,550 - 20,708,550
Investment in subsidiary MCPPLY - - 1,215,139,810
Long-term investments 55,582,707 - 55,582,707
Total non-current assets 11,566,184,320 2,803,195,673 9,978,128,457
Current asscts
Stores, spares and loose tools 325,052,111 180,961,166 144,090,945
Stock inrrade 3 13,740,555,933 1,095,970,685 12,644,585,248
“T'adle debsts 4 2,578,489,075 503,371,726 | 2,075,117,349
Loans dand advances 1,754,941,120 358,077,362 1,396,863,758
Trade deposits and short teem prepaviments 13,031,348 - 13,031,348
Short-term mvestment 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
Sales ax refundable 25,000,000 - 25,000,000
Due from related partics 74,398,259 e 74,398,259
Laxaton - net 221,387,679 - 221,387,679
Cashoand bank balances 5 136,522,935 26,842,120 109,680,815
Total current assets 18,870,578,460 2,165,223,058 16,705,355,402
Total assets 30,436,762,780 4,968,418,731 26,683,483,859

\kw{f\///

Khalid Sarlfaraz Ghori Faizan Ali Ghori

Chief isecutive Officer I irvctin
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LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Long-term finances-secured 6 1,651,699,015 927,499,023 724,199,992
lease habilines 7 429,876,964 149,858,010 280,018,954
Deferred labilines 8 898,531,376 216,786,593 681,744,783
Total non-current liabilities 2,980,107,355 1,294,143,626 1,685,963,729
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 9 2,601,954,364 691,039,450 1,910,914,908
Advance from customers - secured 675,418,619 302,916,248 372,502,371
Veerued mark-up 221,588,252 8,812,288 212,775,964
Due to related party 6,412,777 - 6,412,777
Short-rerm borrowings-sceured 10 13,724,816,475 1,084,673,759 12,640,142,716
Unpaid dividend 1,093,324 - 1,093,324
Total current habilitics 17,231,283,811 2,087,441,752 15,143,842,0539
Total labilitics 20,211,391,166 3,381,585,378 16,829,805,788
Net Assets/Equity 10,225,371,614 1,586,833,353 0,853,678,071
Net Assets/ Equity:
Share Capital 1,224,006,980 - 1,224,006,980
Shares to be assued purstant to the Scheme? - 1,215,139,810 -
Capital reserves 680,467,220 - 680,467,220
Vecumulated Profis 3,212,282,188 861,625 3,211,420,563
Revaluagon surplus property. plant - and equipment - net
of 1a% 5,108,615,226 370,831,918 | 4,737,783,308
10,225,371,614 1,586,833,353 9,853,678,071

© Onee the Scheme s sanctioned, MCPPL will allot and ssue 121,513 981 ordinary shaves m favour of Mareo, eredited as
fully patd up, at a par value of PRR10/- each, which will be conswdered as mvesunent of the pareat company (Le Matco)

into the subsidury (MCPPL).

The annexed notes from 1 to 10 form an ntegral pare of this splic balance sheet, which shall be subject (o the provisions of

Article 1@ of the Scheme (1o the extent apphicable)

\K * i ) \ ___T-.]
1% A :
Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori Faizan Ali Ghort

Chicef lxecunve Officer

Director
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Notes to the Pro Forma Split Balance Sheet:
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6

0.1

6.2

STOCK IN TRADE
Raw material
Packing marerial

Fimshed poods

Less: Provision for slow moving

TRADIE DEBTS
lixport
l.ocal
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
Cash ar bank
LONG TERM FINANCES - SECURED
v lamking companies and fincicial institution:
TR/
FERE VPR 6.1

FISAR 6.2
emand Finance

TERF/ITERF Facility

The above-mentioned facility from the following banks will be tansterred o demerped undertaking:

United Bank Linvited
Mueczan Bank Limied

FFSAP Facility

The ahove-mentioned facilite from the following banks will be transferred to demerged undertaking:

Faysal Bank Limited
Meesan Bank Limiwed

26

Matco Foods Corn Starch Retained
Limited Undertaking Undertaking
Rs.

6,478,458,608 699,181,501 5,779,277,107
459,838,850 81,494,605 378,344,245
6,824,876,683 317,741,714 6,507,134,969
13,763,174,141 1,098,417,820 12,664,756,321
(22,618,208) _(2,447,135) (20,171,073)
13,740,555,933 1,095,970,685 12,644,585,248
1,627,955,926 60,273,854 1,567,682,072
950,533,149 443,097,872 507,435,277
2,578,489,075 503,371,726 2,075,117,349
10,313,253 1,448,634 8,864,619
126,209,682 23,393,486 100,816,196
136,522,935 26,842,120 109,680,815
139,359,733 - 139,359,733
848,165,108 783,298,899 64,866,209
283,088,051 144,200,125 138,887,926
381,086,123 - 381,086,123
1,651,699,015 927,499,023 724,199,992

390,035,062

393,263,837

783,298,899

107,034,378
37,165,746
144,200,125




10

10.1

10.2

LEASE LIABILITIES

On vehieles
O Godown
O solar panels

O Genetators

DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Deterred ax habiliy

Staft gratuy scheme - unfunded

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Teade Creditors

Accrucd habilnes

Tax dedueted ar source and payable o
statutory authonties

Sales rax pavable o smtrory authornines

Workers' welfare Tund

Workers' profie participation fund

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS FROM BANKS

Fixport re-fmance
Cwn resource
I°15-25 Scheme

Foreign bills purchased /negotated
5 £

Own resource

The above-mentioned facilite from the Tollowing banks will be transiersed to demorged undermaking:

Meezan Bank Lamited - Isnsna Facility

United Bank Limited - Runnig Fuance Faciliny

Inrer-division financing

Matco Foods Corn Starch Retained
Limited Undertaking Undertaking
Rs.

162,308,734 35,371,416 126,937,318
141,776,422 - 141,776,422

114,486,594 114,486,594 -
11,305,213 - 11,305,213
429,876,963 149,858,010 280,018,953
651,004,038 163,570,264 485,427,774
247,527,338 51,210,329 196,317,009
898,531,376 216,786,593 681,744,783
2,379,297,191 629,494,742 1,749,802,449
135,829,043 61,544,714 74,284,329
8,312,718 - 8,312,718
57,253,101 - 57,253,101
6,074,946 - 6,074,946
15,187,365 - 15,187,365
2,601,954,364 691,039,456  1,910,914,907
7,553,475,628 - 7,553,475,628
4,081,693,853  1,084,673,759  2,997,020,094
1,825,130,6588 - 1,825,130,688
264,516,306 - 264,516,306
13,724,816,475  1,084,673,759  12,640,142,716

442,269,081

642,404,678
1,084,673,739

This will be inter-company loan from the Parent Company (Matco Foods Limired) and this amount will be payvable 1o

Parent Company and chargeable to interest rate once the Scheme 1s tinalized.
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ANNEXURE B
LIST OF CURRENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

MATCO FOODS LIMITED
Mr. Jawed Ali Ghori

Mr. Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Mr. Faizan Ali Ghori

Mr. Safwan Khalid Ghori

Mr. Syed Kamran Rashid

Mr. Abdul Samad Khan
Mrs. Faryal Murtaza
Ms. Umme Hahibah

Mr. Mohammad Mohsin Suleman
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ANNEXURE C
LIST OF CURRENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
MATCO CORN PRODUCTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Mr. Syed Bilal Ali Ghori
Mr. Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Mr. Faizan Ali Ghori
Mr. Safwan Khalid Ghori

Mr, Salar Khalid Ghori

29



ANNEXURE D

LIST OF THE CURRENT CORN STARCH UNDERTAKING EMPLOYEES

S.N. | Employee Code Name Designation
1. 623 Muhammad Shahbaz DGM-Accounts
2. 1223 Danish Ahmed CFO (Corn Starch Division)
3. 1536 Imran Haider | Commercial Officer
4, 1546 Osama Shahab | Supervisor
5. 1589 Israr Ahmed Cook
6. 1590 Amjad Abbas General Manager
7. 1598 Muhammad Waqas Q.A. Analyst
8. 1626 Muhammad Sajid Asst. Manager Civil Projects
9. 1652 Major Mumtaz Shafique (R) Manager IR & Legal Affairs
10. 1671 Ahsan Idrees Assistant Manager
11, 1692 Muhammad Sarwar Aslam Assistant Manager Stores
12 1694 Zeeshan Azeem Khan Sr. Manager Prod & Mfg Excl
13. 1708 Khurram Igbal Manager Wet Milling & Mfg Excl
14, 1724 Muhammad Shahid Khan Boiler & Utility Manager
15. 1731 Naeem Igbal Nasir | Engineering Manager
16. 1732 Muhammad Afzal A.M Security & Admin
17. 1733 Muhammad Imran Manager Corn Dev & Proc
18 [ 1735 _ ~ Nadeem Tahir ~Deputy Manager QA
19. 1751 Muhammad Nauman Haider Assistant Manager Production
20. 1756 Manzoor Ahmad A.M Technical Procurement
21, 1762 Mudassir Sarosh Deputy Manager Production
72 1778 Asad Ali Gate Office & Weighbridge Inch
|23 1781 | Muhammad Tayyab Yasin Supervisor
24, 1782 Muhammad Arslan Supervisor
25, 1785 M. Nabeel Nisar Assistant Supervisor
_26. 1786 ~ Rohail Hasan Asst. Electrical Engineer
27. 1787 Muhammad Ayub Assistant Supervisor
28. 1788 Shahbaz Shabbir Supervisor
29. 1789 Muhammad Imran Supervisor
30. 1792 Ali Raza Supervisor
| 31 1793 Muhammad Irfan Assistant Supervisor o
32. 1798 Muhammad Abid Khan Assistant Manager
33. 1799 ~ Hafiz Muhammad Arslan Deputy Manager
34. 1805 Shrafat Ali Lead HR & Admin
35. 1806 Abdul Rehman Lifter Operator
36 1807 Alam Sher Assistant Supervisor
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37. 1808 Wagqas Rasheed Assistant Supervisor

38. 1809 Hafiz Muhammad Zubair Q.C. Analyst

39, 1810 Muhammad Asif ; Q.C. Analyst

40, 1811 Muhammad Zeeshan Ali | Sampling Coordinator

41. 1813 ~ Tabish Nawaz A.M Warehousing

42. 1814 Muhammad Usman Assistant Supervisor

43, 1815 Abdul Rashid Bhatti Cashier

a4, 1816 Azeen Ali Assistant Supervisor

45, 1818 Adnan Supervisor

46. 1821 Abdul Razaq Pump Fitter-P

47. 1825 Usman Ghani Assistant Supervisor

48. 1826 Muhammad Adil Naseer Supervisor

49, 1827 Muhammad Atif Sohail Supervisor

50. 1831 Muhammad Furgan Assistant Supervisor

51, 1836 Muhammad Afzal Assistant Supervisor

52. 1840 Shoaib Shehzad Assistant Supervisor

53. 1841 Muhammad Tayyab Assistant Supervisor

54. 1842 Ghulam Haider Assistant Supervisor

55. 1843 Naeem Mahmood Zia Supervisor

56. 1845 Muhammad Usman Shahzad Assistant Supervisor

57. 1847 Kashif Igbal DM Internal Audit

58. 1848 Faisal Rasheed Assistant Supervisor

59. 1849 Muhammad Junaid Maintenance Engineer

60. 1931 Nasir Mahmood Siddigui Senior Manager Sales

61. 1932 Mudassar Ishfaq Choudhary Sales & Business Dev, Manager

62. 1942 Muhammad Sarwar Consultant

63. 1943 Muhammad Nauman Ahmad Production Engincer

64. 1944 Muhammad Usman ~ Q.C Analyst

65. 1946 Muhammad ljaz Ahmad Production Engineer

66. 1947 Asif Al Foreman

67. 1548 Muhammad Mudassir Hussain | Su pervisor-P

68. 1949 Mubasher Ali Supervisor-P

69. 1951 Ibtsam Imran Trainee Instrument Technician
- 70. 1952 Muhammad Waseem Aslam Supervisor-P

71. 1953 Muhammad Nouman Sharif | Supervisor-P

72. 1978 Muhammad Sarwar | Chief Commercial Officer

73. 1979 Muhammad Arshad Javaid Head E&| & Energy Coordinator
74, 1983 Tariq Bashir Weight Bridge Operator -P

75, 1984 Zafar Igbal Supervisor-P

76. 1985 Yasir Mehmood Assistant Supervisor-P

77. 1986 Mirza Naeem Igbal Saghar Oil Man-P

78. 1987 Muhammad Ramzan Assistant Supervisor-P
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79. 1988 Muhammad Abdul Haseeb Assistant Supervisor W
80. 1989 Mohammad Shafique Supervisor Turner-P
81. 1990 Usama Igbal Supervisor-P
82. 1991 Imam Baksh Rand Security Guard-P
83. 1992 Bilal Shahid Weighbridge Operator
84. 1993 Sohail Ali Supervisor-P
85. 1996 Muhammad Hannan Saleem Production Engineer
86. 1997 Naeem Ejaz Sample Man-P
87. 1998 Kashif Mahmood Assistant Supervisor-P
88. _1_999 Shahbaz Amin Assistant Supervisor-P -
89. 2000 Muhammad Abubakar Supervisor-P
90. 2001 Abdul Rehman Senior Cook-P
91. 2@5 Umer Farooq Assistant Supervisor-P
92. 2006 Fahad Fiaz Assistant Supervisor-P
93. 2007 ~ Muhammad Wagqas Assistant Supervisor-P
94, 2009 Hassan Arshad Supervisor-P
a5, 2011 Muhammad Nadeem Supervisor-P
96. 2012 Shoaib Ali Supervisor-P
97. 2014 Wagqar Ali Supervisor-P
98. 2016 Ghulam Haider Supervisor-P ]
99, 2018 Awais Anjum Officer
100. 2020 Muhammad Imran Assistant Supervisor
101. 2021 Ali Asghar Assistant Supervisor
102. 2022 Shoaib Anwar Lifter Operator
103. 2023 Touseef Shoukat Assistant Supervisor
104. 2024 Muhammad Shaban Weight Bridge Operator
105. 2026 Muhammad Imran Haider Motar Winder
106. 2076 Syed Asad lkram Electrical Engineer
107. 2077 Muhammad Saad Akram Sales Operation Executive
108. | 2079  Wasim Abbas Assistant Supervisor
109, 2081 Abdul Sattar Consultant
_110. 2082 Gulza.n_wn Ali Supervisor
111. 2083 Kashif Tanveer Supervisor -
112. 2084 Adnan Bashir Boiler Engineer
113. 2089 Khadim Hussain Bhatti Supervisor
114, 2090 Muhammad Aslam Lifter Operator
115. 2092 Rafagat Ali Shah Assistant Supervisor
116. 2094 Muhammad Azeem Mirza Tools Clerk-P
117. 2095 Muhammad Younis Production Coordinator
118. 2096 Muhammad Fazil Siddiqui Supervisor
119. 2106 Muhammad Shafique Assistant Supervisor
120. 2107 Muhammad Sohail Asif Supervisor
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121. 2109 Ghulam Murtaza_lvlughal Assistant Supervisor
122. 2120 Sarfraz Ahmed Supervisor
123. 2122 Naveed Ahmed Lifter Operator
124, 2123 Rizwan Mahmood Foreman
125. 2124 Muhammad Ghulam Murtaza Supervisor
126. 2125 etz Abdol Warehouse Assistant
Rehman
127. 2143 Allah Ditta Assistant Supervisor
128. 2146 Muhammad Mudasir Supervisor
129. 2147 Sadar Khan Assistant Supervisor
130. 2150 Muhammad Usman Deputy Manager
131. 2154 Adnan Tarig Welder-P
132, 2155 Muhammad Faizan Anjum Assistant Manager
133. 2158 Muhammad Wagas Khalid Deputy Manager
134. 2160 Nabeel Waseem Assistant Manager
135. 2179 Haseeb Ahmed Assistant Manager
136. 2189 Muhammad Shahnawaz Manager
137. 2198 Saghar Al Senior Officer
138. 2213 ) Rehan Sales Coordinator South
139. 2217 Adeel Raza Assistant Supervisor
140. 2218 Irfan Khan Niazi Assistant Supervisor
141, 2223 Faisal Amin Cook
142. 2224 Muhammad Arshad Office Boy
143, 2228 Tahir Hussain Sales Operation Executive
144, 2237 Sabir Hussain Assistant Manager
145. 2238 Sultan Mahmood Supervisor
146. 2240 Muhammad Irfan Assistant Supervisor
147. 2242 Mukhtar Ahmad Supervisor
148. 2248 Haider Ali Assistant Supervisor
149. 2251 Muhammad Saeed Assistant Supervisor
150. 2260 Qamar Saeed Supervisor
151. 2263 Arham Shahzad Supervisor
152. 2265 Muhammad Qaisar HR Assistant
153. 2266 Muhammad Wahaj Assistant Supervisor
154. 2267 Bilal Hasan Assistant Supervisor
155. 2268 Muhammad Talha Saeed Assistant Supervisor
156. 2271 Usama Ehtesham Assistant Manager
157. 2277 Qazi Mohtashim Ahmed Manager-US Export Sales
158. 2285 Hammad Hussain Supervisor
159. 2290 Muhammad Kamran Haider Manager
160. 2315 Hammad ul Hassan Assistant Supervisor
161 2345 Muhammad Asghar Assistant Supervisor
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162. 2349 Muhammad Zeeshan Yasin Assistant Supervisor
163. 2352 Muhammad Ahmed Supervisor
164. 2355 Ali Haseeb Gul Assistant Sales Coordinator-P
_165. 2369 Muhammad Yousuf Deputy Manager Accounts
166. 2370 Muhammad Seerat Q.C. Analyst -P
167. 2379 Muhammad Abbas Ahmad Trainee Engineer
168. 2380 Mujahid Hussain M.T.O.
169. 2381 Ammar Ahad Officer
170. 2393 Muhammad Afzaal Arshad Officer
171 2418 - Umar Hayat Officer - S
172. 2423 Muhammad Aslam Consultant
173; 2434 Muhammad Rehan Q.C Analyst
174. 2436 Haider Ali Assistant Supervisor
175. 2438 Hassan Raza Supervisar
176, 2440 Muhammad Akhtar Assistant Supervisor
177. 2442 Muhammad Waseem Deputy Manager
178. 2443 Muhammad Shahbaz Trainee Engineer
179. 2480 Ishtiaqg Ahmed Assistant Supervisor
180. 2495 Ghulam Ali Assistant Supervisor-P
| 181. 2535 Muhammad Umar Assistant Supervisor
182, 2541 Abdullah Azmat Assistant Supervisor-P
183. 2542 Muhammad Junaid Ghous Assistant Supervisor
184. 2549 Faisal Mehmood Officer
185. 2552 Muhammad Arslan [ Assistant Supervisor
186. 2553 Farhan Aslam Shift Engineer
187. 2554 Muhammad Waqas Entomologist
188. 2563 Muhammad Ahsan Purchase Officer
189. 2592 Faizan Zia Sample Man-p
190. 2601 Asad Ali Asghar Assistant Supervisor-P
191. 2622 Furgan Rasheed A.M Bio Mass Procurement
192. 2633 Hasnain Haider Assistant Supervisor-P
193. 2634 Muhammad Hasnain Assistant Supervisor-P
194, 2641 ~ Ahmed Tallal Khan ~ Trainee Engineer -P
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Grant Thornton Anjum
Rahman
BAS/C145/25/0516 1st & 3rd Floor,
Modern Motors House,
Beaumont Road,
Karachi, Pakistan.

May 16, 2025

The Board of Directors of T +92 21 35672951-56
Matco Foods Limited Matco Corn Products (Private) Limited
B-01/A, SIT.E, Phase 1 Plot No. 8-C, 3 and 4" Floors,

Super Highway Industrial Area Shahbaz Lane No.2, Phase VI, D.H.A,
Karachi Karachi

Dear Sirs

ENVISAGED SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN MATCO FOODS
LIMITED AND MATCO CORN PRODUCTS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

1. We refer to the envisaged Scheme of Arrangement under Sections 279 to 283 and 285(8)
of the Companies Act, 2017 between Matco Foods Limited ('Matco') and its members, and

Matco Corn Products (Private) Limited (MCPPL') and its members (hereinafter referred
to as 'the Scheme’).

2. The Scheme, the draft of which has been shared with us, principally envisages demerging
/ carving out of the business / segment comprising the Assets, Liabilities and Obligations
of the corn starch business (the 'Demerged Undertaking') of Matco (the 'Carve Out)), and
vesting of the same with and into MCPPL, by transferring the Assets, Liabilities and
Obligations pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking into MCPPL (the 'Amalgamation’),
while retaining the Assets, Liabilities and Obligations of Matco other than the Demerged
Undertaking (the 'Retained Undertaking') in Matco, without any company being wound up.
The Carve Out and the Amalgamation, in terms of the Scheme, is to be effective from the
start of business on July 1, 2025 (or such other date as may be stated by the Court).

3. We have been given to understand by the managements of Matco and MCPPL that, as of
the date of this letter, MCPPL has an issued share capital of Rs. 10,000/-, which is
beneficially wholly owned by Matco (including through its nominees); hence MCPPL is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Matco.

4. The management and the Board has selected the Net Asset Value (NAV) method to value
the demerged undertaking, which is a wholly owned subsidiary, as it provides a reliable

measure of fair value based on assets and liabilities of the company.

Chartered Accountants grantthornton.pk



Q GrantThornton

5. Based on the calculations stipulated below, and taking into account that MCPPL shall
remain a wholly owned subsidiary of Matco as a consequence of the Carve-out and
Amalgamation, in consideration of the Amalgamation, MCPPL shall allot and issue
121,513,981 ordinary shares, having face value of Rs. 10/- each, to Matco in accordance
with Article 9 of the Scheme. The same is based on the net asset value of the Demerged
Undertaking, which is being vested in MCPPL pursuant to the Amalgamation.

6. Based on the special purpose financial statements of Matco for the period ended December
31, 2024, and split balance sheet as attached in Annexure-A, the net asset value of the
Demerged Undertaking (to be vested in MCPPL pursuant to the Amalgamation), and the
consequential shares of MCPPL to be issued to Matco, are calculated as follows:

Number of Shares Calculation for Scheme of Arrangement

As per Split
Balance Sheet

Item

Amount in Rs.

Net Asset Value as per Split Balance Sheet 1,586,833,353 |A

Less: Revaluation Surplus (370,831,918)

Less: Accumulated profits (861,625)

Net Shareholdets' Equity 1,215,139,810 (B

Par Value of Share N— 10 |C
Number of Shares to be issued 121,513,981 |D=B/C

7. Unless otherwise specified herein, all defined terms shall have the meaning ascribed thereto
under the Scheme.

8. This letter has been prepared for the above named addressees only in relation to the Scheme
and accordingly, is not to be used by any other person or for any other purpose.

Yours truly

SUNTRONEEY PR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Grant Thornton Anjum
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF B e oo
MATCO FOODS LIMITED Modern Motors House,

Beaumont Road,

Karachi, Pakistan.
Opinion

T +92 21 35672951-56
We have audited the special purpose financial statements of Matco Foods Limited (the
Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at December
31, 2024, and unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of cash flows and unconsolidated statement
of changes in equity for the period then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2024, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with the basis of preparation
described in note 3.2 of these special purpose financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Anditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Cade of Ehics for
Professional Aeccountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obained is sufficient and apptoptiate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution and Use

We draw attention to note 3.2 of these special purpose financial statements, which describes
the basis of accounting. These special purpose financial statements have been prepated by the
management to accompany the scheme of arrangement to be filed with the Court for the
potential demerger of one of the divisions of the Company. As a result, these financial
statements may not be suitable for another purpose and should not be distributed or used for
any other purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, werc of most
significance in our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current petiod. These

Charterad Accountants grantthornton.pk
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matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Following is the Key audit matter:

accompanying unconsolidated financial
statements. The stock in trade account
for 72.81% of the total current assets.
The wvalue of stock is based on the
purchase price using moving weighted
average method. Therefore, the
Company is exposed to the risk of
valuation of stock in trade as a result of
volatility in prices.

The Company is required to measure its
stock in trade at the lower of cost and
net realizable value (NRV). There is an
element of judgement involved relating
to the valuation, which is required for
the estimation of the NRV and
allowance for slow-moving and obsolete
stock in trades. Such estimation is made
after taking into consideration factors
such as movement in prices, current and
expected future market demands and
pricing competitions.

This was the key audit matter because of
its materiality and significance in terms
of judgments involved in estimating the
NRYV of undetlying inventories.

S. Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in
No. our audit
1. | Valuation of Stock in Trade As part of our audit, we have
performed the following audit
As at December 31, 2024, the Company | procedures:
held stock in trade amounting to Rs.
13,741 million as disclosed in note 23 of | @ Attended the stock counts at

locations to observe the stock
count process and evaluate the
condition of stock in trade.

Tested the valuaton method used
by the management in valuation of
stock in trade.

Inspected on sample basis specific
purchases with undetlying
supporting documents.

Evaluated the appropriateness of
the basis and processes used by
management in determining the net
realizable value of stock in trade.

Performed testing on sample of
items to assess the NRV of the
inventories held and evaluate the
adequacy of provision for slow
moving and obsolete stock.

Evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures on stock in trade in the
unconsolidated financial
statements,

Other Matter

The Company has prepared a separate set of condensed interim financial statements for the
period ended December 31, 2024 in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by
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the International Accounting Standards Board on which we issued a separate auditor’s review
report to the shareholders of the Company dated February 27, 2025.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the basis of preparation described in note 3.2 of these special purpose
financial statements and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can atise from fraud or etror and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from etror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the ovettide of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists




&Y GrantThornton

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit
or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated
statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together
with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for
the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980);
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Khurram
Jameel,

Chartered Acconntants l

Karachi
Date: April 15, 2025
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024
e —— —_——_ - .. _—_—_—_—_—, e —_—
December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
MNote s=——-Rupees-——--

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorized share capital 6.1 Z.GHD,’EMEOD 2,000,000,000
[ssued, subscrbed and paid up share capial 6.2 1,224,006,980 1,224,006, 980
Capital reserve 7 680,467,220 680 467,220
Unappropriated profit 3,212,282 188 2,888 861,750
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant

and equipment - net of tax 8 5,108,615,226 5,194,285 910
Total shareholders’ equity 10,225.371,614 0,987 621,860
Non-current liabilities
Loag-tenn fnances-scoured 9 1,288,939,794 1,475,635 466
Lease Labilines 10 350,457,874 172,253 368
Deferred liabilitiee 1 898,531,376 980,817,481
Tortal non-current liabilities 2,557,929,044 2,628,706,315
Current linbilities
Trade and other payables 12 2,601,954 364 75,095,644
Advance from customers - secured 675,418,619 430,489,396
Accrued mark-up 13 221,588,252 560,017,210
Dhue 1o related party 14 6,412,777 6,563,777
Short-term borrowings-secured 15 13,724,816,475 11,123,990,753
Current portion of long term finances-secured 9 362,759,221 350,121,960
Current portion of lease lisbilities 10 79,419,090 38,071,886
Unpaid dividend 16 1,093,324 28,495,996
Total current Habilities 17,673,462,122 14,922 746,822
Taotal liabilities 20,211,391,166 17,551,453,137
Contingencies and commitments 17
Total equity and labilities 30,436,762,780 27,539,074.997
The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financlal starements,

Tl
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Chief Executive Officer Chief Fi | Officer




MATCO FOODS LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

MNote Rupees-—-o
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and cquipment 18 | 11,060363,361 |[ 11,419,860,903
Right-of-use assets 19 429,529,702 239,635,175
Intangible assets 20 - .
Leong-term deposits 20,708,550 19,708,550
Lang-term investments 21 55,582,707 55,582,707
Toml non-curtent assets 11,566,184,320 11,734,787,335
Current assers
Stores, spares and loose tools 22 325,052,111 7T B4T 378
Stock in trade 23 13,740,555,933 11,613,570,893
Trade debis 24 2,578,489,075 2.334,768,358
Loans and advances 25 1,754,941,120 1,009.946,411
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 26 13,031,348 27 520,651
Short-term investment 7 L,200,000 1,200,000
Sales tax refundable 28 25,000,000 25,000,000
Due from related parties 29 74,398,259 50,320,380
Taxation and levies - net 30 221,387,679 106,288 895
Cash and bank balasices I 136,522,935 357,418,696
Total current assets 18,870,578,460 15,804,287,662
Total assets Hiﬂﬁ,?ﬁi,?ﬂﬂ 2‘-‘&39‘{!‘?4.9'31

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

A

Ehalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Chief Executive Officer
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note
Sales - net 32
Cost of sales 34
GROSS PROFIT
Selling and distribution expenses 35
Administrative expenses 36
Operating profit
Finance cost a7
Other income 38
Exchange gan - net 39
Provision for workers' welfare fund 121
Provision for workers' profit participation fund 122
PROFIT BEFORE LEVIES
AND INCOME TAX

Levies - Final and Minimum Tax 40
Taxation 40
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
EARNINGS PER SHARE -

BASIC AND DILUTED 45

Six-Months Ended
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Un-Audited
Rupees
12,936,528,132 13,952,825 845
(1L,177,931,764)  (12,249,052,234)
1,758,596,368 1,703,773,611
(264,373,394) (251,381,918
(371,759,605) (313,076,588)
(636,132,999) (564,458,506)
1,122,463,369 1,139.315,105
(1,072,415,926)  (1,039,795,896)
63,008,502 24,427 865
211,953,674 32,851,720
(6,074,946) (2,884,347)
(15,187,365) (7,210,868)
303,747,308 146,703,579
(100,184,768) (127,167,148)
34,737,480 64,847,527
238,300,020 _ 84,363,958
1.95 0.69

The annexed notes from | o 51 form an intepral part of these unconsalidated financial statements.

(e

Ehalid Sarfaraz Ghorni
Chief Executnve Officer
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il ~

M. Aamir Faroogqui
Chief Financial Officer
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER .!l1 2024

Six-Months Ended
December 31, December 31,

2024 2023
Un-Audited
Note Rupees-—-—-
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 238,300,020 B4,383,958
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) / INCOME
Trems that may be reclassified
subsequently to the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss _
Items that will not to be reclassified
subsequently to the unconsolidared
statement of profit or loss
- Remessurement of defined benefits obliganon 1125 {550,266) >
- Unrealized gnin on revaluation of investment ar
fair value through OCI dunng the year - 819,000
Other comprehensive (loss) / income (550,266) 619,000
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD 237,749,754 85,202,958

The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsalidated financial statements.
n:l:f__*-

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori M. Aamif Farooqui
Chicf Exccunve O ffice: Chief Finsncial Oficer




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Six-Months Ended
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Un-Audited
———Rupees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prafit before levies and income mx 303,747,308 146,703,579
Adjustments for;
Depreciation 1B8.1 372,910,873 236,178,061
Depreciation on aght of use sssets 19 27,057,059 .
Exchange gain - net (212,946,054) (32,851,520)
Guin on sale of shares - (6,115,215)
Provision for slow moving stock 765,928 .
Finance cost 1,081,124,257 1,039,705 804
Provision for staff gratuity 1127 52,349,655 39,591,048
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (29,926,268) .
1,291,335,450 1,276,598,270
1,595,082,758 1,423,301.849
Changes in working capital
(Increase) /decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools (47,204,733) (66,300,000
Stack-in-trade (2,127,750,968) (1,593,496,000)
Trade debis - considered good (31,767,043) (1,148,789,480)
Loans and advances (744,994,709) (72,157,000)
Trade deposits and prepayments 14,889,303 (15,419,000}
Sales tax refundable - 64,935,578
Due from related partics (24,071,879) 32,129,177
(2,960,900,029) (2,799,096,725)
Increase/(decrease) in current liabilites
Teade and other payables 225,958,720 567,881,265
Due to related party (151,000) -
Advances from customers 244,929,023 64,838,235
470,736,743 632,719,500
Cash used in operations (895,080,528) (743,075,376)
Finance cost paid (1,419,553,215) (521,847,993)
Income taxes and levies paid (215,283,554) {171,133,759)
Gratuity paid (100,448,546) (10,114,812)
Net cash used in operating activities (2,630,365,843) (1,746,171,940)
Balance carmied forward (2,630,365,843) (1,746,171,940)




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Un-Audited
Note Rupees

Balance bronght formard (2,630,365,843) (1,746,171,940)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure including capital work in progress (177,047,954) (337,865,126)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 223,139,500 -
Proceeds from disposal of investments - 3,022 000
Long term investment - 16,661,000
Long-term deposits (1,000,000) (100,000)
Net cash gencrated from / (used in) investing activities 45,091,546 (318,282,126)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term finances - net (183,058,411) (127,838,000)
Lease liabilities paid during the year (26,978,483) (27,411,902)
Dividend paid (27,402,672) (51,948,349)
Short-term borrowings - net 2,600,825,722 2,791.240.000
Net cash generated from financing activities 2,363,386,156 2,584,041,749
Net change in cash and cash equivalents

during the period (221,888,141) 519,587,683
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning

of period 357,418,696 358,996,000
Effects of exchange rare changes on cash and

cash equivalents 992,380 .
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of period 31 136,522,935 878,583,683
The annexed notes from 1 to 51 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements. o,
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Ehalid Sarfaraz Ghori
Chiefl Executive Officer

Chicf Financial Officer




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

I Su rplus on Unrealized
Issued, Sisiicad revaluation of || (loss) / gain
subseribed and o Unappropriated || Propery, plant || on revaluation Totsl
paid up share profit and equipment - || of investment ot
I:I.pil:!l Shait Drcioloin net of tax at fair value o
P ocl
Rupees-
Balance as at July 01, 2023 1,224, 006,980 GBO 46T 220 317666606 2,4013 823 BRI (B18,735) 7,484,145 951
Total comprehensive income for the perod
Prafit for the penod f4.383.958 - = 84,363,958
Cther comprehensive income - 819,000 E19,000
Total comprehensve incotne 84,383,958 B19,000 85,202,958
Tranaferred from surphus on revaluation of fixed
issets om account of incremental depreciation nei
of tux 18,019,223 (18.919,223) .
Transactions with owners
Dividend paid dunng the period (61,200 ,34%) (61,200,349)
Balance as on December 31, 2025 1,224,006, 980 GBO 467,220 3213,769.458 2. 389,004,657 265 7,508, 148,560




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Surplus on l Unrealized
Issued, . revaluation of (loss) / gn.in
subscribed and Capieal Unappropriated || Property, plant || on fﬂﬂlﬂm Total
paid up share profit and equipment - || of invesiment w
capital Share o net of ax at fair value 10
e oct
Rupees:
Balance as on July 01, 2024 1,224,006,980 680,467,220 2,888,861,750 5,104,285,910 = 9,967,621,860
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the penod - - 138,300,020 - - [| 238,300,020
Other comprehensive Toas - - (550,266) - - {550,266)
Talal campeehensive income - - 257,749,754 - - 237,749,754

Tramsferred from surplus on revaluation of fived
assets on sccount of incremental depreciation net

of tax ; - §5,046,931 (85.,046,931) - -

Transferred from surplus on revahiation of
property, plant and eguipment on sccount af

disposal net of mx - s 623,753 (623,753) - =
Balance as on December 31, 2024 1,224,006,980 680,467,220 3,212 282 188 5,108,615,226 - 10,225 371,614
The annexed notes fram 1 to 51 form an integral part of these idated financial starements;
x G

\ol2 e e

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori :
Chiefl Executive Officer _,.f Chief Financial Officer




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1

32

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Marco Foods Limited, (the Company) was incorporated on April 14, 1990 in Karachi as a private limited
company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Now: Companies Act, 2017). The Company was
listed on Pakistan Stock Eschange Limited on February 13, 2018, The principal activity of the Company is to
carry aut the business of processing and export of rice, rice glucose, rice protein and pink salt, masala and kheer.
The registered office of the Company is situated at B-1/A, STT.E-II Phase 1, Super Highway Industrial Area,
Karachi; whereas the factories of the Company are situated at (i) Plot A-15 & 16, SITE-11, Super highway
Karachi; () A-21, SITE-II, Super highway Karachi; (i) G-205, SITE-T1, Super highway Kareachi; (iv) 50 KM
G.T Road, Sadhoke, Tehsil Kamonki, District Gujranwala and Plot No. 53, Allama Igbal Industrial City,
Faisalabad.

The Company has 100% ownership in JKT General Trading FZE (subsidiary) a United Arab Emirates based
company which is situated at P.O.Box 123347, Sharjah - UAE, and registered with Govemnment of Sharjah.
The business of the subsidiary is purchasing and selling of processed rice.

The Company has 99.99% ownership in Matco Marketing (Private) Limited (subsidiary) which was incorporated
on June 16, 2016 with authorized and paid-up share capital of Rs. 10,000,000 and Rs. 7,500,000 respectively.
The subsidiary is situated at B-1/A, S.LT.E. Phase 1, Super Highway Industrial Ares, Karnchi. However, no
business activity has been carried out by the subsidiary since its incorparation.

The Company has started a new business venrure of Comn Stirch at Plot # 53, S.E.Z, Allama Igbal Industrial
City in Faisalabad.

These are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investments in subsidiaries and joint
venture are stted at cost less impairment losses, if any,

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL
POSITION AND PERFORMANCE

There aee no significant events and wansactions occurred during the period.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These non-statutory unconsolidated special purpose financial statements, herein after referred a5 unconsolidated
financial statements, have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and are solely intended for the use of the Company to fulfill the requirements of

stakeholders, including financial instirutions and ereditors. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in

Pakistan comprise of:

- Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board
(TASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directves issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the required of IFRS, the
provisions of and directives issucd under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed in preparation of these
unconsalidated financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared by the management to accompany the scheme of arrangement to
be fled with the Court for the potential demerger of one of the divisions of the Company. As a result, these
financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
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(2)

(b)

(e)

Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as
stated otherwise in these unconsolidated financial statements,

Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Company's functional
currency and presentation currency.

Restatement for better presentation

Prior year figures, have been restated, wherever necessary, for better presentation. The Company has eeclassified
the amount of taxes paid and charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss over income rax, subject
to and determined using general enncted rate of taxation under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, classified as
current income tax in the unconsolidated statement of profit and loss account to levy as reflected in
unconsolidated statement of profit ar loss.

New and amended standards and interpretations

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Further, certain IFRS have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet
to be natified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year

New and amended standards and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning
July 1, 2023

IAS 1: Disclosure of accounting policies Effective date: January 1, 2023

Amendments 1o [AS 1, Presenmuoon of Financial Stutements’ includes requiring companics to disclose their
materal accounting policies rther than their significant accounting policies, clarifying that accounting policies
related to immaterial transactions, other events ot conditions are themselves immatenial and as such need not be
disclosed and also clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate 1o materal transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves material to 2 company’s financinl statements.

IAS 8: Definition of accounting estimates Effective date: January 1, 2023

The Intemational Accounting Standards Board (the Board) has issued these amendments to end diversity in
treatment of accounting estimates and clarified how companies should distinguish changes in accounting
policies from changes in accounting estimates, with & primary focus on the definition of and clardfications on
accounting estimates. Developing an accounting estimate includes both selecting a measurement technique
(estimation or valuation technique) — e.g. an estimation technique used to measure a loss allowance for expected
credit losses when applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and — choosing the inputs to be used when applying
the chosen measurement technique — e.g, the expected cash outflows for determining a provision for warmanty
obligations when applying IAS 37 Provisions, Connngent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The effects of
changes in such inputs or measurement techniques are changes in accounting estimates.

IAS 12: Deferred Tax Effective date: January 1, 2023

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply to
transactions that gve nse to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will need o
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred mx kability for temporry differences arsing on ininal recognition
of a lease and a decommissioning provision.



MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
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(=)

(b)

(€)

(d)

The other new standards, amendments 1o approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatary
for the financial year beginning on April 1, 2023 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant
effect on the Company's financial reporting and operations.

Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Company

The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the
financial year beginning on July 1, 2023 and have not been early adopted by the Companys

IAS 1: Classification of liabilities as Effective date: January 1, 2024
current or non current

Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least rwelve months after the end of the reporting
period.

As part of this amendments, the requirement for a right to be unconditional has been removed and instead, the
amendments requires that a right 1o defer sertlement must have substance and exist at the end of the reporting
period. This rght may be subject 1o a company complying with conditions (covenants) specified in 1 loan
arrangement. At October 31, 2022, after reconsidering certain aspects of the amendments, the IASB
reconfirmed that only covenants with which a company must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of a liability as current or non-current. Covenants with which the company must comply afrer the
reporting date (Le. future covenants) do not affect a linbility’s classificadon ar thar date. However, when non
current linbilities are subject to furure covenunts, companies will now need to disclose infarmation to help users
understand the risk that those liahilities could become repayable within 12 months after the reporting date.

IAS 12: Deferred Tax Effective date: January 1, 2024

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions
that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will need to recognize a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax lability for temporary differences arising on initial recognition of a lease
and a decommissioning provision.

[FRS 16: Sale and leaseback transaction Effective date: January 1, 2024

Amendments impact how a seller-lessee accounts for variable lease payments that arise in a sale-and-leaseback
uansacton. On initial recognition, the seller-lessee includes variable lease payments when it measures a lease
liability arising from a sale-and-leaseback transaction. After initial recognition, the seller-lessee applies the
general requirements for subsequent accounting of the lease liability such that it recognizes no gain or loss
relating to the right of use it retains. The amendments introduce a new accounting model for varable payments
and will require seller-lessces to reassess and potenmally restate sale-and-leaseback transactions entered.

IAS 21: Lack of exchangeability Effective date: January 1, 2025

Amendments to [AS 21 The effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’ address situations where a currency
may lack exchangeability, often due to govemment-imposed controls. In such cases, companies must estimate a
spot exchange rate reflecting orderly transactions at the measurement date. The amendments provide flexibility,
allowing the use of observable rates without adjustment or other estimation techniques, provided they meet the
estimation abjective. The assessment considers factors like the availability of multiple rates, purpose, nature, and
update frequency. The smendments requires new disclosures, including the nature and financial impact of non-
exchangeability, the spot exchange rate used, the estimation process, and associated risks.
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The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations in
future periods, will have no material impact on the financial statements other than in presentation / disclosures,
There are a number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not
yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and, therefore, have not been presented here.

CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approvid financial réporting
framework requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectations of furure events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised, if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and furure periods.

The areas invalving a higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the unconsalidated financial statements are as follows:

Note
(a) useful lives of property, plant and equipment 5.1
(b) useful lives of right-of-use assets 52
(¢) impairment of financial assets 55
(d) staff retirement plan 59
(¢) ncome taxcs 5.12
(f) contingencies 5.16
(g) provisions 5.21
(h) impairment of non-financal asset 523

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies have been applied on consistent basie. These policies have been adopted in the
preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment other than land, factory buildings, plant and machinety and generators
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impatrment loss (if any).

Land, factory buildings, plant and machinery and generators are measured at the revalued amount less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss (if any).

Revaluation model

Any revaluation increase ansing on the revaluation of land, factory buildings, plant and machinery and
generators is recognised in statement of other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of
equity as “Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of mx”", except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss, in which case the increase is credited to statement of profit or loss 1o the extent of the decrease previously
charged. Any decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation is charged to unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the Surplus on revaluaton of property,
plant and equipment relaung to a previous revaluaton of that asser. The Surplus on revaluation of property,
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plant and equipment to the extent of incremental depreciation charged (net of deferced mx) is transferred to
unappropriated profit. Impairment losses if any are récorded on the basis a1 defined in note 5.23,

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or revalued amount of assets (other than land and capital
work in progress) over their estimated useful lives, using the diminishing balance method at mtes specified in
note 18.1 to the unconsolidated financial statements. Depreciation on addition is charged from the day an asset
is available for use up to the day prior to its disposal.

Gains and losses on disposal of assers are taken to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, and related
surplus on revaluation of property and plant is transfeered directly to retnined eamings / unappropriated profits.

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date. The Company’s estimate of residual value of property, plant and cquipment as ar June 30,
2024 did not require any adjustment.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital wotk-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditures connected
to the specific assets incuered during installation and construction perad are carried under capital work-in-
progress. Cost also includes applicable borrowing cost. These are transferred to specific assets as and when
assers are avatlable for use.

Right-of-use assets and related liabilities

After the commencement date, the Company measures the rnght-of-use asset applying a cost model whereby the

right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses
adjusted for any remensurement of the lease Lability.

The dght-of-use asset is depreciated on straight line basis in ease of Go down and written down value method
in case of vehicles, from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the dght-of-
use asset of the end of the lease term unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the nght-of-use asset reflects that the Company will
exercise & purchase option in which case the rght-of-use asset is deprecinted from the commencement date 1o
the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. The esumated useful lives of assets are determined on the same

basis as that for owned assets. The right-of-use asset is subject to testing for impairment if there is an indicator
for impairment, as for owned assets.

Intangible asseis

Intangible assets having definite useful life are stated ar cost less accumulated amortization and impairment
losses (if any). However, Intangible assets having indefinite life are stated at cost less impairment losses (if any).
Impairment losses (if any) are recorded on the basis as defined in note 5.23,

Subsequent cost is capitalized only when it increases the furure economic benefits embaodied in the specific
nssets to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortization 15 charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss on a steaight line basis over the
esumated useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Amortization on additions to intangible
assets are charped from the month in which an asset is acquired or capitalized while no amartization is charged
in the month in which the asset is disposed of.

All intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are systematically rested for impairment at each reporting date.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount it 1s wntten down immediately
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to its recoverable amount. The carrying amount of ather intangible assets are reviewed ar each reporting date o
determine whether there is any indicaton of impairment. If any such indication exists than the assets
recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount is the greater of its value in use and fair value less cost
to sell.

Useful lives of intangibles assets are reviewed at each reporting date and unadjusted if the impact on
amortizaton is material,

Investments

Investment in subsidiary, joint venture and associated companies

Investment in subsidiary, joint venture and associated companies is initially recognized and earried ar cost. At
subsequent reporting dates, the recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment
losses, if any, and carrying amounts of investments are adjusted accordingly, Impairment losses are recognized
as expense. Where impairment losses subsequently reverse, the carrying amounts of the investments are
increased to the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal
of impairment loss is recognized in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Other investments

All regular way purchases / sales of investment are recognized on the trade date, ic, the date the Company
commits to purchase / sell the investments. Regular way purchases or sales of investment require delivery of
securities within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Initial recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initally measured at cost which is the fir value of the consideration given
or received. These are subsequently measured at fair value or amortized cost as the case may be.

Classification of financial assets

The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:
- at fair value through profit or loss ("FYTPL")

- at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI™), or

- at amottzed cosc

The Company determines the classifications of financial assets ar inital recognition. The classification of
instruments (other than equity instruments) is drven by the Company's business model for managing the
financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics,

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measuced at amortized cost:

- the financial asser is held within o business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash fows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give nse on specified date 1o cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCT:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective achieved by both collecting contractual eash
flows and selling the financial assets; and

- the contractual reems of the financial assets give rise on specified date o cash flows that are solely payments of
prncipal and mterest on the pancipal amount outstanding.
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Classification of financial liabilitics

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:
- at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), ar
- at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as
nstrument held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement
i) Financial assets at FVTOCI

Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCT are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value being
recognized in unconsolidated statement of other comprehensive income,

ii) Financial assets and Liabilities at amortized cost

Financial assets and liabilites at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carned at
amortized cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impawrment.
iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and lLabilities carded at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, Realised and unrealised gains and losses ansing from
changes in the fair valoe of fGnancial assets and lisbilines held at FVTPL are included in the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss in the perdod in which they anise.

Where the management has opted to recognize a financial liability at FVTPL, any charipes associated with the
Company's own credit risk will be recognised in athet comprehensive income/(loss), Carrently, these are no
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets measured at
amortized cost and FVTOCI at an amount equal to life time ECLs except for the financial assets in which there
is no significant increase in credit sk since initial recognition or Anancial assets which are determine to have
low credit ask at the reporting darte, in which case rwelve months' ECL is recorded. The following were either
determined to have low or there was no credit risk since inital recopnitdon and at the teporting date:

- bank balances;

- due from related parties;
- deposits; and

- loan and advances

Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life ntme ECLs.

Life time ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. Twelve months ECLs are portion of ECL that result from defuult events that are possible within
twelve months after the reporting date.

ECLs are a probability weighted esumate of credit losses. Credir losses are measured at the present value of all
cash shoet falls (Le. the difference between cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and cash
flows that the company expects to receive),
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The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonsble expectation
of recovering a financial asset in entirety or a portion thereof.

Derecognition

i) Financial assets

The Company derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights to eash flows from the financial
assets expire or when it transfer the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and reward of
ownership to another entity. On derecognition of financial assets measured at amortized cost, the difference
between the assets carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. I addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain of loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
teserve is reclassified to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an
investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI,

the cumulative guin or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, but is transferred to unconsolidared statement of changes in equity,

ii) Financial linbilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial lisbilities are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference berween the carrying amount of the financial liabilities
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or Habilities
assumed, is recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss aceount. The Company's financial labilities
include Tong term finances, trade and other payables, acerued mark-up and short term barrowing,

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the dates on which the dervative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value using appropriate valuation techniques.
All denvative financial instruments are carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value
is negative. Any change in the fair value of derivative instruments is taken to the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at the cost less allowance for obsolete and slow moving items. Items in transit are valued ar
invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon, up to the reporting date.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value less impairment loss, if any. Raw material is valued at
moving weighted average cost, packing marterial is valued at cost, work in process is valued at manufacturing
cost and finished goods is valued at cost allocared on sales value of finish and by-product for each job
completion ar net realizable value (NRV) whichever is lower.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on an on-going basis and #s appropriate, inventory
is written down to its net realisable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage
pattern and physical form of related inventory.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost
of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

Staff retirement benefits - Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unapproved gratuity scheme for its employees completing the eligibility period of
service as defined under the plan. The scheme provides for a graduated scale of benefits dependent on the
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length of service of an employee on terminal date, subject to the completion of minimum qualifying period of
service. Graruity is based on employees’ last drawn gross salary.

Provisions are made to cover the obligatons under the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation carred out
annually by an extemal expert, using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method”. All re-measurement gains and losses
are recognized in ‘Statement OF Other Comprehensive Income’ as these occur. The amount recognized in the
unconsalidated statement of financial position represents the present value of defined benefit obligations. The

past service cost, current service cost and interest cost are recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit
or loss when they incur.

Trade debts

These are messured at original invoice amount less an estimate made for allowance for expected credit loss:
based on the probability of default at reporting period. Bad debts are written off when identified

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the unconsolidated statemenrt of financial position at cost For the
purpose of statement cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, balances with banks, highly
liquid short-term investments that are convertible o known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant rigk
of change in value.

Taxation

Current

The charge for current tax is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into account tix
credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or in aceordance with the final tax regime, where applicable, of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) or the minimum tax under section 113 of the Ordinance or
Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT) under section 113C of the said Ordinance, whichever is higher. Further, levies
are accounted for as an operating expense in accordance with the requirement of IFRIC - 21. Any excess over
the amount designated us 2 levy is then recognized as current tax expense in accordance with LAS-12

Deferred
Deferred tax is recognized using the unconsolidated statement of financial position liability method on all

temporary differences berween the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary differences.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent thar it
becomes probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax sssets and labilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is utilized or the lishility is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted ar
the reporting date.

Borrowings and their costs

All borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received net of transaction cost Borrowing costs direcdy
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of ume to get ready for their intended use are added to the cost of those assets, unl

such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to
unconsalidated statement af profit or loss in the period in which these are incurred.

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract 15, or contains, a lease. Thart is, if the contmer
conveys the nght ro control the use of an identified asser for a peried of time in exchange for considemton.
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The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets, The Company recognises lease linbilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right 1o use the underlying assets.

i, Lease liabilities

The lease linbility is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the entity’s incremental borrowing mate. The lease liability is subsequently measured at amartized
cost using the effective interest rate method and remeasured (with a corresponding adjustment to the related
ROU assets when there is a change in future lease payments in case of renegotiation, changes of an index or rate
or in case of reassessment of options.

i, Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (L.c, those leases that have a lease teem of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain & purchase option), It also applies the lease of low-value assers recognition exemption to leases of
office equipment thar are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low
value assets are recognised as expense on 3 straight-line basis over the lease term.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are measured at cost which is the fuir value of the consideration to be
paid in future for goods and services.

Contingencies
The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of
the future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the avalability of the latest

information, estimates the value of contingent assets and liabilities which may differ on the occurrence/non-
occurrence of the uncertin fomre event(s).

TFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

The Company is in the business of the manufacnure and sale of goods. Revenue from contracts with customers
is recognised when control of the goods is transferred to the customer and thereby the performance obligations
are satisfied, ar amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods.

The Company has concluded that based on the contractual arrsngement control of goods are transferred and
performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time when the goods are dispatched to the customers.

In case of export the control is transferred when the goods are shipped to the destination and Bill of Lading has
been prepared, thus completing the performance ohligation. Whereas in case of local sales, control is transferred
when the goods are dispatched to customers from the warchouse.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on 2 tme proportion basis that mkes into account the effective yield.

Foreign currency transaction & translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pak Rupee at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date
of transaction. Monetary assets and monetary liabilities in foreign currencies as at the reporting date are
expressed in Rupee at rates of exchange prevailing on that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the mansaction.
Exchange differences are taken to the unconsolidated statement of profit or logs.
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Off-setting of financial assets and financial linbilities

Financial assets and financial hiabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the uncansolidated financial
statements only when the Company has a legally enforceable nght to off-set the recognized amounts and the
Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously,

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of financial position when the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation as & result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation,

Operating segments

Operating segment are reported in manner consistent with the intemal reparting provided o the Chief
operating decision maker. The Chief Operating Decision maker; who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments. has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company
that makes strategic decisions. Operating segments comprises of rce and allied products und com starch

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asser’s recoverible amount is estimated and
accordingly an impairment loss is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss for the carrying
amount of the asset thut exceeds its recoverable amount.

Related party transactions
All related party transactions are carded out by the Company on arm's length basis.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) for its sharcholders. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or
loss ateributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company's sharcholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's
unconsolidated financial statements in the penod in which such dividends are approved by the Board.
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6.1  Authorized share capital

December 31, June 30, December 31, June 30,
2024 2024 2024 2024
Number of shares R L T
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10
200,000,000 200,000,000 (June 2024: Rs. 10) 2,000,000,000  2,000,000,000
= _ —_—ee——
6.2  Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
December 31, June 30, December 31, June 30,
2024 2024 2024 2024
MNumber of shares B A
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10
50,340,213 50,340,213 - fully paid in cash 503,402,130 503,402,130
6,002,950 6,002950 - issued for consideration 60,029,500 60,029,500
other than cash
66,057,535 66,057,535 - issued as fully paid bonus 660,575,350 660,575,330
shares
122,400,698 122,400,698 1,224,006,980 1,224 ,006.980

6.3  On April 30, 2008 the Company entered into an agreement to takeover the running business of
Matco Marketing Company (the "Firm"), a sole propretocship firm against the issvance of shares.
The firm's capital account as per the audit conducted by M/S Rafiq & Co, Chartered Accountant
was Rs. 60 million, against which shares were issued to Mr. Tariq Ghori (Late) in liew of this
takeover in accordance with the regulation 8 of Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996,

December 31, June 30,

2024 2024
6.4  Shares held by the related parties of the Company =Number of Shares—
Director and their spouse
Mr. Jawed Ali Ghan 24,020,821 24,020 821
Mr. Khalid Sarfaraz Ghod 24,031,271 24,031,271
Mr. Fatzan Ali Ghorni 1,199,450 1,179,450
Ms. Naheed Jawed 448,875 48 875
Ms. Nuzhat Khalid Ghori 448,875 448 B75
Mres. Faryal Murtaza 500 500
Mr. Murtaza Mahfooz Talib (Spouse of Faryal Murtaza) 336,821 336,821
Me, Safwan Ghori 211,750 211,750
Me. Syed Kamesn Rasheed 100 100
Mr. Abdul Samad Khan 500 500
Ms. Umme Habibah 2,500 2500
Mz, Muhamimad Mohsin 500 500
Substantial sharcholder
International Finance Corporation 18,360,109 18,360,109

Ms, Sadaf Tarig 24,480,146 24 480,146
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December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding --Number of Shares--
is as under:
Shares at the beginning of the period/year 122,400,698 122,400,698
Shares issued during the year in cash - :
Bonus shares issued during the period/year - -
Shares at the end of the period/year 122,400,698 122,400,698

The Company has issued 15% shares to International Finance Corporation (IFC) (registered with
Werld Bank) under an agreement with the Company. During the year 2012, the Company offered
shares as fully paid right shares which were declined by the existing members and the directors
issued those shares to the TFC. These shares have been issued at a price of Rs. 39.28 per share
resulting in ovenll premium from [FC on issue of shares amountng to Rs. 341.311 million.

December 31, June 30,

2024 2024
CAPITAL RESERVE Norte - Rupeeseeemeaes
Share premium T1&72 680,467,220 680,467,220

Premium received over and above face value of the shares issued to IFC amounting to Rs. 341
million out of which Rs. 22.9 milllon had been utlized under section 83 of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017) during the year ended June 30, 2014,

Premmum received over and above face value of the shares ssued to general public through PO
amounting to Rs, 466.3 million out of which Rs. 45.9 million had been utlized under section 81 of
the Campanies Act, 2017 during the year ended June 30, 2019.

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET
OF TAX

This represents surplus arsing on revaluaton of land, buildings, plant and machinery and
generators, net of deferred tax. The latest revaluation was carried by MYK Associates (Private)
Limited on June 28, 2024,

December 31, June 30,

2024 A24
Rupees--—

Surplus on revaluation at the beginning of the period/year 5,880,027,428 2478272715
Surplus on revaluation recognized during the period/year - 3428782174
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of

disposal of property, plant and equipment (878,525) -
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of

incremental depreciation charged during the period/year (119,784,410)  (27,027,461)

Surplus on revaluation of operatng fixed assers as at June 30 5,759,364,493  5880,027428
Less: related deferred tax liability:

- at beginning of the pedod/year (685,741,518) (69,448 835)
- on surplus arsing on revaluation during the period/year - (624,400,921)
- on disposed off dunng the pedod/year 254,772 -

- on incremental depreciation charged during the period/year 34,737479 8,108,238

5,108,615,226 _ 5,194,285,910
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9.1

9.2

93

94

9.5

9.6

Restriction on distribution

The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is not available for distribution to the
sharcholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

December 31, June 30,

2024 2024
LONG TERM FINANCES - SECURED MNote . T T —
From banking companies and finandial institition:
LTFF/ILTFF 9.1 139,359,733 168,564,430
TERF/ITERF 9.2 848,165,108 910,985,999
FFSAP 03 283,088,051 187,651,714
Demand Finance 24 381,086,123 567,355,283
1,651,699,015 1,834,757 426
Current portion of long term finunces - secured (362,759,221)  (359,121,960)

1,288,939,794  1,475,635,400

The Company has obtmined Long Term Financing/Islimic Long Term Financing Facility
(LTFF/ILTFF) under SBP Schemes from various commercial banks. The effective rates of mark-up
on these facilities wary from SBP rate+ 1% to 2.5% per antum (Junie 2024: SBP tate+ 1% to 2.5%

The Company has obtained Temporary Economic/Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility
(TERF/ITERF) under SBP Schemes from varous commercial banks and Islamic banks. The
effective eates of mark-up on these facilities vary from SBP rate+ 1.50% to 2% per annum (June
2024: SBP+ 1.5% to 2% per annum).

The Company has obtained Financing Facility for Storage of Agricultural Produce (FFSAP) under
SBP Scheme from various financial insttutions. The effective rates of mark-up on these facilities
vary from SBP rate + 1.25% to 2.00% per anpum (June 2024: SBP mee + 1.25% to 2.00% per

The Company has obtained Demand Finance Faclity (DF) from various commereial banks. The
effective rates of mark-up on these facilities vary from KIBOR+ 1% to 2.25% per annum (June
2024: KIBOR+ 1% to 2.25% per annum).

These facilities are secured by way of hypothecation charge of present/future fixed assets (land,

building, plant & machinery) of the Company with 25% margin / 1st Exclusive charge over specific
machinery assets.

The maximum available amount from above mentioned facilites amounts to Rs, 89630 million
(June 2024: Rs. 552.59 million).
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10  LEASE LIABILITIES

December 31, 224 Jone 3,204
Nowe Vehide  Godown Seler  Gisemior  Toal Vehicle ~ Godown  Genenar ~ Toial
Rupees

Opesing bilance TARSD 118 ¥ < DR NGISID IOBIM TSIIM WA DRI
lipact ofadption of [FRS-1§ . ; : : 2 : : X :
Reasszsment oflesie Rability - 3 - - R - NG - N
A July 8 WABE |50 < DS MLEATD DML DENLET WA 05T
Addinces foe the penel 745483 <l + U - : . '
Dupesa dung the period (s - . S (s .

Mruedinterst duiogthepesind LSO AMAUI LW LR WS NAAOU  NTAM OSBRI WIM30
DTS BDGAR MR UGLSE  WMLMMER  LDSEATH GLIGHI 13N BOuNe
Fymest made duringthepend QARG (17400  (RNRIOD QAN (LIGSY (0NO UMD GIIMN (RGN
HONATH MUTRAR NAGGSH LAY CNATGE  MANOR AV DS 2SS
Cimest posios f e b~ ALGBN 1SN ISAOMG  2U0SH WA BMN NN AD0H MU

Naocurment JHS0SN IREGHT  WHATE RIS ST SLWTE TG RO LSV
101 Marturity analysis of lease liabilities

Upto ey AGSIN NG ENEE  2WIES MM BRON AR5 AW AT

Alier oo at 06084 INGGET WMATS  AINGN BMGTAT  L0TH  NRSAN0 LMK (TS

Lease lishilivies IRSATH HLTMAD INABGSH  ILMWAIS ORISR AN 1LME0 DTS5

10.2  Sale and Leaseback Transactions

It reflects the sale and leaseback liabilines included in the above lease liabilides and discloses the
impact on financial satements due to the said ransactions:

10.21 Reason for sale and leaseback transactions

Dunng the penod, the Company initiated 2 sale and leaseback transaction 1o enhance its liquidity
and optimize cash flow. The transaction involved the disposal of vehicles, for which liabilities had
been fully settled but remained in the Company's possession, and the solar project installed in the
Corn Starch division.

10.22 Key terms and conditions

The leaseback arrangement is structured under Diminishing Musharmka and Modamba agreements,
with a liability repayment period of 5 years. The financing facility for vehicles and solar, obtained
from the bank, amounts to Rs. 312 million, subject to a profit mte of 3-month KIBOR + 1.5%.

10.23 Disclosure of transaction and effects on financial statements

During the petiod, the Company entered into & sale and leaseback transaction, whereby certuin
assets were sold and subsequently leased back. The transaction has been accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 16 - Leases, after determining that the transfer of assets meers the definiton
of a sale under IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customets.
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n

1.1

11.2

11.21

11.2.2

As a result of the transaction, the Company has recognized a Right-of-Use (ROU) asset at an
amount equal to the proportionate carrying value of the asset sold, adjusted for any prepaid or
accrued lease payments. A gain or loss on sile has been recognized in profit or loss, reflecting anly
the portion of the asset's carrying amount transferred to the buyer-lessor. The remaining gain related
to the reined interest in the leased asset has been deferred and will be recognized over the lease
term.

The value of transaction which is included in the sale and leaseback transactions;

Carrying Value Sale Proceed Gain/ (Loss) Lease Linbiliry
Vehicles 65,313,850 97,344,500 13377976 975344500
Solar 120,856,770 116,865,000 13,852,640 116,865,000

December 31, Junie 30,
2024 2024

DEFERRED LIABILITIES Note eemesermeeee RUpeesemeeemeeae
Deferred tax liability 11.1 651,004,038 685,741,518
Staff gratuity scheme - unfunded § B 247,527,338 295,075,963

898,531,376 980,817 481

This represent deferred tax on surplus on revaluaton of property, plant and equipment. Further, the
Company has deferred tax asset amounting to Rs, 90.65 million (June 2024: Rs. 22.26 million),
However, the Company has not recorded deferred mx asser in of these unconsolidated financiul

statements.
December 31, June 30,
2024 2024

Staff gratuity scheme - unfunded Note ALl L TR
Balance at beginning of the period/year 295,075,963 239,314,961
Charge for the period/year 11.27 52,349,655 95,436,914
Actuarial (gains) / losses 550,266 (17,947,901)
Payments made during the period/year (100,448,546) (21,728,011)
Balance at end of the period /year 11.23 247,527,338 295,075,963

Staff retirement benefits - unfunded

In accordance with the requirements of TAS-19 “Employee Benefits”, actuanal valuation was carnied
out as at December 31, 2024, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”, Provision has been made
in these unconsolidated financial statements to cover obligations in accordance with the actuarial
recommendations. Details of significant assumptions used for the valuation in respect of above-
mentioned schemes are as follows:

December 31, June 30,

Note 2024 2024
Discount rate - per annum 12.25% 14,75%
Expected rate of increase in salaries - per annum 11.25% 12.75%
Mortality rate SLIC (2001-05) SLIC (2001-05)

The amounts recognized in the unconsolidated
statement of financial position are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 1123 247,527,338 295,075,963
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1n23

11.2.4

1n.25

11.2.6

.27z

11.2.8

Movements in the net liability recognized in
the unconsolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

Opening liability

Charge for the year
Actuarial losses

Benefits paid

Balance at end of the year

The AMOuUns recognized in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss
against defined benefit scheme are as follows:

Current service cost
Interest cost
Charge for the year

The amounts recognized in the other
comprehensive income against defined benefit
scheme arc as follows:

Actuarial loss arising from
- changes in financial assumptions
- experience adjustment

Expense chasgeable to unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss for the next year

Current service cost
Interest cost
Charge for the year
The expense for the staff retirement benefit
scheme has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales
Selling and distabution
Administrative expenses

Sensitivity analysis of actuarial assumptions

Note

11.24

344
35.1
36.1

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
295,075,963 239,314,961
52,349,655 05,436,914
550,266  (17.947.901)
(100,448,546)  (21,728011)
247,527,338 295,075,963
. e —
34,307,248 58,313,634
18,042,407 37,123,280
52,349,655 95,436,914
(2,109,642) 12,469,056
2,659,908 (30,416,957)
550,266 (17,947.901)
68,614,496 68,614,406
38864480 43523705
—on.78576. Tz 58201
36,189,938 62,135,490
3,018,171 5,942.46G7
13,141,546 27,358,957
52,349&55 05,436,914

The sensitivity analysis is prepared using same computation model and assumptions as used to
determine defined benefit obligation based on Projected Credit Unit Method, There i no change
from prior year in respect of methods and assumptions used to prepare sensitivity analysis. The
impact of 1% change in following vanables on defined benefit obligation is as follows:
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11.2.9

Inctease in Decrease in

assumptions  assumptions

Rupeesge—esee—e

Discount mite 289.565,.297 289,536,522
Expected salary increase 346,979,492 347,559,436

Risks on account of defined benefit scheme

The Company faces the following nsks on account of defined benefit scheme:

Final salary risk

The nsk that the final salary at the ime of cessation of service is greater than what the Company has

assumed. Since the benefit is calculated an the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase
proportionately.

Discount rate fluctuation

The defined benefir liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate
bond yields. A decrease in corpormte bond yields will increase defined benefit liabilities.

December 31, June 30,

11.2.10 Maturity profile 2024 2024

Average expected remaining wotking lifetime of members 10 Years 10 Years
Average doration of liability 09 Years 09 Years
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122

14

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note Rupees
Creditors 2,379,297,10 2,228,581 315
Accrued liabilities 135,829,043 127,141,293
Tax deducted at source and payable to
statutory authonties 8312,718 7,800,016
Sales tax payable to statutory nuthorities 57,253,101 12,473,020
Warkers' welfare fund 12.1 6,074,946 -
Warkers' profit participation fund 12.2 15,187,365 -
2,601,954,364 2,375,995,644
Worker's welfare fund
Opening balance - 15,276,100
Allocation for the period/year 6,074,946 -
Reversal of WWF - (14,737,054)
Amount paid - (539,046)
Closing balance 6,074,946 .
Wortker's profit participation fund
Opening balance - 38,190,251
Alloeation for the period /year 15,187,365 -
Amount paid - (38,190,251)
Closing balance 15,187,365 -
ACCRUED MARE-UP
Mark-up cn long term finances 32,617,875 39,369,552
Mark-up on short term borrowings 188,970,377 520,647,638
221,588,252 560,017,210
DUE TO RELATED PARTY

This represents amount received from the Matco Marketing (Private) Limited for the purpose of
expenses to be incurred by the Company on their behalfl The maximum aggregate amount at the
end of any month during the year was Rs, 6,56 million (June 2024: Rs. 6.80 million).

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS Note Rupees
SECURED
Expart re-finance 15.1 7,553,475,628 6,021,089,048
Own resource 15.2 4,081,693,853 4,947 573,341
FE-25 Scheme 15.3 1,825,130,688 81,041,424
Foreign bills purchased /negotiated 15.4 264,516,306 74,256,940
13,724,816, 475 11,123,990,753
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15.2

15.3

15.5

15.6

17
171
17.1.1

The Company has short term running finance fucllity under Export Refinance Scheme of the State
Bank of Pakistan from Commercial banks and Islamic banks. The effective rates of mark-up on
these facilitdes at SBP rate plus 1% per annum (June 2024: SBP rate plus 1% per annum),

The Company has short reem running finanee facility under own resource from Commereial banks
and Islamic banks, The effective rares of mark-up on these facilities vary from 3-month/6-month
KIBOR plus 0.75% to 2.5% per anoum (June 2024: 3-month/6-month KIBOR plus 0.75% to
2.5% per annum).

The Company has obtained short term running finance facility under FE-25 loan scheme of the
State Bank of Pakistan from commercial banks during the year. The effective rates of mark-up on
these facilities is 8.85% to 10.2% per annum (June 2024: 9% to 10% per annum).

It carries mark-up that is to be negotiated on case to case basis (June 2024: negotiated on case 1o
case basis), This facility is secured by ranking hypothecation charge over stocks and receivables duly
insured in bank's favor covenng all asks with premium payment receipr.

The facilities available from varous banks amount to Rs. 15,270 million (June 2024: Rs. 12,420
million), These facilities are secured by way of hypothecation charge of all present and future cash
collateral /TDR, receivable, stocks & current assets. These facilities are registered by mortgage
charge of land, building, plant and machinery and all present & future fixed assets.

As at December 31, 2024, the unavailed facilities from above borrowings amounting to Rs. 1,809.70
million (June 2024: 1,296.01 million).

UNPAID DIVIDEND

This represents part of interim dividend for the period ended December 31, 2017, September 30,
2022 and March 31, 2023 and final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2018, June 30, 2019, June
30, 2020 and June 30, 2023 which remained unpaid to the shareholders who have not provided
their valid Central Depository System (CIDS) Account no. and International Bank Account Number
(TBAN). The Company has already sent letrers to those sharcholders for the purpose of above
stated informaton.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Company has filed a avil suit No. 1061 of 2021, for declaration and permanent injunction
against Sindh Industrial Trading Estates Limited (SITE). The SITE issued an impugned notice to
the Company cancelling the Company's lease of plot H/162 SITE ("Subject Property) in alleged
compliance of a Supreme Court order, declaring the plot in question to be an amenity plot. The
Company has opposed such cancellation of its lease on the basis that the Master Plan of site shows
the Subject Property to be an industrial plot. Furthermore, it is contended that the SITE has issued
the impugned notice in defiance of the Company's proprietary rights in the land and such notce is
illegal and in excess of their authority. The Company has a stay order in favor of the Company
dated Aprl 29, 2021 restraining the SITE from taking any coerdve action in pursuance of the
notice. The matter is fixed for hearing and the management of the Company believes that the
matter will be decided in favor of the Company.
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17.1.2

17.1.3

17.1.4

17.1.5

The Company had filed the civil suit no. 1635 of 2009 for possession of land which was illegally
dispossessed by the Syed Alay Sadagain Naqgvi (defendants) and to issue a permanent injunction to
restruin the defendants from alienation or transferring the lind. The Honorable Sindh High Court
(SHC) passed an order on November 19, 2009, in which SHC has granted permanent injunction in
above suit on October 17, 2018. The matter is fixed for heating and the management of the
Company believes that the matter will be decided in favor of the Company.

Suit no, 2141 of 2015 has been filed against the Company for declaration, possession, damages,
mesne profit and injuncton before the Senior Civil Judge (west) at Karachi. The plaintff claims o
be the lawful owner of a piece of land measuring 10 scres ("Subject Land"), which also includes the
land which is also subject marter of suit no, 1635 of 2009. The plaintff has sought declaration as to
the ownership and occupation of Subject Land. The Company has filed an applicadon under Order
7 Rule 11 starting therein that the instant suit is barred by law as the plauntiff's earlier suits raising
the same dispute were dismissed. On August 29, 2017, the leamed Judge was pleased to allow the
application of the Company and the plaundff appeal was rejected sccordingly. The Plaintff
aggrieved by the said order appealed the same matter before IVth Additional and Distnice Judge
(ADY]) bearing Appeal No. 311 of 2017 ("Appeal"). On September 12, 2018, the learned Appellate
Court decided the Appeal in favor of the Plainaff and against the Company, set aside the order
dated August 29, 2017 and restored the above suit. Aggrieved by the order of AD] in Appeal no.
311 of 2017 the Company filed appeal no 157 of 2018. The Company contended that the ordet
passed by ADJ was bad in law as the law does not pesmit fresh proceedings on the same cause of
action of which issue has already been adjudicated upon by the Courts and the suit 2141 of 2015
was nghtly rejected by the tral court. The learmed Judge after heanng the Company's submission
and arguments was plessed to suspend the operation of the impugned Judgement (passed in
Appeal no. 311 of 2017) via order dated December 17, 2018, The matter s fixed for hearing and
the management of the Company believes that the matter will be decided in favor of the Company.

The Company has filed suit no. 1378 of 2019 in SHC against Sul Southern Gas Company Limited.
The case has been filed on the ground that the gas waff/price has been increased by SSGC illegally.
The case is pending before SHC and is fixed for hearing. Furthermore, the management of the
Company in consultation of legal advisor is of the view that based on the merit of the case, the
same will be decided in favor of the Campany.

The Company had filed suit no 1820 of 2020 in SHC against Sui Southern Gas Company Limited.
The case has been filed on the ground that the gas tariff/price has been increased by SSGC illegally.
Previously, SHC had directed the Company to pay their bills according to previous judgement by
either bank guarantee or deposit cheque ready to encash to the satisfaction of the Nazir of the court
and SSGC shall issue revised bills. However, SHC has concluded on February 18, 2023, that the
price increase is not illegal and argument of increase in sale price does not have force. Consequent
to said decision the Company has filed an appeal under SHC, The SHC via HCA No. 212 of 2023
stated, nll the conclusion of the case, the Company shall deposit a cheque to the Nazir and the
Nazir shall not encash the cheques, which accarding to the Company being the differential amount
of the gas bill, which have been deposited. IF the cheques expired, it will be replaced by a fresh one.
Further SHC via HCA No. 220 of 2023 stated, the judgement passed on February 18, 2023 is
suspended till the next date of hearing. Further the management of the Company in consultation of
legal advisor is of the view that based on the merit of the case, the same will be decided in favor of
the Company.
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17.1.6

1717

17.1.8

The Company has filed & suit for declaration and permanent injunction against the Syed Alay
Sadagain Nagqvi (defendants) for continuously interfering with the peaceful possession of the
extended portion of 0.5 acres of land that was regularized in favor of the Company on February 07,
2020 by virtue of a registered deed of Addends of lease. The Company has pleaded that the
Company is the absolute and lawful owner in possession of an immovable property, name Plot.
No. G-205 SITE Super Highway Phase 11 Karachi measuring 4.5 aeres by virtue of lease deed dated
November 10, 2008 executed by Sindh Industrial Trading Estate Limited. The Company intends to
utilize the 0.5 acres of land that was regularized recently in favor of the Company however, the
defendants is interfering with the possession of the property. The Company has asked the SHC 1o
declare that the defendant is wrongfully and illegally claiming to be the owner of the property and
requested SHC to stop interfering with the Company's peaceful possession on the extended portion
mensuring 0.5 acres. Based on the metit of case the management of the Company believes thut the
matrer will be decided in favor of the Company.

In prior years Govemnment of Sindh impased infrastructure cess @ 0.85% of import value on all
imparts into Pakistan. A large number of imparters including the Company challenged the martter
in the SHC, The SHC has issued an interim order allowing release of impotted goods on 50%
payment and 50% bank guarantee, This suit no, 2173 of 2013 was filed on June 10, 2013, the SHC
has passed the judgement in the subject matrer wheeein SHC has declared the imposition of cess
valid piece of Legislation. The Cnmp:n}r along with other industries affected by the SHC arder has
challenged the judgement of SHC in Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) and in that
appeal stay has been granted by Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) subject to furnishing
bank guarantee of the disputed amount. The management is of the view that the Company is not
likely to suffer any losses due to above suir,

In 2011, Government of Pakistan (GoP) impose 4 levy on gas consumers in the industrial sector,
known as The Gas Infrastucture Development Cess (GIDC). The amount collected was to be
used for the construction of infrastructure projects.

GIDC was challenged in Honorable Peshawar High Court (PHC) in December 2013, PHC
declared the levy of GIDC unconstitutional. PHC further directed the GoP to retumn the collected
amount, GoP challenged the decision of PHC in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP),
however, SCP upheld the decision of PHC by declaring GIDC a fee and not a tax that can be

charged.

In 2015, the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 was introduced which re-imposed the
GIDC. The affected industries again approached the SCP stating that the eatlier tax maney was not
used for the construction of infrastructure projects. SCP granted stay order against payment of any
GIDC levies.

In their judgement dated August 13, 2020, SCP dismissed all petitions against the GIDC levy and
ruled in favor of the GoP which would collect the GIDC from different companies. The affected
industries filed a review petition against the judgement of SCP which has also been dismissed by
SCP vide its arder dared November (13, 2020,

On October 15, 2020, the Company filed suit no. 1531 of 2020 in Honorable High Court of Sindh
(SHC), with a plea that the Company did not pass on the GIDC burden to the end consumer,
therefore in accordance with section 8 (2) of Gas Infrastrucrure Development Cess Act, 2015
(GIDC Acr, 2015) the GIDC 15 not applicable on the Company, which is pending for decision,
however, the SHC has issued susmining order to Gas companies from mking any coercive action

against the Company.
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The management of the Company in consultation of its legal advisor is of the view thar since the
Company has not passed on the burden to its consumer/clients, it is not liable to pay GIDC as they
clearly falls within the ambit of the exception in line with section 8 (2) of GIDC Act, 2015
Furthermore, on prudent basis the Company has made a provision of Rs. 18 million.

17..9 The Company has filed suit No. 730 of 2015 before SHC against the imposition of the Captive

17.2

Power Plant rate instead of the Industrial Consumer mte. The Company contends that they do not
fall into the category of Captive Power Plant, but rather an Industrial Consumer, so the rate
charged by the S5GC ie. Rs.200 per MMBTU, is not applicable in the case of the company. The
case has been decreed in favor of the Company vide order dated February 02, 2020. SSGC had
challenged the Judgment before the Divisional bench of SHC. However, SHC has concluded that
no intention to scll the surplus power can be discerned on the part of plaintiffs either at the time of
conteacting with SSGC or thereafter, and hence the inhouse power generation does not meet the
test of captive power plant for the purpose of NEPRA regulations to attract tariff for captive
power due to the foregaing reasons the suit is decreed in favor of the Company.

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024

Commitments Note Rupees
Letter of credit 133,815,142 225,808,899
Letter of guarantees 46,137,500 46,167,500
Capital Expendirures 125,000,000 172,000,000
Cheques issued in favor of Nazir of high court

in relation 1o S8GC cage 1714 7.732,192 7,132,192

3&534& 451,708,591
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDEE DECEMBER 31, 2024

18.1.1 The depreciation charge foe the year has been allocated as follows:

December 31, Jurie 30,
2024 2024
MNote Rupees
Cost of sales: 34 298,328,698 379,143,770
Selling and distnbution expenses 35 18,645,544 23,696,486
Administeagve expenses 36 35,036,631 71,089,456
372,910,873 =_4?],92'3.?1 2

18.1.2 Factory land mcludes a plot in which a law suit has been filed by the plaintiff who is cluiming the
possession and injunction of the property. The case is in process under the Honorable High Coun Sindh
Karachi (rfir note 17.1.1, 17.1.2, 17.1.3 & 17.1.6),

18.1.3 Opemting fixed assets include assets thar are subject © morgage with vanous banks against long-term
finances and short-term borrowings (refer mole 02 and 15),

18.14 Details of forced sale value of revalued property, plant and equipment

Description of Asscts Forced sale value
Rupees
Land 3,572,190,000
Building 1,954,957 300
Plant and machinery 3,075,264,027
Generators 110,246,588
The above forced sale value has been taken from revaluation report of MYK Associates (Private) Limited
as on June 28, 2024,
18.1.5 ltem of property, phntmd.tqﬁpmuhwmg book value above Re. 500,000 are as follows:
Accunmlated N book
m i i Bale proceeds Gain / Lims  Mode of ilaposs)l — Paricutars of niyer
T TR RER DIRELGE
Faoniry Equipiess
(BT {4120 1,407 523 13800 15000 lpsuenee Clidin L) bnssewnes Co Litd
AT - EEEATU . SMAMEEIOY  IANZAEY  Sals sed Lo Pack  (Fiew bl Modaste
Plaas and Machlnoy
Sdar e ITTEC T T L IR § DO lesiney Chim 3L lnassnee Co. Lad
Mooor Vehicles
L 300,000 3,047,387 1AL ) IR Safe ar] Lawew Mok Pirw Plabsle Madid t
3,101 000 [ ad) 53N Aoh (L TTNY Sale sed Deses Back 1S Flabele Mt
25076 {150 40 AR 13Y LT (MRITH  Sode o Leyee ok how Hiabsle Misfiils
b, D 1707 Baamnm AR (VASANE  Sale wonl Losew Magh  Prosd Fabsile Moo
B2 LiTLi [t Ty L 1,200 fuA) QEA10H)  Babe v Dems Bl et Hlabals Misborten
L] (1,318 HasTT Aabapon (1AW Sile smd Lowss Pack Pt Haldl Madirta
2peAa 338 L= 1.4 ) (370000 Sale gl Lo Mach ot Habsils Modoin
20 00 {1 A20.01) G0, 3300l (PIR]  Sale amd Lo Muah  Firsd Habslb Mot
A DAIRHT) 1,k1,743 TAEME  (LSAMAM  Sabesnd Leves Back Fires Flubsl hidute
RCHA,DEG LTI 110,74 L PRETAT)  Sebe ol Loosw Mack  Fiowt Habile Modarim
% TR LY e lritA Ll ] A B [ AM]  Sale amd Loise ek Pirse | Eabsils Mosbaites
AFTS o0 (11T 1as2 208 At BT  Sale omil Lovaw Mach  Fures Halsil hodarts
3300400 oEAMT 20T 2R (ZAA0R  Bule wod Lanae Mack  Faesd Plabsily Mosdarte
L a 1,7 410040 i (B Sale and e Mack  Flase Habil Blodate
wAnLinE) {27080 £ RR, BTN (G284 Saleamd Lewow Pach  Fuw Hibib hinduhe
b, ) (12aRndy  2aT1 0N Ata (508,630 Sale aod Lowss Mack Fiene Hlable hoodu b
4,700,060 (RSN IO L ew 7200 Sale anid Lot Dk Ploe Pt Mok
Aoi000 (s AT AN CLBARTY  Sule ot Lowse Back  [First | laksie histarte
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MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

18,1.6 Particulass of immovable property (ie. land and building) in the name of Company arc as follows:

18.2

18.3

Locations Total Areain  Covered Area in
Acres Square Feet
Plot A-15 & 16, SITE-II, Super highway Karachi 200 79,155
A-21, SITE-II, Super highway, Kamchi 1.50 47,131
G-205, SITE-II, Super highway, Kasachi 4.0 409416
S0 KM G.T Road, Sadhoke District, Gujramwala 14.68 136,060
B-1/A, SITE-II, Super highway, Karachi a7 34,850
Plot H-162, SITE-II, Super highway, Kamchi 200 B1 340
Plot F-193, SITE-II, Super highway, Kaeachi 200 60,870
50 KM G.T Road, Sadhoke Distrct, Gujranwals 347 I7 987
Plot # 53, SE.Z, Allama Iqbal Industaal City, Faisalabad 20.00 373128
House # 87, Block K, Street # 24, Al Bairuni Roud, WAPDA 0.06 2723
City, Faisalabad
Plot No. 8C, 3cd and 4th Floor, Shahbaz Lane No., Phase VI, 0.08 3,600
DHA, Kamchi
December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
Capital work in progress - Tangibles Rupees—eeeees
Land 1,800,000 1,500,000
Factory Butlding 31,322,108 24,117,453
Plant and machinery 65,814,567 54,035,832
Factory equipment - 79523473
Computers 3,300,670 300,670
102,237 345 162,777 428
—
Movement in capital work in progress is a4 under
Caost
Additons Transferred (o As mr
ARatJUYOL  guring the  Propersy, plame  December 31,
period and equipment e
oy
Land 1,800,000 - - 1,800,000
Factory Building 24,117,453 7,204,655 - 31,322,108
Plarm and machinery 54,035 832 11,778,735 - G5 414 557
Elgernc cables and fithing - - - -
Furniture & Fixture = - o =
MMorvor Vahicles - - -
Clifice equipment - - - -
Factory equipment 79,523,473 41,333 297 (120,686, 770) -
Computers 3,300,670 - - 3300,670
Generatoy - - - -
__leagiaie __ Gosieger (130,§56,770) ___ 103,237,345




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Coomr
Anag July 01, Additions ;r:‘n::f:;:;l‘:: Am at June 3,
2023 during the year 541 cggul 224
P Rupeos—ee—
land 1,800,000 - - 1,800,0Crh
Factoey Building 243,211,486 2110064785 (430,908 A1) 24117453
Flant and machinery SH9TH695 201,609.373 (TUB,532,236) 54,035,833
Electric cables and foting 75,050,505 QR4 020 (B4 A02 218 -
Furnimare & Fixourg A0 00 1,706,575 (1.746,575)
Matoe Vehicles - - B
O ffice oguiprmene 19,0060 2602701 1701 -
Factory eqjuipmant 19,140,286 24,975 (2B HR1,THS) TOE2V 4TI
Computers 300,670 346,500 (36,5000 33004670
Gleneramor - 45,900 (45,0080 =
SIS 540,733 5171023400 (1257 865,733 1A TTT AT

184 The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended December 31, 2024 was Nil {June

2024 Rs. 545 mullion). The rate used to determine the amount of bomowing costs eligible for
capitalization was Nil (June 2024: 11.37%%), which is the EIR of the specific borrowings.

185 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of specific classes of operating propeny, plant and
equipment would have been amounted m:

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
Net book value —eremmmeremeree RUpE S e
Land 447,775,087 447 775,087
Bulding 1,479,179,789 1,532,878,841
Plant and machinery 2,500,935,466 2,626,496,861
Generatons 74,019,275 61,772,526

4,501,90%9,617 4,563,2,315

19 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Precembher 11, 24 e 31, 0
Vikicle Grodisum Folar Crrmeratns Thaal Vikoels Gaolorem Gentrster Tad
| p—

Caut

Dpersyg bhalmx SR MM . BAEEN  aNINAN SLMIe RN (LT SR T

fgeac of advpon o 1P 16 1 . . . . . . :

Remewmetollemt Uibiliy - ILIMHS - - Eiume - ML : St 161
Mot Juily SRR TR o BASAM B0 Ejivie el RSO0 il

Addny dating the penod TS = B - LN . - . .

Revaleimmn Faopas durmy; e e - - . - - . - 4 AN

Dipod dogibepenad LN : ST - : :
Tueal MSE AT DA NEAAE ELMAND  EIOMIN LRI N A
Accmmulgsed depreciation

Omeiins bl snwe LRk R L L . LuGAT  RRIENSE  I0EITMA S 0Tl R L TATY

Chuarge B the period 14,550,085 T pRE L] ORI IASTaM  MUE0E 107 i L R AL
Clasing NG SNIN)  LELIM LS BGUAAY LM ST LWSHE MM
Nt bk e N I U T SN DU SIS OIS SUSIS
Lease wrm 5 Yearn 1 Vearn 5 Yran §Yrem § Yeaer Ml Veees 5¥on

191  The following are the amounts recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss:
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21

il |

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
Mote Rupees

Deprecmtion expense of dght-of-use assets 34 27,057,059 42,715,540
[nterest expense an lease linbilities on Gadown 34 8,708,331 21,933 804
Interest expense on lease liabilities an vehicles 37 17,070,836 24 804 650
Total amount recognised in unconsolidated

statement of profit or loss 52,836,226 89,454,084
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cosr
Opening 14,710,766 14,710,766
Addivon duting the period/year . -
Closing 14,710,766 14,710,766
Amortization
Opening (14,710,766) (14,710,766)
Charge for the penod/vear - -
Closing (14,710,766) (14,710,766)
Balance as a1 period end/year end . 2
This represents accounting softwace which has been fully amortized.

December 31, June 30,
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 2024 2024
Investment - at cost rmrmrm e U OO e
Subsidiary
JET General Trading FZE 2.1 23,582,747 SR T4AT
Marco Marketing (Povate) Limited 212 7,499,960 7,499,960
Joint Venture
Barentz Pakistan Private Limited 213 24,500,000 24,500,000
55,582,707 SEBE.TG?

—_—
On October §, 2013, the Company incorparated a new wholly owned subudisry, |KT Genenl Trading
FZE in UA.E The pancipal activities are genenl trading, expoet / import and other relared activities.
The Company has made an equity investment of USD 255,000 out of which shares of USD 40,872 have
been issued. Shares for the remaining amount would be ssued after completon of necessary regulatory
formalines.

On November 13, 2017, the Compaoy has subscrbed 749,996 shares of Matco Macketing (Private)
Limited. However, Matco Macketing (Povate) Limited has not commenced its operations since
incorporaton.

On June 28, 2019, the Company has been incorporated in Pakistan as per agreement between Barentz
International B.V. and Mateo Foods Limited. Mateon Foods Limited has subseribed 49% of toml
shareholding of Rs. 50 Million, thereby, constituting 4 Joint Venture.

The following tble provides summanzed financial mformanon for the jome venture. The information
disclosed reflects the amounts peesemted i the Anancisl statements of the assocates and not the
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214

221

231

2.2

Company's shate of those amounts. The financlal information presented below are based on the interim
financial statements for the penod ended December 31, 2024,

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
Rupreeseamses
Assers 405,606,828 240,445,082
Liabilitics: 343,794,045 208,790,447
Revenues 624,337,872 503,749,179
Profit for the pedod 32,205,641 18,747,754

The investment in subsidiary and associates have been made in sccordance with the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017, Further, no such terms and conditions bhas been made ar the nme of invesoment.
The Company has beneficial ownership of the investee companies. No retum on investment has been
made since incorparation. There are no litgation sgainst the subsidisnes and associates of the company
that may inpact the interest of the Company.

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS Note  ——————-——Rupees-——remrrem
Stores and spares 343 326,596,040 279,301,307
Provision for slow moving / obsolete items 224 (1,543,929) (1,543,929)

325,#52.1.“_ Z71,847 378

Movement in provision for slow moving /

obsolete items

Balanee at beginning of the year 1,543,929 1,543,929

Charpe for the year - -

Balance at end of the year 1,543,929 1,543,929

STOCK IN TRADE

Raw matenals 32 6,478,458,608 6,259,076,247

Packing materials 459,838,850 500,647 685

Finished poods M3 6,824 876,683 4,875,699.241
13,763,174,141 11,635,423,173

Provision for slow moving / cbsolete items 31 (22,618,208) (21,852,280)

13,740,555,933 11,613 570,893

Movement in provision for slow

moving / obsolete items

Opening balance 21,852,280 20,054,205
Charge for the year 765,928 BOBOTS
Write off durng the year - -
Closing balance 22,618,208 31,852,280

This includes pledged raw matenal with vanous banks under long term and short term bomowing
armngements (refes note 09 and 15),

This wseludes by produet amounting to Rs. 524.92 mullion (June 2024: Ra. 71613 milion) and stock-in-
traitsit amounting to Nil [June 2024: Nil),
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December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
24 TRADE DEBTS Note ———————Rupees-
Consideted good
Export - secured 242 1,627,955,926 1,660,447,146
Local - unsecured 950,533,149 674321212
Consdered doubful
Local - unsecured 13,567,967 13,567,967
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 244 {13,567,967) (13,567 967)
2,578,489,075 __ 2.334,168,358

241 Borowings ace secured by way of charge over book debts of the Company (refer notes 09 ind 15).

24.2 It includes the amount of Rs. 12.26 millon which 1= past due up to 3 months (June 2024: Rs. 12.28
million) and Rs. 9.04 million which is past due up to 6 months, (June 2024: Nil) due from JKT General
Trading FZE (celated party). The maximum aggtegate amount due from related party at the end of any
month dunng the year wits Rs. 47.01 million (June 2024: Rs. 13,41 million).

December 31, Jume 30,
2024 2024

243 As of December 31, 2024, the ape analysis of trade Note  —emeeeeesscee RUPECS e een

debies s as follows:

Not yet due n

Past due:

- Up 0 3 months 2,458,737,630 2,303,026 902

- 3 to 6 manths 102,715,922 27 819,137

= 6 1o 12 months 8,920,835 2480373

= More than 12 months 8,114,780 1,441,946
2,578,489,075 2334,768,358

Trade debirs - Gross 2,578,439,075 2 334,768 358

U4 Allowance for expected credit losses
Opening balance 13,567,967 13,567,967
Charge dunng the year - -
Closing balanece 13,567,967 13,567,067

25 LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans
Seaff - unsecured, considered good 25.1 25,114,901 25,773,562
Advances
- aguinst services and others 4,916,648 3335362
- against purchasey 253 1,724,909,571 9B0,B37 487

1,754,941,120 1,009,046,411

251 [t represent interest free loans to vanous staff in accordance with the Company’s policy.

252 The maximum aggregate amount due from executves at the end of any month during the year was R

3.73 million (June 2024: Rs. 3.12 million),
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253

26.1

71

272

It represents the amount provided to supplices of rice, com, stores & spares and packaging which s
adjustable against futuce purchases.

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM Note  ———e T3 1-T T —
PREPAYMENTS
Deposits
- Capital mianagement uceount 45,572 45572
- Guarantee margin 1,483,625 1,938,143
Prepayments.
- Prepmad expense 26.1 9,027,167 12,734,714
- Prepaid insuranee 2,474,984 13202222
11,502,151 25,936,936
13,031,348 27,920,651
This include prepaid expense relanng to godown rent and system maintenance charges.
December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT Note Rupees
Mutual fund units 21 - -
Term depont cectificates 22 1,200,000 1,200,000
1,200,000 1,200,000

It represent mutaal funds unit of Al-Meezan lslamie fund, Al-Ameen lslamic Fund and Al-Ameen
Islamic Stock Fund which were dispased off dunng the pear (June 2024: Nil),

These represent term deposit certificates of Askan Bank Limited amounting to Re. 1.2 million (June
2024: Rs. 1.2 million) respectively. The rte of profit on these cerificases is 11% per annum (June 2024:
2(%) these term deposit certificates will mature on June 2025,

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024

SALES TAX REFUNDABLE Note —mrmmmm e e RUPEE e
Sales tax refundable 281 25,000,000 25,000,000
Movement in sales tax refundable is as under:

Balance at beginning of the year 25,000,000 64,935,578
Deposited against the sales tax pention 40.6 - 25,000,000
Refunds clam for the year - -
Received dunng the year . (58,873,613)
Adjusted during the vear - (6,061,965)

Balunce at end of the year 25,000,000 25,000,000
B =




MATCO FOODS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE EI]{-MDNTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2024

29 DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

Barentz Pakistan (Private) Limired

291 74,398,259

50,326,380
—

29.1  Ths includes 2n amount of Rs. 2.05 million (June 2024; Rs. 9.13 million) receivable in cespect of interest
on loan. The maximum aggregate amount of loan due from Barentz Pakistan (Privare) Limired ar the end
of any month duning the year was Rs. 74.90 million (June 2024: Rs. 77.23 million). The amount will be
utilized by the assocmted company 10 meet the working capital requitement of the associated company,
The effective rates of mark-up on this receivable is 3 months KIBOR+2% (June 2024 3 months

KIBOR+2%).

29.2  All above dues ace payable on demand.
293 Ageing analysis of recetvables from relared parties past due but not impaired are as follows:

Up 10 3 Months

3 o 6 Months

(6 to 12 Months
More than 12 Months

30 TAXATION AND LEVIES - NET

Advance tncome mx |/ levies
Provisian for Jevies and taxation

31  CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash i hand
Cash at bank
- cutrent accounts
- deposit accounts

311 These carry weighted average profit of 9.18% per annum (June 2024: 19% per annum),

Barentz Pakistan (Private) Limited

December 31,

Nutt “"""""""""H*RI:IFQ‘E"_—"_'

74,398,259 50,326,380
74,398,259 50,326,380
321,572,447 365,287,525
(100,184,768) (258,998,630)
221,387,679 106,288,895
December 31, June 30,

2024 2024
Note  —e—eeeeeee-Rupes-eee—e————
10,313,253 4,227,007
18,613,450 273.457,152
311 107,596,225 79,734,447
126,209,682 353,191,599
136,522,035 357 418,696
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32

OPERATING RESULTS
Disaggregation of revenue
Fxport Sales

Local Sales

- Main Products

- By-Products and Others

Gross Sales

Sales discount / return
Sales tax

Freight

Clearing and forwarding

Net Sales
Cost of Sales
Gross profit

Selling and distribution expenses

Administeative expenses

Operating profit
Unallocated items
Finance cost

Other income

Exchange gain - net

Provision for worker's welfare fund
Provision for worker's profit participation fund
Profit before levies and income tax

Levies - Final and Minimum Tax
Taxation
Profit for the year

Note

Reportable Segment

Rice and Allied Products Corn Starch Products Total
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Un-Aundited Un-Audited Un-Audited
RUI)L\-U

6,957,891,349 8,721,405918 748,758,350 134,333,952 7,706,649,699 8,855,739 870

1,202,625,202 1468,022,110 2,288,743,802 2,613,959,784 3,491,369,004 4,081,981,894

2,410,289,712 1,770,527 015 562,472,500 2,129 900 2,972,762,212 1,772,656,915

3,612,914,914 3234,549,125 2,851,216,302 2,616,089,684 6,464,131,216 5,854,638,809

10,570,806,263 11,959,935,043 3,599,974,652 2,750,423,636 14,170,780,915 14,710,378,679
(82,727,279) (47,453,906) (45,269,166) (31,629,133) (127,996,445) (79,083,039)
(81,234,765) (66,925,170) (433,262,939) (387,607,610) (514,497,704) (454,532,780)
(439,288,770) (191,966,384) (110,106,653) (3,299,771) (549,395,423) (195,266,155)
(34,150,722) (24,157 ,860) (8,212,489) (4,513,000) (42,363,211) (28,670,860)

9,933,404,727 11,629,451,723 3,003,123 405 2,323,374,122 12,936,528,132 13,952,825 845
(8,465,091,628)  (10.202,742,243) (2,712,840,137) (2,046,309,991) (11,177,931,765)  (12,249,052,235)

1,468,313,099 1,426,709 480 290,283,268 277,064,131 1,758,596,367 1,703,773,610
(225,983,306) (233,386,633) (38,390,088) (17,995,286) (264,373,393) (251,381,919)
(302,111,701) (254,718,362) (69,647,904) (58,358,220) (371,759,605) (313,076,588)
(528,095,007) (488,104,995) (108,037,992) (76,353,512) (636,132,998) (564,458,507)

940,218,092 938,604,485 182,245,276 200,710,619 1,122,463,369 1,139,315,103
(1,072,415,926) (1,039,795,896)

63,008,502 24 427 865

211,953,674 32,851,720
(6,074,946) (2,884,347)
(15,187,365) (7,210,868)

303,747,308 146,703,577

(100,184,768) (127,167,148)

34,737,480 64,847,327

238,300,020 84,383,956




MATCO FOODS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

321
322

32.3
324

32.5

32.6
32.7

33

33.1

Reportable Segment
Rice and Allied Products Corn Starch Products Total
December 31, June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31, June 30,
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
Rupees
Segment assets 25,057,035,506 21,785,336,509 4,968,418,731 3.860,711,023 30,025,454,237 25,646,047,532
Unallocated assets - . - - 411,308,543 1,893,027 465
25,057,035,506 21,785,336,509 4,968,418,731 3.860,711,023 30,436,762,780 27,539,074,997
Segment liabilities 16,822,299,686 11,797,632,152 3,381,585,378 4,003,345,092 20,203,885,064 15,800,977 244
Unallocated liabilites = - s - 7,506,101 1,750,475,893
16,822,299,686 11,797,632,152 3,381,585,378 4,003,345,092 20,211,391,165 17,551,453,137
Major non-cash 1tems
- Depreaation and amortisation 254,195,095 315,363,594 145,772,837 201,281,659 399,967,932 516,645,253
- Gratuity 38,736,347 71,890,722 13,613,308 23,546,192 52,349,655 95,436.914
292,931,442 387,254,316 159,386,145 224,827,851 452,317,587 612,082,167
Capital expenditure 83,040,981 1,172 484,128 92,747,766 420,948 841 175,788,746 1,593 432969
The Company's export sales have been primarily made to continents in the Asia, Africa, Europe, North America and Australia & New Zealand,
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Un-Audired
Rupees
Africa 438,350,853 530,242,189
Asia 2,412,066,486 2,740,555,663
Australia & New Zealand 1,066,796,632 1,399.410,549
BEurope 3,128,735,864 3,668,300,273
USA & Canada 660,699,864 517,231,196
7,706,649,699 8,855,739.870
RECONCILIATION OF REPORTABLE SEGMENT SALES,
COST OF SALES, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Assets
Total assers for reportable segments 30,025,454,237 25.646,047,532
Administrative capital assets - 239,635,175
Invesiments 55,582,707 55,582,707
Loans and advances = 1,009.946,411
Cash and bank balances - 357 418,696
Orthers 355,725,836 230 444 476

Toral assers

30,436,762,780

27,539,074,997
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33.2 Liabilities

Toral labilities for reportable sepments
Deferred liabilities

Lease habilities

Trade and other payables - Others
Due 1o related parues

Unpaid dividend

Total liabilties

34 COST OF SALES
Raw material consumed
Packing materials consumed
Stores and spares consumed
Processing expenses
Salaries, wages and benefis
Electrcity and power
Telephone and mobile
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Orther purchases
Provision for slow moving stock
Fumigaton charges
Water charges
Canteen
Diesel and o1l
Staff welfare
Securty expenses
Godown expenses
Rent, rates and raxes
Brought Forward

Note
34.1
342
34.3

344

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
Rupees
20,203,885,064 15,800,977 244
- 980,817,481
- 210,325,254
- 524,275,385
6,412,777 6,563,777
1,093,324 28,495,996
20,211,391,165 17,551 ,453,137
Reportable Segment
Rice and Allied Products Corn Starch Products Total
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Un-Audited Un-Audited Un-Audited
Rupees
8,123,323,660 9,077,686,600 2,030,405,303 1,465,368,814 10,153,728,963 10,543,055 414
489,902,593 429,921,917 102,281,190 61,087,338 592,183,783 491,009,255
263,762,240 293,513,301 193,437,520 193,487,310 457,199,760 487,000,611
402,110,136 320,115,413 179,862,591 134,654,415 581,972,727 454,769,828
243,281,874 179,562,867 214,504,910 223,963,013 457,786,784 403,525,881
1,145,224 967,891 180,837 59,937 1,326,061 1,027,828
16,360,890 8,037,105 - 432,018 16,360,890 8,469,123
26,749,840 19,040,346 3,817,053 2,580,111 30,566,893 21,620,457
263,928,324 161,782,742 - 263,928,324 161,782,742
765,928 - - - 765,928 -
49,308,511 45,447,391 4,309,650 1,821,995 53,618,161 47,269,386
37,426,984 44,611,006 24,816 170,112 37,451,800 44.781,118
9,740,148 9,906,579 920,221 347,062 10,660,369 10,254,241
126,380 47,760 - - 126,380 47,760
5,081,731 2,791,294 1,705,860 1,431,488 6,787,591 4222782
14,311,318 13,158,995 817,500 1,292,083 15,128 818 14451078
18,547,920 17,766,074 s 18,547,920 17,766,074
80,000 - - - 80,000 =
9,965,953,701 10,624,357 281 2,732,267,451 2,086,696,294 12,698,221,152 12,711,053,578
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341

34.2

34.3

Note
Carried Forward
Vehicle running expenses
Medical
Deprecition [8.1.1
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 19.1
Interest expense on lease liabilities 19.1

Processing charges
[nspection charges
Others
Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of Sales

Raw material consumed
Opening stock

Purchases

Cartage inwards

Closing stock

Packing material consumed
Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock-gross

Stores and spares consumed
Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock-gross

Reportable Segment
Rice and Allied Products Corn Starch Products Total
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Un-Audited In-Audied Un-Audited
Rupees
9,965,953,701 10,624,357 281 2,732,267,451 2,086,696,296 12,698,221,152 12,711,053,578
18,619,443 20,941,530 2,285,276 1,765,645 20,904,719 22.707,175
5,689,083 4,177,424 1,724,441 1,229,615 7,413,524 5407,039
187,712,576 110,394,066 110,616,122 79,670,047 298,328,698 190,064,113
19,554,375 . 7,502,684 27,057,059 =
8,708,331 10,163,903 B - 8,708,331 10,163,903
4,637,385 731,998 20,720 37,942 4,658,105 769 940
59,090,036 26,442,263 2,727,583 - 61,817,619 26,442,263
- 57,560 - - - 57,560
10,269,964,930 10,797,266,025 2,857,144,277 2,169,399 545 13,127,109,207 12,966,665,571
4,702,261,667 2,856,259,195 173,437,574 271,545,168 4,875,699,241 3,127 804 363
(6,507,134,969) (3,450,782,977) (317,741,714) (394,634,722) (6,824,876,683) (3,845 ,417,699)
(1,804,873,302) (594,523,782) (144,304,140) (123,089,554) (1,949,177,442) (717,613,336)
8,465,091,628 10,202,742,243 2,712,840,137 2,046,309,991 11,177,931,765 12,249,052 235
5,997,068,060 5379,157 483 262,008,187 622,686,111 6,259,076,247 6,001,843,594
7,705,202,083 9,728,722,391 2,425,080,860 1,432,357,297 10,130,282,943 11,161,079,688
200,330,624 286,556,412 42,497,757 23,896,376 242 828,381 310,452,788
(5,779,277,107) (6,316,749,686) (699,181,501) (613,570,970 (6,478,458,608) (6,930,320,656)
8,123,323,660 9.077,686,600 2,030,405,303 1465368814 10,153,728,963 10,543,055414
439,666,497 348,662,538 60,981,188 117,075,047 500,647,685 465,737,585
428,580,341 361,746,796 122,794,607 76,667,277 551,374,948 438 414,073
(378,344,245) (280487417) (81,494,605) (132,654,986) (459,838,850) (413,142 403)
489,902,593 429,921,917 102,281,190 61,087,338 592,183,783 491,009,255
116,988,722 66,092 220 162,402,585 40,774,802 279,391,307 106,807,028
292,408,392 356,727,391 211,996,101 195,029,036 504,404,493 551,756,447
(145,634,874) (129 306,3106) (180,961,166) (42,316,348) (326,596,040) (171,622 864)
263,762,240 293,513,301 193,437,520 193,487,310 457,199,760 487,000,611
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34.4

35

35.1

It includes provision for gratity amounting to Rs: 36.19 million (December 2023: Rs. 25.73 mullion).

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits
Travelling

Sales promotion
Insurance

Export charges
Export commission
Depreciation

Shop rent

General

Note

35.1

18.1.1

Reportable Segment

Rice and Allied Products Corn Starch Products Total
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Un-Audired Un-Audited Un-Audited
Rupees
44,242,360 43,335,795 4,293,051 4,231,354 48,535,411 47 567,149
18,040,569 27,389,793 5,971,540 4,857,254 24,012,109 32,247,047
70,751,658 74,230,264 8,606,466 3,051,568 79,358,124 77,281,832
3,598,460 4,086,600 131,170 89,863 3,729,630 4,176,463
61,298,689 63,302,874 12,474,353 800,846 73,773,042 64,103,720
14,199,001 13,217,221 - = 14,199,091 13,217,221
11,732,036 6,564,086 6,913,508 4,964,401 18,645,544 11,528 487
1,560,000 1,260,000 - = 1,560,000 1,260,000
560,443 - - - 560,443 -
225,983,306 233,386,633 38,390,088 17,995,286 264,373,394 251,381 919

It includes provision for pratuity amounting to Rs. 3.02 million (December 2023: Rs. 1.98 million).
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36  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits
Vehicle running
Entertamnment

Printing and stationery
Fee and subscription
Legal and professional
Auditor's remuneration
Postage and telegrams
General expenses
Newspaper and periodicals
Electricity and gas charges
Taxes, duty and fee
Medieal

Insurance

Software maintenance
Computer expenses
Depreciation

Donatons

Advertsement

Loss on sale of operating fixed assets
Others

36.1 It includes directors’ remuneration amounting to Rs. 13.92 million (December 2023;

11.88 million).

18.1.1

Reportable Segment

Rice and Allied Products Corn Starch Products Total
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Un-Audited Un-Audited Un-Audired
Rupees
176,493,886 166,494,618 34,836,170 36,057,890 211,330,056 202,552,508
18,627,945 20,226,827 339,401 101,090 18,967,346 20,327,917
1,472,191 1,376,706 196,542 158,189 1,668,733 1,534,895
122,079 292579 23,936 16,957 146,015 309,536
22,119,366 10,675,154 7,202,752 2417,162 29,322,118 13,092,316
- 390,000 - 150,000 - 540,000
3,382,608 913,246 - - 3,382,608 913,246
2,670,808 2.760.905 1,782,266 1,927,031 4,453,074 4,687,936
9,117,448 3,117,008 : 9,117,448 3,117,008
8,615 45,480 20,100 12,350 28,715 57,830
1,059,646 3,159,903 24,235 - 1,083,881 3,159,903
1,258,367 145,000 1,690,898 1,777,306 2,949,265 1,922,300
4,030,134 2,549,126 721,062 541,838 4,751,196 3,090,964
532,835 2,854,021 - 36,979 532,835 2,891,000
1,388,062 402232 . . 1,388,062 402,232
5,112,948 4170043 298,000 108,159 5,410,948 4,278,202
35,196,108 19,692,258 20,740,523 14,893,204 55,936,631 34,585 462
7,697,578 8,053,060 1,750,069 124,039 9,447,647 8,177,099
418,594 - 418,594
11,402,483 7,400,196 21,950 36,032 11,424,433 7,436,228
302,111,701 254,718,362 69,647,904 58,358,226 371,759,605 313,076,588

Rs. 16.53 million) and provision for gratuity amounting to Rs. 13.14 million (December 2023: Rs.
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December 31, December 31,

2024 2023
Un-Audited
36.2 Auditor's remuneration —=-——————Rupecs
- gudit fee of unconsolidated Anancial statements 2,420,000 -
- audit fee of special purpose audit financial statements
- audit fee of consolidated financial statements - -
- audit fee of half yearly review 600,000 600, 00K
- fee for review code of corporate governance - -
- other certifications - o
- ‘out of pocket expenses 362,608 313,246

3,382,608 913,246
EE———

363 Donation includes amount of Rs. 8.83 million (June 2024: Rs. 19,92 million) paid to Ghori Trust,
which is aperated by Board of directors of the company and their spouse namely Mr. Jawed Ali
Ghori, Mr. Khalid Sarfaraz Ghon, Me. Faizan All Ghon, Mrs. Naheed Jawed, Mrs, Nuzhat Khalid
and Mss. Dr. Sadaf Tariq,

December 31, Diecember 31,

2024 2023
Un-Audited

37 FINANCE COST Note Rupees e

Mark up

- long term finances - net 61,265,157 38,603,766

- short term borrowings 992,210,090 985,143,140

- interest expense on lease linhilities 14.1 17,070,836 13,109,552

Bank charges and commussion 1,869,843 2939438

1,072,415,926 1,039,795,896
38  OTHER INCOME

From fimancial assets

- Profit on bank/short term deposits 4,046,368 4452942

- Interest income on aceount of due from related parties 5,447 351 6,333,819

From non-financial assets

- Gain/(loss) on sale of shares - 6,115,215

- Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 10.2 29,926,268 -

- Scrap sales 20,583,910 4,191,425

- Rental income 2,549,730 1,953,600

- Dividend income - 784,204

- Others 454,875 396,550
63,008,502 24,427,755

39 EXCHANGE GAIN - NET

This represents exchange gain incurred on foreign currency denominated trade debts, advances
from customers, creditors and bank balances.
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40.2

40.3

40.4

40.5

40.6

December 31, December 31,

2024 2023
Un-Audited
Taxation semmsesemeeeeesRupees
- Levies - Final and Minimum Tax 100,184,768 127,167,148
- Prioe year - (56,739.389)
- Deferred (34,737,480) (8,108,238)
65,447,288 62,319,521

The relationship between tax expense and accounting profit has not been presented in these
financial statements as almost all income of the company falls under the ambir of minimum rax
regime.

Current year taxation has been charged on the basis of provisions in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
and accounted for after taking effect of admissible expenses in normal taxation with propartion of

local sales and on final tax regime applicable to the Company based on tax withheld from export
proceeds which is deemed as full and final discharpe of the tax liability.

During the previous year, the Company has received notice U/S 221(2) from FBR regarding WWF
and WPPF for the tax year 2019 and 2020, The deputy commissioner is of view that the company
has adjusted the lisbility of WWF and WPPF spainst the refund. He quoted the section 170(3) of
the ordinance that the refund can only be adjusted against any other liability of tax. Since WWF and
WPPF are not classifiable as "Tax" hence the same cannot be adjusted against the tax lability or
credit. The company has cesponded that they had not adjusted any linhility of WAWF and WPPF
against the refundable income tax amount upon filing of income tax return for tax year 2019 and
2020. The deputy commissioner has passed the order, withour being considering the point raised
by the company, against the company u/s 221(1) to rectify mistakes of mistreatment of WWF and
WPPF amounting to Rs. 4.96 million and Rs. 4.15 million for the tax year 2019 and 2020
respectively. The company has filed appeal before the commissioner inland revenue (Appeals-IT),
Karachi against the order and has taken sty order from High Court of Sindh, Kamachi with
reference of C.P.No. D-6395 of 2021 and C.P.No. D-6596 of 2021 against the recovery notice of
tax year 2019 and 2020 respectively. Dunng the year, the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue has
passed the order ITA No. 2833/KB/2023 and ITA No. 2834/KB/2023 stating that the order of
leamed CIR(A) thereon are illegal and cannot susmin in the cye of law and the leamed AR has
contested the case with the forceful arguments along with supparting evidence which is pessued
and found correct.

Return of 2016-17 filed on January 17, 2018, is an assessment order u/s 120 unless amended under
section 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The ADCIR initiated the proceeding u/s 122(5A)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 wide notce dated 21-05-2018 for amendment of deemed
assessment. The response of the above notice submitted by the Company tll November 15, 2018,
no further notice has been received.

The Deputy Commissioner of Inland Revenue (DC-IR) has miged a demand of Rs. 37,839,301 /-
for Super Tax" under Section 4C of the Ordinance for the tax year 2023, as per the order wath
Barcode No, 100000192819317 dated 05 April 2024, The company has appealed before the
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIR-A}, and the matter is currently pending.

A Post Refund Sales Tax Audit was conducted by the DC-IR for the tax periods from June 2021 to
August 2022. A demand of Rs. 51,856,323/~ was rised on account of Tnadmissible Input Tax on
Goods and Services', along with penalty and default surcharge, as per the Ordet-in-Original [ONO]
Ref. No. 27 of 270/2024 dated 22 February 2024.
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42

Being aggrieved of such Oxder, the Company has appealed to the Commissioner-IR Appeals, and
the appeal is currently underway, We anticipate a favorable outcome; therefore, no provision is
required at this stage. Please note that the company has deposited Rs, 25,000,000/ of the sales tax
demand under protest (Refer Note 28.1).

The Commissioner-IR selected the Company for audit under Section 25(1) for the Tax Year 2022,
Following the audit, the DC-IR raised a sales tax demand of Rs, 2,682,084 /-, along with 2 penalty
of Rs, 404,104/~ for 'Inadmissible Input Tax on Goods and Scrvices', as per ONO Ref. No.
28/156/2023-24 dated 18 March 2024, Being aggrieved of such Order, the Company has filed an
appeal before the Commissioner-IR Appeals, which is currenty in process. We expect a favarable
outcome and, as such, no provision is required at this stage.

Return of 2023-24 filed on January 15, 2022, i¢ an assessment arder under section 120 unless
amended under section 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

December 31, June 30,
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2024 2024
Number of employees as at June 30 965 1,006
Average number of employees duning the year 986 988

TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties include subsidiary company, entities under common directorship, directors, major
shareholders, key management personnel and reticement benefit funds. Transactions with related
parties essentially entall rent expense and tansactions with key management personnel. Details of
transactions with related parties and the balances with them as at year end other than those which
have been disclosed else where are as follows:
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421 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have
arrangement / agreement in place:

$Na G Name Regitered Counteyof  Bassof  Mame of Chiel Excoutive / Principal Aggregaie %oof Operational  Audior's
Addresa Incorporstion. Amociation Oficer / Authorized Agent shorehaliding Searos Oyrnion

JKTGeenl POBsiNS,  Subily ot . .

Teuding FZE St LAE Gomg Faitan Al (hon 00 Aetie (e

422 Consideration for services is determined with mutual agreement considering the level of services
provided. Expenses charged by / to the Company are determined on actual cost basis. Particulars
of remuneration of chief executive officer, directors and executives are disclosed in note 43 to these
unconsolidated financial statements,

|

423 Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity. The Company considers all members of its

management team, including the chief executive officer and the directors to be key management
personnel.

43 REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND
EXECUTIVES

Far the purpose of disclosure those employees are considered as executives whose basic salary
exceed twelve hundred thousands rupees in financial year.

Chiaf Exneustre Oifices Dipeeiars Enaniilven Tueal
4 it (" ke 31, D i fhuey 30, Dk bar XL,  Decrmibir 11,  Destmber 11,  Detembaer 31,
A, 34 Juxy i, 303s s 004 30y md b - |
Tupres
Fhan e anphyee benallla
Hemmenerstinn [EITIF ] 159001 54N 3435032 WA A a0 43 211,700 QLIRET N =T W4T 0
amsee meen allrwuncrs WAL LIZE 1L LANLAW FELLN L1 AT, 19,440,700 LURE R ELTTAT
Wil LS¥T, 758 LAY 540 b AR 2AM1LMT AN [ PRl [1%5.5 1] AL ST
flnus. - - S} 00 L6 LAN EE T YT B el 0
Vush tzpanet L9963 am LISLATT 1480 04 04,102 240008 WLTEEME  Z2R0RE
Medical repruss b ¥ ET] SLATE FLE T a0 30283 LA e Rt Wi T TAIEAT
Vehecls eapear A3rang 1,788,811 mam LLLL Ll tELER L] (F LK LATTib4 Ingmn
Uhher rapanss nd A 1305 - 10,983 . &5 1T
LUbM 708 ILTAITE _ jamnikid TTRAVTANE __Jiidnida  ToeaoiLGol  iin ket
Vakon of mosar vohivies —NETE SAGATI SR SJeMs  BIMSET MWD _ SKSELEN  SOIVNI,
Muimbser of Porvnas i 1 2 | " ]

43.1 In additon to above, fees of Rs. 0.22 million (December 2023: Rs. 0.44 million) was paid to
independent directors of the Company for attending board of directors meeting during the period.
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432 In addition to the above, chief executive officer and directors are provided with the use of the
Company's vehicles. Certain executives are also provided with Company maintained cars.

433  The Company considers its chief exceutive officer and the executive director as its key management

personnel Le the pessonnel having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Company.

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
44 PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION (Tons)

Annual Plant Capacity
- Rice processing 178,500 178,500
- Rice Glucose 33,000 33,000
- Corn Starch 72,000 72,000

Actual Production
- Rice processing 45,213 110,732
- Rice Glucose 6,014 10,659
- Corn Starch 26,506 49,212

#4.1  Acul production is less than installed capacity due to planned maintenance shutdown and
production planned as per market demand.

December 31, Diecember 31,

2024 2023
45 EARNINGS PER SHARE - B et 1111 11 R
BASIC AND DILUTED
Profit for the period 238,300,020 84,383,956
Number of ardinary shares 122,400,698 122,400,698
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 122 400,698 122,401'.],698=
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 1.95 0.69

There is no dilutve effect on eamnings per share as the Company does not have any convertible
instruments as at December 31, 2024 and June 30, 2024.

46 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's activities expose it to a vadety of financial risks: market sk (including foreign
exchange rsk, interest rate sk and price nsk), credit nsk and liquidity risk.. The Company's overall
sk management programme focuses on having cost efficient funding as well as to manage
financial risk to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum retiten to sharcholders,

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the esmblishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company's sk management policies. The Company's overall sk management
progrmam focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the financial performance which are as follows:

46.1 Market risk

Market risk refers to fluctuation in value of financial instruments as a result of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprise of currency risk, interest rate risk and price sk,
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46.1.1

46.1.2

Currency risk
Foreign exchange risk represents the rsk that the fair value of funure cash flows of a fnancial

instrument will flocruate because of changes in foreign exchonge rates. It arises mainly where
receivables, bank balances, borrowings and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign

currencies.

Exposure to Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk ansing from currency value fluctuations due to
the following:

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
seesees Amount in USD —-—-
Trade debts 5,844,394 5,965,510
Cash and bank balances 96,497 127,962
Advance from customer (348,658) (590,110)
Met Exposure 5,592,233 5503361
The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:
December 31, June 30,
2024 2024
Rupee per USDeo—eeee
Average rate 278.24 28253
Reporting date rate 278.55 278.34

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of the PKR against the USD at December 31, 2024 would have effect on the
equity and unconsolidated statement of profit or loss of the company as shown below. This
analysis assumes that all other variables; in particular interest mtes, remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for December 31, 2024.

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024

Rupees

Strengthening of PKR against respective currencies (155,771,650) (173,403,099)

Weakening of PKR against respective currencits 155.'?71!&50 173,403,099

A 10 percentage weakening of the PKR against the USD at December 31, 2024 would have had the
equal but oppasite effect on USD to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remain constarit.

Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those ansing from interest or currency
rate nisk), whether those changes are caused by factors specified to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
The Company is not exposed to price risk as well as the commodity price msk.



MATCO FOODS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX-MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Financial ssscts

Amaortised cost

Lowp-teem depesin

Ly term investiments

Trade debti - commidered goods
Lawin

Depriseits

Shoe e investment

Due feom selated partios

Cash and bank balances

Fair value through profit or loss

Showrr-term investnent

Fair value through other compreheniive
income

Laorygterm tnventments

Financial liahilitics

At amortized cost

Lasrigy verm Fmanees - secured

Diue o eelated party

Trade sl other payables

Accrued mack-up

Shaset term barmowings - secuneil

Ulinpraind dividind

Lease lahilines

Un balance sheet gap
O balunce sheet items
Guarantces

Leties of cxedit

apital Hxpenclitune

Chegques woued in favor of Mazirof high court in reanon
to SHGE case

Note

LENRBEN

12
13
15
I
1)

172
172
12

Diecember 31, 2024

Murke-up / profit bearing
Less than One year o Over five i m;:-?pfpmﬁl Total
one year Five yearn S - e
Rupees
= - = 20,708,550 20,708,550
- . . 55,562,707 55,582,707
= . : 2,578,459,075 2,578,489,075
= . = 25,114,901 25,114,001
- - - 1,529,197 1,529,197
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000
74,398,259 - - - 74,396,259
107,596,223 - - 28,926,712 136,522,935
183,194,482 . . 2,Ti0,351,142 2,693,545,624
: = 1 - 1 - =]
- =1 I - =1
362,759,221 1,049, 465,666 239,474,125 - 1,651,699,015
= - - 6,412,777 6,412,777
: z : 2,515,126,234 2,515,126,234
- . z 221,588,252 221,588,252
13,724,816,475 ; . . 13,724,816,475
. £ . 1,003,324 1,083.324
79,419,090 331,478,070 18,979,804 - 429,876,964
14,166,994, 786 1, 380,943,736 258,453,932 2,744, 220,587 18,550,613,041
(13,983,500, 304) {1.380,43,736) (258,453,932} (33,869,445) (15,657,067,417)
. - - 46,137,500 46,137,500
. . - 133,815,142 133,815,142
- = - 125,000,000 125,004,000
- - - 7732152 7,752,192
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Fimancial sssetn

Amortived enat

Lavirng-term depueiite

Lasnyg-term investmerits

Trade debis - comudered goods
Loans

Deposim

Shot-term mvestment

Droe from eclarod pamies

Cagh andd hank balinces

Fatr wahie through profir or loss

Shirtterm imvestment

Faie valbue through other comprehonnive
meome

Lewage-teem imvesmment

Financial lahines

At amiitieed ool

Loy term Fimanees - secured

Dhic e redated party

Teade and other payables

Acorued mark-up

Shaort term borrowings

Unpaid dividend

Leise Halifities

Om balance sheet gap

CHY batare sheet e

Ciuaranoes

Latter of crodn

Capital Expenaditures

Chstpoes ssiued in Bevar of MNuwr of high courtin relanon
by SHCHC cune

21
24

27

b1}

12
15
15
16
1

172
172
172

s

Jane 31, 20024
Mark-up J peofit betring
Lews than O year 1o Ot Rl smiask:up J prioti "Total
e year hicaringg
one e Five years
R‘mj. ..... —
- 19,708,550 19,708, 550
. > 55582707 55582707
- 2334, 768,358 234,768,358
- - 25,713,502 25,773,562
5 1.983,715 1,983,715
1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
50,326,380 - 501,320,380
THIM AT - - 277,684,249 3574186096
131, 260,827 271550110 2846,761,968
- : | [ ,
. =il | | - | -
359,121,060 1,475, 635,460 3 1,834,757.426
. : . 6,563,777 6,563,777
55,722,608 23585, 702 608
. - 560,017,210 S60.017,210
11,123,990,753 . - - 11,125.990,753
- * - 2845996 28,495,996
38,071,880 137 802,604 34,450,674 ! 210325254
11,521,184.599 LA13 438,160 M A50,674 2.950,799,591 16,119,873,024
(11.380,923,772) {1,613.438,160) [34,450,674) {735,298, 4500) 12273111 056)
- 46,167,500 46,167,500
225 BOK.KUD 225 S0R A9
: 1 F2L000, 000 172,140,000
- 7732192 7732192
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46.1.3 Interest/Mark-up rate risk

(@)

(b)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the finandial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has long term and short term
finance at variable rates. The Company is exposed to interest/mark-up rate risk on long and short
term financing and these are covered by holding "Prepayment Option” and "Rollover Option".
Interest rate risk on short term borrowings is covered by holding "Prepayment Option" which can
be exercised upon any adverse movement in the underlying interest rates. The local and foreign
currency loans carry mark up at the prevailing rate of SBP plus 1% to 2.5%, KIBOR plis 0.75% to

2% respectively. Applicable interest rates for financial assets and liabilides are given in respective
notes,

On balance sheet gap represents the net amounts of unconsolidated statement of financial position
items.

Effective rates of retum/mark-up on financial liabilities are as follows:

December 31, June 30,
Financial liabilities 2024 2024
SBP ratet+ 1%t SBP mte+ 1% to
Long term finances - secured 2.5% & KIBOR  25% & KIBOR
+ 1% to L.5% + 1% ta 1.5%
SBP rate+ 1%  SBP rate+ 1% &
Short term borrowings & KIBOR +  KIBOR + 0.75%
0.75% to 2% to 2%

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any Axed eate Gnancial assets and liabilides at Faie value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rale at the reporting date would not affect
unconsalidated statement of profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

At December 31, 2024, if interest rates on long term financing had been 1% higher / lower with all
other vadables held constant, pre tax profit for the period would have been Ra: 16.52 million (June
2024: Rs. 1B.35 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on
floating rate borrowings.

At December 31, 2024, if interest rates on short term borrowings had been 1% higher / lower with
all other variables held constant, pre tax profit for the pedod would have been Rs, 137.25 million
(June 2024: Rs. 111.24 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense
on floating rate borrowings.
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46.2  Credit risk
Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised art the reporting date if counter-
parties failed completely to perform s contracted. The Company does not have significant
exposure to any individual countes-party, therefore, the management does not consider thar it has
any concentration of credit risk at reporting date. To reduce exposure to credit risk the Compuny
has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers, The
management also regularly monitors the credit exposure towards the customers and makes
allowance for ECLs against those balances considered doubtful of recovery. To mitgate the risk,
the Company has a system of assigmng credir limits to its customers based on evaluation based on
customer profile and payment history. Outstanding customer receivables are regulardy monitored.
Some customers are also secured, where possible, by way of inland letters of credit, cash security
deposit, bank guarantees and insurance guarantees.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit nisk at the reporting date is as follows:

December 31, June 30,
2024 2024

Financial assets Rupees

Long-term investmenis 21 55,582,707 55,582,708
Long-term deposits 20,708,550 17,476,970
Trade debts 24 2,578,489,075 2,194,183,664
Loans 25 25,114,901 23,096,353
Trade deposit 26 1,529,197 2812742
Short-term investment 27 1,200,000 4222323
Due from related parties 29 74,398,259 81,821,177
Bank balances K} | 126,209,682 353,191,599

2,883,232,371 __ 2.732.387,536
The ageing of trade debts and related movement of ECL has been disclosed in note 24.3 of these
unconsolidated financial statements,

Bank balances

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing in liquid securities and maintaining
bank accounts only with counter-parties that have stable credit mating. Given these high credit
ratings, management does not expect that any counter party will fail to meet their obligations.
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46.3

47

The bank balances along with the credit ratings are tabulated below:

Aoty December 31, 2024

ot Short term Long term

MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
Meezan Bank Limited JCR VIS Al+ AAA
National Bank of Pakiztan PACRA Al+ AAA
Standard Chartered Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
United Bank Limited JCR VIS Al+ AAA
Allied Bank Limited PACRA A+ AAA
Askart Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA

Habib Bank Limited PACRA A+ AAA
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA-

Bank Al Habib Limired PACRA Al+ AAA
1S Bank PACRA Al+ AA

MCB Islamic Bank PACRA Al+ A+

Bank of Punjab PACRA A+ AA+

Liquidity risk

The Company finances its operations through equity and borrowings with a view to maintaining an
approprate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The management aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping regular continucd credit lines.

As on reporting date, the Company had cash and bank balances and term deposit amounting to Rs.
136.52 million & Rs. 1.2 million respectively (June 2024: Rs, 357.42 million & Rs. 1.2 million ), and
unutilized credit lines of Rs. 1,809.70 million (June 2024: 1,296.01 million).

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Fair value is an amount for which an asser could be exchanged, or a lisbility settled, berween
knowledgeable willing par tes in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences may arise
between the carrying values and the fair value estimates,

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements, The fair value hierarchy has the:

a) Quoted prices (unadjusted) in acove markets for identical assets or linbilities (level 1).

b) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asser or
linhility, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

cj Inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on obsérvable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The Company recognizes transfers berween levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period dunng which the transfer has oecurred.

The Company’s policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have
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occurred includes monitoring of the following factors:

- changes in market and trading activity (eg.. significant increases / decreases in activity)
- changes in inputs used in valuation techniques {e.g, inputs becoming / ceasing to be observable in
the market)

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year.

The following table represents the Company's assets that are measured at fair value as at December
31, 2024 and June 30, 2024:

Discember 31, 2024
Liewed 1 Level 2 Leved 3 Toral

Rupees —

Non-financial asets

Propenry, plant s suipeuent : . 1.932.717.208 CLY52.717.209
Finuntiad asurss

Fimancial snsets beld a1 Fir value dieouijgh penfit or los
Financial sty held o I!nwiwduw;hmh-r
COMTprERETITE IDOOme

Lol 1 Liewd 2 Lewid § Tl

MW ot et

Propery, plant and equipment . . 1200597 1290012859
Fimongial sz

Financial aets held o faie value thregh peods or ss
Famancal woces held 3 fir value Siremgh ocher
erstapmelornarve inpreme

Certain categories of operating fixed assets (land, buildings, plant and machinery and generators
include revaluation surplus) (level 3' measurement) determined by an independent professional
valuer based on their assessment of the market values as disclosed in note 8 to these
unconsolidated financial statements, The effect of changes in the unobservable inputs used in the

valuations cannot be determined with certainty. Accordingly, 2 qualitative disclosure of sensitivity
has not been presented in these unconsolidated financial statements.

48 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The objective of the Company when managing capital is 1o safeguard its ability 1o continue as a
going concemn so that it can continue to provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and 1o maintain a strong capital base to suppore the sustained development of its
businesses.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring its debt levels and liquid assets and
keeping in view future investments requirements and expectations of the sharcholders. Debr s
calculated as total borrowings (short term borrowings, long term finances and current portion of
long term finances as shown in the balance sheet). Capital signifies equity as reported in sttement
of financial position and includes share capiral, share premium and unappropriated peofits.

The Company's strategy is to maintain leveraged gearing. The gearing ratios as at December 31,
2024 and June 30, 2024 were as follows:
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December 31, Jute 30,
2024 2024
MNote Rupees

Total borrowings 15,376,515,490 12,958,748,179
Less: Cash and bank 31 (136,522,935) (357,418,696)
Net debt 15,239,992,555 12,601,329, 483
Total equity 10,225.371,614 9,087,621,860
Total equity and debt 25,465,364,169 22,588,951,343
Geuring ratio (%) 60% 56%%

_——
The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working
capital with & view to maintain an appropeiate mix amongst various sources of finance to minimize
rsk.

49 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have also been rearmnged and/or seclassified, wherever necessary, for better
presentation. However, there has been no material reclassification in these unconsolidated speeial
purpose financial statements.

50 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These special purpose financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the

Company and authorized for tssue on _2__5_5;&_39{4&

51 GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

-_—

VS (X

Khalid Sarfaraz Ghori M. Aamir Farooqui
Chiel Exccutive Officer Chief Financial Officer




